
 

 

 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov   

 

 

 

 

LEGISLATIVE OPERATING COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA  

Business Committee Conference Room-2nd Floor Norbert Hill Center 

November 7, 2018 2:00 p.m.  
 

I. Call to Order and Approval of the Agenda 

 

II. Minutes to be Approved 

1. October 17, 2018 LOC Meeting Minutes (pg. 2) 

 

III. Current Business 

1. Employee Protection Policy (pg. 4) 

2. Sanctions and Penalties Law (pg. 21) 
 
IV. New Submissions 
 
V. Additions  
 
VI. Administrative Updates  

1. FY 18 Fourth Quarter LOC Report (p. 115) 
2. Active Files List Memo (pg. 121) 

 
VII. Executive Session 
  
VIII. Recess/Adjourn 
 

 

1 of 123



 

Legislative Operating Committee Meeting Minutes of October 17, 2018 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

 
 

 
 
 

LEGISLATIVE OPERATING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Oneida Business Committee Conference Room-2nd Floor Norbert Hill Center 

October 17, 2018  
9:00 a.m. 

  
Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Ernest Stevens III, Daniel Guzman King 
Excused: Kirby Metoxen 
Others Present: Maureen Perkins, Kristen Hooker, Brandon Wisneski, Clorissa Santiago, Jennifer 
Falck, Evander Delgado, Leyne Orosco, Bonnie Pigman, Michelle Myers, Jeanette Ninham, Carol 
Silva, Eugene Schubert, Krystal John, Lisa Peck, Ed Delgado  

 
I. Call to Order and Approval of the Agenda  

David P. Jordan called the October 17, 2018 Legislative Operating Committee meeting to 
order at 9:00 a.m. 
 
Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the agenda as is; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

II. Minutes to be Approved (:49 -1:13) 
October 3, 2018 LOC Minutes 
Motion by Ernest Stevens III to approve the October 3, 2018 Legislative Operating 
Committee meeting minutes and forward to the Oneida Business Committee for 
consideration; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

III. Current Business  
1. Harvest Law (1:16 – 3:09) 

Motion by Jennifer Webster to remove the Harvest Law from the active files list and 
also to approve the Harvest Law Update Memo and forward to the Environmental 
Resources Board Chairperson, the Oneida Land Commission Chairperson, the EHSL 
Division Director, and the Natural Resources Department Director; seconded by Ernest 
Stevens III. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

2. Sanctions & Penalties Law (3:09 – 4:13) 
Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the public meeting memo comments and public 
meeting comment review memorandum and defer to a work meeting; seconded by 
Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

3. Employee Protection Policy (4:14 – 5:30) 
Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the draft and legislative analysis of the 
amendments to the Employee Protection Policy and defer to a work meeting; seconded 
by Ernest Stevens III. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

2 of 123



Legislative Operating Committee Meeting Minutes of October 17, 2018   
  Page 2 of 2  

 

4. Children’s Code (5:32 – 7:13) 
Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the resolution titled “Amending Resolution BC-
07-26-17-J to Delay the Implementation of the Children’s Code” and forward to the 
Oneida Business Committee for consideration; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. 
Motion carried unanimously.   

 
IV. New Submissions 

1. Petition: Dallas- Special Per Capita Payments and/or Options (7:16 - 8:11) 
Motion by Jennifer Webster to add Petition: Dallas-Special Per Capita Payments and/or 
Options as a high priority with Jennifer Webster as the sponsor; seconded by Daniel 
Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

2. Petition: Cathy L. Metoxen- Oneida Youth Leadership Institute (8:13 – 8:47) 
Motion by Jennifer Webster to add Petition: Cathy L. Metoxen-Oneida Youth 
Leadership Institute to the active files list with David P. Jordan as the sponsor; 
seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
3. TAP Laws and Policy Subcommittee Memorandum (8:48 – 15:21) 

Motion by Daniel Guzman King to accept the memo and defer to a work meeting; 
seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously. 

  
V. Additions 

 

VI. Administrative Items 

1. Landlord Tenant Rule No. 1 (15:23 – 16:38) 

Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the Landlord Tenant Rule No.1 certification 

packet and forward to the Oneida Business Committee for approval; seconded by 

Ernest Stevens III. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

VII. Executive Session 

 

VIII. Adjourn 

Motion by Ernest Stevens III to adjourn the October 17, 2018 Legislative Operating 

Committee meeting at 9:17 a.m.; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

3 of 123



 

Page 1 of 3 

 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  
 

   Legislative Operating Committee 
November 7, 2018 

 

Employee Protection Policy 
Amendments                    

Submission Date: 4/18/18 Public Meeting: n/a 

LOC Sponsor:   David P. Jordan Emergency Enacted: 4/25/18 
 
Summary:  The purpose of the Employee Protection Policy is to give protection to employees who 

give information that is intended to protect the Nation. The processes set forth in the Personnel & 
Procedures may be sufficient protection for employees who act to protect the Nation’s interests. The 
request is the LOC consider amendments or rescinding the law. 
 
12/20/17LOC:Motion by Jennifer Webster to add Employee Protection Policy to the Active Files List with a 

high priority and David P. Jordan as the sponsor; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
2/21/18LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to reprioritize the active files list lowering the Drug and 

Alcohol Free Law for Elected and Appointed Officials to medium, Employee Protection to 
medium, removing Hall of Fame Repeal, and to bump up Wellness Court, UCC Codes, and 
Industrial Hemp to High Priority; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
4/18/18 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to change the status to Emergency Amendments; seconded by 

Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
4/18/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman King, Kirby 

Metoxen, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Jo Anne House, Tani 
Thurner, Laura Laitinen-Warren. The purpose of this work meeting was to discuss an update 
and plan for the emergency amendments. 

 
4/20/18: E-Poll conducted. 
 
4/25/18 OBC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen to adopt resolution 04-25-18-G Employee Protection Policy 

Emergency Amendments, seconded by Brandon Stevens. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
5/2/18 LOC: Motion by Ernest Stevens III to enter the Military Service Employee Protection Act 

Emergency Amendments E-poll into the record; seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
5/16/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman King, Kirby 

Metoxen, Ernest Stevens III, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Laura 
Laitinen-Warren. The purpose of this work meeting was to review and discuss the drafted 
permanent amendments. Drafting attorney will update the draft. 

 

4 of 123



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

6/15/18: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Matthew J. Denny. The 
purpose of this work meeting was to discuss HRD’s potential involvement in the disclosure 
portion of the Employee Protection Policy. 

 
6/22/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Brandon Stevens, Clorissa 

Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Cathy Bachhuber, Laura Laitinen-Warren. The purpose of this 
work meeting was to review potential options for revisions to the law – specifically the 
disclosure section. The LRO will conduct further research, and the drafting attorney will 
update the draft. 

 
7/11/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, 

Brandon Wisneski, Maureen Perkins. The purpose of this work meeting was to review 
requested research on other Tribal Employee Protection/Whistleblower laws and to review 
potential models for the draft.  

 
8/23/18: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Matthew J. Denny, Nic 

Reynolds. Due to a majority of the meeting attendees not making the meeting, this work 
meeting was spent answering some questions regarding the draft, and discussing next steps. 

  
 Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Loucinda Conway, Man from 

Hotline Development Company. Audit provided information on the Whistleblower hotline 
and how it will work. 

 
9/5/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman, Jennifer Falck, 

Clorissa Santiago, Kristen Hooker, Brandon Wisneski, Maureen Perkins. The purpose of this 
work meeting was to obtain more direction from the LOC on how to proceed with this law 
now that more information on Audit’s Whistleblower hotline was obtained. 

  
9/5/18 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the memo [Regarding 8/27 GTC Directive] and 

forward to the Oneida Business Committee: seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
9/27/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Webster, Ernest Stevens 

III, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Kristen Hooker, Brandon Wisneski, Maureen Perkins, 
Fawn Billie. The purpose of this work meeting was to review research and statistics on the 
Employee Protection law, and then discuss and decide on an option to move this law 
forward. Drafting attorney and analyst will move forward with finalizing draft and analysis 
and bring back to LOC. 

 
9/26/18/ OBC: Motion by Lisa Summers to adopt resolution 09-26-18-F Rescission of the Dissolution of the 

Oneida Personnel Commission and Related Emergency Amendments in Accordance with 
General Tribal Council’s August 27, 2018 Directive with one amendment [to include 
language which requires bimonthly updates to the Oneida Business Committee at the second 
regular meeting of the month], seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried. 

 
10/3/18 LOC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen to remove the emergency designation from the Employee 

Protection Policy amendments; seconded by Ernest Stevens III. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
10/9/18: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Loucinda Conway, Jackie 

Johnson, Mary Graves. The purpose of this work meeting was to obtain Internal Audit’s 
comments on the proposed draft, and find out if it is consistent with the Hotline policies. 

 
 

5 of 123



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

10/17/18 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the draft and legislative analysis of the amendments to 
the Employee Protection Policy and defer to a work meeting; seconded by Ernest Stevens 
III. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
10/17/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman, Ernest Stevens 

III, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Rosa Laster. The purpose of 
this working was to begin reviewing the legislative analysis and making policy 
considerations. LRO will prepare a public meeting packet for the next LOC meeting. 

 

Next Steps: 
▪ Approve the public meeting packet and forward the law to a public meeting to be held on 

December 3, 2018.  

6 of 123



ONEIDA NATION PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE          
 LEGISLATIVE OPERATING COMMITTEE               

WWW.ONEIDA-NSN.GOV/GOVERNMENT 

Monday December 3, 2018, 12:15pm          
Norbert Hill Center-Business Committee Conference Room                  

N7210 Seminary Rd., Oneida, Wisconsin 

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTION LAW 

The purpose of this law is to give protection to employees who 
give information that is intended to protect the Nation from 
fraud, theft, or other detrimental effects. 

 

This proposed Whistleblower Protection law will be replacing the Nation’s Employee Protection Policy.  

 

This proposed Whistleblower Protection law will: 

1. Describe that whistleblowing occurs when an employee makes a disclosure of information 
that the employee reasonably believes provides evidence that protects the Nation from any 
adverse actions of its employees that may result in a detrimental effect to the Nation.   

2. Provide that am employee shall be protected from retaliatory action that results from making 
a disclosure of information under this law. 

3. Describe how to make a disclosures of information, as well as how a disclosure will be han-
dled. 

4. Provide a process for if an employee alleges that retaliatory action has been taken against him 
or her based on his or her disclosure of information. 

  

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS PERIOD CLOSES MONDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2018 
During the Public Comment Period, all interested persons may submit written comments. Comments may 

be submitted to the Oneida Nation Secretary’s Office or the Legislative Reference Office in person, by U.S. 
mail, interoffice mail, or e-mail.  

 
 
 

-PUBLIC MEETING PACKETS ARE AVAILABLE AT- 
www.oneida-nsn.gov/Register/Public Meetings or contact Oneida Nation Legislative Reference Office located 

in the Norbert Hill Center, PO Box 365, Oneida, Wisconsin 54155 
Email: LOC@oneidanation.org   Phone:  920-869-4376 

7 of 123



Analysis to Draft 2 (PM Draft) 

2018 11 07 

 

Page 1 of 10 
 

 WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTION LAW 

LEGISLATIVE ANALYSIS 
 

SECTION 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
REQUESTER: 

LOC 
SPONSOR: 

David P. Jordan 
DRAFTER: 

Clorissa N. Santiago 
ANALYST: 

Brandon Wisneski 

Intent of the 
Amendments 

To repeal the Employee Protection Policy and replace it with a Whistleblower 
Protection Law that incorporates the Nation’s new anonymous Fraud Hotline; to 
ban retaliation against employees; to direct all whistleblower disclosures to the 
Fraud Hotline or Internal Audit Department; to provide a grievance and complaint 
process for employees who have been retaliated against; and to provide disciplinary 
actions and other consequences for employees and officials who retaliate against 
whistleblowers.  

Purpose To give protection to employees who give information that is intended to protect 
the Nation from fraud, theft or other detrimental effects [see 211.1-1].  

Affected Entities All employees of the Nation. All elected and appointed officials of the Nation. 
Internal Audit Department, Audit Committee, Human Resources Department, 
Personnel Commission, Judiciary, Oneida Business Committee, Oneida Law 
Office, Oneida Police Commission, Oneida Nation School Board, Oneida Gaming 
Commission.  

Affected 
Legislation 

Employee Protection Policy, Personnel Policies and Procedures (Blue Book), 
Boards, Committees and Commissions Law, Removal Law and Internal Audit Law.  

Enforcement/Due 
Process 

Employees of the Nation who retaliate against an employee may be subject to 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination. Elected and appointed officials 
of the Nation who retaliate against an employee may be subject to sanctions and 
penalties, removal from office or termination of appointment [see 211.5-3].  

Public Meeting A public meeting has not yet been held.   

SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE DEVELOPMENT 1 

A. The Employee Protection Policy was first adopted by the Oneida Business Committee on April 20, 2 

1995. The purpose of the law is to protect employees who give information that is intended to protect 3 

the Nation from fraud, theft or other detrimental effects. The current Employee Protection Policy 4 

provides a process for how employees make disclosures, a process to request “protected status” that 5 

allows protected employees to bypass the normal complaint and grievance process in the Personnel 6 

Policies and Procedures, and the ability of protected employees to receive a “protective order” from the 7 

Personnel Commission if they are retaliated against.  8 

B. Amendments to the Employee Protection Policy were added to the Legislative Operating Committee’s 9 

Active Files List on December 20, 2017. Over the course of developing amendments, the LOC 10 

determined that the proposed changes to the law were substantial enough that the Whistleblower 11 

Protection Policy should be considered a new law that repeals and replaces the Employee Protection 12 

Policy. 13 

C. The proposed Whistleblower Protection Law is intended to work in conjunction with the Nation’s new 14 

Fraud Hotline developed by the Internal Audit department. The anonymous Fraud Hotline is designed 15 

to be a centralized way for employees to report fraud, unlawful, unethical or other types of inappropriate 16 

behavior. The Fraud Hotline will be administered by a third party and will be available 24 hours per 17 

day, seven days per week. Reports from the Fraud Hotline will be sent to Internal Audit for 18 

investigation.  19 

8 of 123



Analysis to Draft 2 (PM Draft) 

2018 11 07 

 

Page 2 of 10 
 

D. This proposed law repeals the Employee Protection Policy and replaces it with a new Whistleblower 20 

Protection Law. The intent of the law is to ban retaliation against employees; to direct all whistleblower 21 

disclosures to the Fraud Hotline or Internal Audit Department; to provide a grievance and complaint 22 

process for employees who have been retaliated against; and to provide disciplinary actions and other 23 

consequences for employees and officials who retaliate against whistleblowers. 24 

 25 

SECTION 3. CONSULTATION AND OUTREACH 26 

A. The Legislative Operating Committee (LOC) held work meetings with Internal Audit, Human 27 

Resources Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) and HRD Training and Development in the 28 

development of this law and analysis. In addition, representatives from the Gaming Commission, 29 

School Board and Police Commission were invited to attend a work meeting to provide input regarding 30 

the Employee Protection Policy. The LOC received data regarding historical Employee Protection 31 

Policy caseload from staff of the following entities: Oneida Personnel Commission, Oneida Nation 32 

School Board, Oneida Nation Gaming Commission, and Oneida Nation Police Commission.  33 

B. The following Oneida laws were reviewed in the drafting of this analysis: Personnel Policies and 34 

Procedures, Boards, Committees and Commissions Law, Removal Law, Internal Audit Law, and Code 35 

of Ethics. In addition, the following laws were reviewed in drafting this analysis: 36 

▪ Ho Chunk Nation Employment Relations Act  37 

▪ Mashantucket Pequot Tribal Whistleblower Law  38 

▪ Little Traverse Band of Odawa Indians Whistleblower Protection 39 

▪ Seminole Nation Whistleblower Protection 40 

▪ Osage Nation Whistleblower Protection Law  41 

 42 

SECTION 4. PROCESS 43 

A. Thus far, this law has followed the process set forth in the Legislative Procedures Act (LPA).   44 

B. The law was added to the Active Files List under Employee Protection Policy on 12/20/2017.  45 

C. At the time this legislative analysis was developed, the following work meetings were held/scheduled 46 

regarding the development of this law and legislative analysis: 47 

▪ April 18, 2018: LOC Work Meeting. 48 

▪ May 16, 2018: LOC Work Meeting. 49 

▪ June 15, 2018: Work Meeting with HRD EEO. 50 

▪ June 22, 2018: LOC Work Meeting. 51 

▪ July 11, 2018: LOC Work Meeting. 52 

▪ August 23, 2018: Work Meeting with HRD EEO and HRD Training and Development. 53 

Representatives from the Gaming Commission, Police Commission and School Board were also 54 

invited to this meeting.  55 

▪ August 23, 2018: Work Meeting with Internal Audit Department.  56 

▪ September 27, 2018: LOC Work Meeting. 57 

▪ October 9, 2018: Work Meeting with Internal Audit Department.  58 

▪ October 17, 2018: LOC Work Meeting.  59 

 60 

SECTION 5. CONTENTS OF THE LEGISLATION  61 

A. Repeal of Employee Protection Policy. Adoption of the proposed Whistleblower Protection Law will 62 

repeal and replace the current Employee Protection Policy [see 211.2-4(a)]. This analysis provides 63 

comparisons between the current Employee Protection Policy and the proposed Whistleblower 64 

Protection Law.  65 

B. What is “Whistleblowing”? A whistleblower is an employee who shares evidence or provides 66 

information that protects the Oneida Nation from adverse actions of its employees. 67 

9 of 123



Analysis to Draft 2 (PM Draft) 

2018 11 07 

 

Page 3 of 10 
 

▪ Examples in the law include: any dishonest or fraudulent act, deceptive business practices, 68 

theft, extortion, bribery, embezzlement, blackmail, tampering and or falsifying records, 69 

forgery, misappropriation or misuse of the Nation’s funds, disclosure of confidential 70 

information, destruction, removal or inappropriate use of property of the Nation, unsafe 71 

working conditions, poor management, or unethical conduct or violation of a law or policy of 72 

the Nation [see 211.4-1].  73 

C. Ban on Retaliation. Employees who make whistleblower disclosures under this law are protected from 74 

retaliation [see 211.4-2]. Examples of retaliation listed in this law include: 75 

▪ Disciplinary Actions such as dismissal, demotion, transfer, removal of duty, refusal to restore, 76 

layoff, furlough, suspension, and/or reprimand.  77 

▪ Non-Disciplinary Actions such as loss of hours, rescheduling shifts outside of normal shift 78 

changes, change of job requirements without notice, verbal or physical harassment, reduction 79 

of pay, denial of educational benefits, reassignment, and/or failure to increase base pay.  80 

D. Where to Submit Whistleblower Disclosures. Employees will now submit all whistleblower 81 

disclosures using the Fraud Hotline or by submitting in writing to the Internal Audit Department [see 82 

211.4-3]. Previously, employees also had the option of submitting their disclosures to the Personnel 83 

Commission, Oneida Nation School Board, Oneida Police Commission, or Oneida Gaming 84 

Commission, or to a supervisor, law enforcement official, attorney, or employee advocate. Now, all 85 

employees will submit whistleblower disclosures to one centralized location.  86 

 87 

Chart 1. Comparison of Where to Submit Whistleblower Disclosures.  88 

Employee Protection Policy (current) Whistleblower Protection Law (proposed) 

Employee Submits to one of the following:   
▪ Internal Audit, 
▪ Gaming Commission, 
▪ School Board, 
▪ Police Commission, 
▪ Personnel Commission, or 
▪ Supervisor, Law Enforcement Agency, 

Attorney retained by employee, or 
Employee Advocate, who will direct 
the disclosure to one of the “appropriate 
agencies” listed above.    

Employee Submits to one of the following:  
▪ Anonymous Fraud Hotline 
▪ Internal Audit  

 89 

▪ Anonymous Fraud Hotline. An Anonymous Fraud Hotline has been developed by the 90 

Internal Audit Department. The hotline will be operated by a third-party vendor and will be 91 

available 24 hours per day, seven days per week. The purpose of the hotline is to provide a 92 

centralized and anonymous way to report fraud, unlawful, unethical and other types of 93 

improper behavior. For more details regarding the hotline, see Section 9 “Other 94 

Considerations.” 95 

o Contents of Disclosure. The proposed Whistleblower Protection Law does not describe any 96 

specific information that must be included in the disclosure. In comparison, the current 97 

Employee Protection Policy requires employees to submit a written, dated, signed disclosure 98 

that is hand carried, mail certified or delivered by law enforcement. The current Employee 99 

Protection Policy also requires employees to identify themselves in the disclosure and identify 100 

the person and persons against whom the claim is made, and provide date, times and summary 101 

of the misconduct.  102 

E. Receipt of Disclosure. After submitting their disclosure, employees will receive an incident number. 103 

This incident number confirms that the employee’s disclosure was received. This will allow employees 104 

10 of 123



Analysis to Draft 2 (PM Draft) 

2018 11 07 

 

Page 4 of 10 
 

to provide evidence of their disclosure should they be retaliated against and need to file a complaint or 105 

grievance in the future [see 211.4-4]. 106 

▪ Comparison to Employee Protection Policy. The current Employee Protection Policy requires 107 

the agency to provide a signed and dated receipt to the employee when they submit their 108 

disclosure. In contrast, the proposed Whistleblower Protection Law requires the employee be 109 

provided with an incident number.  110 

F. Investigation. After receiving a disclosure from the Fraud Hotline or directly from the employee, 111 

Internal Audit has the authority to review and conduct an investigation and/or an audit. Once Internal 112 

Audit’s investigation is complete, they will report their findings to the appropriate entity for further 113 

action, if necessary. For example, the findings could be reported to the Oneida Business Committee, 114 

Oneida Law Office, Human Resources Department, Oneida Police Department or other law 115 

enforcement agency, the Audit Committee, or any other entity of the Nation [see 211.4-5].  116 

G. Protection from Retaliation. If an employee feels they have been retaliated against, they can file a 117 

complaint using the complaint and grievance processes in the Nation’s Personnel Policies and 118 

Procedures, also known as “the Blue Book” [see 211.5-1].  119 

▪ Disciplinary Actions. Chart 2 illustrates the grievance process in the Personnel Policies and 120 

Procedures for disciplinary actions, such as suspensions or termination of employment. If a 121 

disciplinary action is overturned, the employee can be reinstated with back pay. [See 122 

Personnel Policies and Procedures - Section V Employee Relations, 5. Complaints, 123 

Disciplinary Actions and Grievances]. 124 

 125 

Chart 2. Grievance Process for Disciplinary Actions in Personnel Policies and Procedures 126 

  127 

Employee files an 

appeal with Area 

Manager and HRD 

Manager or 

designee

Employee may 

appeal to Personnel 

Commission 

Personnel 

Commission holds a 

hearing

Area Manager 

Issues Decision

Disciplinary Action 

Overturned or 

Modified

Disciplinary Action 

Upheld

Personnel 

Commission Issues 

Decision

Disciplinary Action 

Upheld

Disciplinary Action 

Overturned

Employee receives 

disciplinary action they 

believe is unfair

 128 
o Comparison to Employee Protection Policy. The current Employee Protection Policy 129 

allows employees who have been granted protection to skip a step in the grievance process 130 

and go straight to the Personnel Commission if they feel they have been retaliated against. 131 

This ability to skip a step in the grievance process is removed in the proposed 132 

Whistleblower law [see current Employee Protection Policy, 2 O.C. 211.5-2(b)]. 133 

▪ Non-Disciplinary Actions. Chart 3 depicts the complaint process in the Personnel Policies and 134 

Procedures for non-disciplinary complaints, such as loss of hours or change of schedule. [See 135 

11 of 123



Analysis to Draft 2 (PM Draft) 

2018 11 07 

 

Page 5 of 10 
 

Personnel Policies and Procedures - Section V Employee Relations, 5. Complaints, 136 

Disciplinary Actions and Grievances]. 137 

 138 

Chart 3. Complaint Process for Non-Disciplinary Actions in Personnel Policies and 139 

Procedures  140 

Employee has 

disagreement with 

another employee 

regarding non-

disciplinary action

Employee files 

verbal or written 

complaint with the 

employee’s 
supervisor

Supervisor will 

attempt to resolve 

disagreement

Employee may 

appeal to the Area 

Manager to attempt 

a resolution

No further appeal of 

this process

 141 
o Comparison to Employee Protection Policy. The current Employee Protection Policy 142 

allows employees who have been granted protection to skip the Complaint Process in the 143 

Personnel Policies and Procedures and go straight to their Division Director if they have 144 

received a non-disciplinary action that is retaliatory. This ability to skip the complaint 145 

process and go to the division director is removed in the proposed Whistleblower 146 

Protection law [see current Employee Protection Policy, 2 O.C. 211.5-2(a)]. 147 

H. Requirements for Protection: In order to be protected from retaliation under this law, the employee 148 

must have made a whistleblower disclosure and provide proof of the disclosure in the form of the 149 

incident number provided by the Fraud Hotline or Internal Audit. In addition, the individual who 150 

retaliated against the whistleblower must have been aware the whistleblower disclosed information. 151 

Finally, the action taken against the whistleblower must be retaliatory as a result of the disclosure 152 

[see 211.5-2].  153 

I. Punishment for Retaliation. Individuals who retaliate against employees of the Nation in violation 154 

of this law will be subject to the following consequences [see 211.5-3].  155 

▪ Employees of the Nation.  Employees who retaliate against another employee for making a 156 

whistleblower disclosure will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including 157 

termination, in accordance with the Personnel Policies and Procedures.  158 

▪ Appointed officials. May have their appointment terminated, in accordance with the Nation’s 159 

Boards, Committees and Commissions Law, or may receive sanctions and penalties in 160 

accordance with the Nation’s laws. 161 

▪ Elected officials. May be subject to removal from office in accordance with the Nation’s 162 

Removal Law. Elected officials may also be subject to sanctions and penalties in accordance 163 

with the Nation’s laws.  164 

 165 

SECTION 6. EFFECT ON EXISTING LEGISLATION 166 

A. Employee Protection Policy. This law repeals the current Employee Protection Policy and replaces it 167 

with a new Whistleblower Protection Law.  168 

B. References to Other Laws. The following laws of the Nation are referenced in this law. This law does 169 

not conflict with any of the referenced laws. 170 

▪ Personnel Policies and Procedure. The proposed amendments refer to the Nation’s grievance 171 

procedure [see 211.5-1] and disciplinary process [see 211.5-3(a)] in the Personnel Policies and 172 

Procedures. 173 

12 of 123



Analysis to Draft 2 (PM Draft) 

2018 11 07 

 

Page 6 of 10 
 

▪ Boards, Committees and Commissions Law. The proposed amendments refer to the termination of 174 

appointed officials in the Boards, Committees and Commissions Law [see 211.5-3(d)].  175 

▪ Removal Law. These amendments refer to the removal process for elected officials in the Removal 176 

Law [see 211.5-3(c)].  177 

▪ Internal Audit Law.  The proposed amendments refer to the duties and responsibilities of the 178 

Internal Audit department, which is governed by the Internal Audit Law.  179 

 180 

SECTION 7. EFFECTS ON EXISTING RIGHTS, PRIVILEGES, OR OBLIGATIONS 181 

A. Elimination of “Protected Status” and Ability to Skip a Step in the Complaint and Grievance Process. 182 

Under the current Employee Protection Policy, employees can receive a formal “protected status” upon 183 

making their disclosure to one of the five appropriate agencies. Once an employee is granted protected 184 

status, it allows the employee to skip a step in the complaint and grievance process and go directly to 185 

the Personnel Commission or their Division Director if they are retaliated against [see current 186 

Employee Protection Policy, 2 O.C. 211.5-2]. The proposed Whistleblower Protection Law eliminates 187 

this formal “protected status” and the right to skip a step in the complaint and grievance process.  If an 188 

employee is retaliated against, they must file a complaint or grievance using the normal complaint and 189 

grievance process in the Personnel Policies and Procedures.  At the time this analysis was developed, 190 

the LOC determined that the process in the Personnel Policies and Procedures is sufficient for 191 

whistleblower protection.   192 

B. Elimination of Protective Orders to Human Resources Department. Under the current Employee 193 

Protection Policy, a protected employee who has been retaliated against may request a “protective 194 

order” from the Personnel Commission. This protective order directs the Human Resources Department 195 

to monitor the actions of that employee’s supervisor. Under the proposed Whistleblower Protection 196 

Law, employees will no longer be able to request protective orders from the Personnel Commission. If 197 

an employee is retaliated against, they must file a complaint or grievance using the normal complaint 198 

and grievance process in the Personnel Policies and Procedures. At the time this analysis was 199 

developed, the LOC determined the process in the Personnel Policies and Procedures is sufficient for 200 

whistleblower protection.  201 

C. Impact on Boards, Committees, Commissions and Entities. Under this proposed Whistleblower 202 

Protection Law, the following entities listed in the Employee Protection Policy will no longer be 203 

responsible for receiving employee protection or whistleblower disclosures: Personnel Commission, 204 

Gaming Commission, School Board, and Police Commission. All whistleblower disclosures under 205 

this law will now be reported to the Fraud Hotline or Internal Audit department, which will 206 

investigate disclosures and forward findings to relevant entities for further action, if needed.  207 

 208 

SECTION 9. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS209 

The following is provided for information:  210 

A. Data on Employee Protection Requests from Personnel Commission. The following information 211 

shows how often the current Employee Protection Policy has been used by employees over the last 5 212 

years. Note that as of June 2018, the Oneida Nation employed approximately 2,880 people [Source: 213 

HRD 3rd Quarter Report].  214 

▪ Number of Disclosures. Chart 4 depicts the number of employee protection disclosures made by 215 

employees to the Personnel Commission (OPC). In other words, the number of times employees 216 

shared information with the Personnel Commission and requested protection. Based on this data, 217 

the Personnel Commission received about two (2) employee protection requests per year, on 218 

average.  219 

 220 

 221 

 222 

 223 

13 of 123



Analysis to Draft 2 (PM Draft) 

2018 11 07 

 

Page 7 of 10 
 

 224 

 225 

 226 

Chart 4. Number of Employee Protection Disclosures Submitted to Personnel Commission 227 

YEAR Number of Employee Protection Disclosures 

2012 2 

2013 1 

2014 3 

2015 0 

2016 1 

2017 4 

2018 (January-April)  1 

TOTAL, 2012-2018 12 

o SOURCE: Personnel Commission, communication with staff via email 9/17/2018 228 

 229 

▪ Number of Employees Granted Protection. Of the twelve (12) requests for Employee Protection 230 

between 2012-2018, two (2) employees were granted employee protection. In addition, two (2) 231 

additional employees were granted “interim protection” at the time the OPC was dissolved in April 232 

2018. “Interim protection” was granted during the Personnel Commission’s initial investigation.  233 

B. Data on Employee Protection Requests from Judiciary. In April 2018, the Oneida Business 234 

Committee dissolved the Personnel Commission. The Personnel Commission’s responsibilities 235 

regarding Employee Protection were transferred to the Oneida Judiciary.   236 

▪ According to data provided by the Oneida Law Office, two existing employee protection cases 237 

transferred to the Judiciary in April 2018. In addition, two new cases were filed with the Judiciary 238 

between April and August of 2018.  239 

C. Data on Employee Protection Requests from Other Entities.  240 

▪ Internal Audit Department estimates the department received a total of two or three requests for 241 

Employee Protection from employees of the Nation over the last five years. [Source: Internal Audit 242 

staff.] 243 

▪ Oneida Nation School Board reports they have not received any Employee Protection requests 244 

from School System employees in recent years. [Source: Oneida Nation School Board, 245 

communication with staff via email 10/9/18.] 246 

▪ Oneida Police Commission reports they received one (1) request for Employee Protection over 247 

the last two years. [Source: Oneida Police Commission, communication with staff via email 248 

10/31/18.]  249 

▪ Oneida Gaming Commission reports they have no record of receiving any Employee Protection 250 

requests in the last five years, and that Gaming employees likely submitted their requests to the 251 

Personnel Commission. [Source: Oneida Gaming Commission, communication with staff via email 252 

10/31/18.] 253 

D. Data on Retaliation and Protective Orders from Personnel Commission.  254 

▪ Number of Retaliation Grievances Filed by Employees with Protected Status. One (1) 255 

retaliation grievance was filed by a protected employee between 2012 and April 2018. This means 256 

that of the employees who requested and received employee protection, one employee later alleged 257 

they were retaliated against.  258 

▪ Number of Protective Orders issued by Personnel Commission. Two (2) protective orders were 259 

issued by the Personnel Commission between 2012 and April 2018. An employee may request a 260 

protective order if they have made a disclosure, have been granted protection, and later have been 261 

found to be retaliated against. A protective order directs the Nation’s Human Resources Department 262 

to monitor the actions of the employee’s supervisor.  263 

 264 

14 of 123



Analysis to Draft 2 (PM Draft) 

2018 11 07 

 

Page 8 of 10 
 

E. Comparison Between Employee Protection Policy and Whistleblower Policy. This law repeals and 265 

replaces the Employee Protection Policy with a new Whistleblower Protection Law. Chart 5 illustrates 266 

some of the differences and similarities between the two laws: 267 

 268 

Chart 5. Comparison Between Employee Protection Policy and Whistleblower Policy.  269 

 Employee Protection 
Policy (Current) 

Whistleblower Protection 
Law (Proposed) 

Defines and prohibits 
retaliation?  

Yes. Yes. 
 

Directs employees where and 
how to make their disclosures?  
 

Yes, employees are 
directed to make their 
disclosures to one of 
several appropriate 
agencies.  

Yes, employees are directed to 
make disclosures using the 
anonymous Fraud Hotline or to 
Internal Audit  

Allows employees to report 
anonymously? 

No, employees must 
disclose their identity in 
their written complaint.  

Yes, employees can choose to 
remain anonymous using the 
Fraud Hotline.  

Provides employees with 
documentation (proof) that they 
made a disclosure? 

Yes, employees receive a 
signed and dated receipt.   

Yes, employees will receive an 
incident number from the 
hotline or Internal Audit.   

Employees may be granted a 
formal “protected status” from 
the agency after submitting their 
disclosure?  

Yes, employees may be  
granted formal 
“protected status” from 
an agency. 

No, employees do not receive a 
formal designation of 
“protected status” from the 
agency.  

Allows protected employees to 
skip a step in the complaint and 
grievance process if they are 
retaliated against? 

Yes, employees who 
have been granted 
protection may appeal 
directly to the Personnel 
Commission or Division 
Director if they feel they 
have been retaliated 
against.  

No, if an employee feels they 
have been retaliated against, 
they must use the normal 
complaint and grievance 
process in the Personnel 
Policies and Procedures.  

Employees who have been 
retaliated against can request a 
“protective order” from the 
Personnel Commission? 

Yes, employees who 
have been granted 
protection and are later 
retaliated against may 
request a “protective 
order” directing HRD to 
monitor the actions of 
their supervisor.  

No, employees cannot request a 
“protective order.” Employees 
will need to use the normal 
grievance process in the 
Personnel Policies and 
Procedures if they are retaliated 
against.   

 270 

F. Comparison to other Tribal Nations. A review of whistleblower protection laws from other tribal 271 

nations indicates whistleblower laws are generally brief, one to two documents that include a few basic 272 

provisions. Some laws, such as those from the Ho Chunk Nation and Seminole Nation, are only one 273 

paragraph long. The Whistleblower laws reviewed typically include the following core components: 274 

▪ Ban on retaliation against employees for whistleblowing. 275 

▪ Direct employees where to make whistleblower disclosures. (For example: Attorney General, 276 

Human Resources Department, Office of Inspector General).  277 

o In Oneida’s proposed Whistleblower Law, employees will report their disclosures to the 278 

anonymous Fraud Hotline or Internal Audit Department.  279 

15 of 123



Analysis to Draft 2 (PM Draft) 

2018 11 07 

 

Page 9 of 10 
 

▪ In addition, some whistleblower laws describe remedies for employees that have been retaliated 280 

against, such as job reinstatement, back pay for lost wages, and damages.  281 

o Oneida’s proposed Whistleblower Law directs employees to use the grievance process in 282 

the Personnel Policies and Procedures, which allows the Area Manager or Personnel 283 

Commission to overturn disciplinary actions, reinstate employees who have been 284 

terminated, and award back pay.   285 

G. Grandfather Clause for Current Protected Employees & Pending Cases. Based on data received from 286 

the Judiciary and Personnel Commission, there are a small number of employees who currently have 287 

protected status under the Employee Protection Policy. In addition, there may be at least one (1) 288 

employee protection related case pending in the Judiciary. Therefore, the LOC intends to include a 289 

grandfather clause in the adopting resolution to ensure the following:  290 

▪ Employees who currently have protected status will still retain some form of protection upon 291 

adoption of this law.  292 

▪ Pending cases related to Employee Protection Policy will be allowed to proceed.  293 

▪ The LOC must still determine the details of the grandfather clause. The LOC may want to consider 294 

the following: 295 

o Will employees who have been granted protection be allowed to keep their protected status, 296 

and if so, for what length of time?  297 

o Will employees with protected status be allowed to use the grievance process in the 298 

Employee Protection Policy after it is repealed? Or will they instead be directed to follow 299 

the grievance process in the Whistleblower Protection Law for future retaliation 300 

grievances?   301 

▪ Recommendation: The details of the grandfather clause in the adopting resolution is a policy 302 

decision.   303 

H. Fraud Hotline. A Fraud Hotline has been developed by the Internal Audit Department. The anonymous 304 

Fraud Hotline will be administered by a third-party vendor and available 24 hours per day, seven days 305 

per week. The purpose of the hotline is to provide a centralized, anonymous way to report issues of 306 

fraud, unlawful, unethical and other types of improper behavior. Callers to the hotline have the option 307 

to either remain anonymous or reveal their identity.  308 

▪ Hotline Process. A report of the call will be generated by the third-party vendor, who will send the 309 

report to Internal Audit. Internal Audit will review all hotline reports and determine whether an 310 

investigation is needed. If necessary, Internal Audit will conduct a confidential investigation. Once 311 

Internal Audit’s investigation is complete, they will report their findings to the appropriate entity 312 

for further action, if necessary. For example, the findings could be reported to the Oneida Business 313 

Committee, Oneida Law Office, Human Resources Department, Oneida Police Department or other 314 

law enforcement agency, the Audit Committee, or any other entity of the Nation 315 

▪ Hotline Implementation. At the time this analysis was drafted, Internal Audit estimates the Fraud 316 

Hotline will ready to go live by the end of October 2018. In addition, Internal Audit reports that 317 

training will be conducted for all employees of the Nation followed by annual refresher trainings. 318 

At the time this analysis was drafted, it is expected that this training will be held in December 2018.  319 

▪ Recommendation: The LOC should consider consulting with HRD Training and Development and 320 

Internal Audit regarding the implementation date for this law and any additional training that may 321 

be necessary upon roll out.   322 

I. Whistleblower Law in Absence of Hotline. This law has been drafted so that in the future, if the Fraud 323 

Hotline is ever eliminated or malfunctions, the Whistleblower Protection Law and the protections it 324 

provides will still function. For example, employees will still be able to submit their disclosures to 325 

Internal Audit, but will submit them in writing instead of to the hotline.   326 

J. Reference to Sanctions and Penalties. This law references sanctions and penalties. The Legislative 327 

Operating Committee (LOC) is currently drafting a Sanctions and Penalties Law to increase 328 

accountability among elected and appointed officials of the Nation. Currently, the only reprimand 329 

16 of 123



Analysis to Draft 2 (PM Draft) 

2018 11 07 

 

Page 10 of 10 
 

available for appointed and elected officials is termination of appointment or removal from office. 330 

However, there may be instances of misconduct that do not rise to the level of removal. In these cases, 331 

other sanctions such as verbal warnings, written warnings, suspension or fines may be more 332 

appropriate. The proposed Sanctions and Penalties law will create a formal complaint process and allow 333 

for corrective actions against officials who violate laws, bylaws and SOPs of the Nation. At the time 334 

this analysis was drafted, the LOC intends to present a Sanctions and Penalties Law to GTC for 335 

consideration once the draft is complete and all legislative requirements are met.  336 

 337 

K. Please refer to the fiscal impact statement for any fiscal impacts. 338 

 339 

 340 

 341 

17 of 123



Draft 2 – PM Draft 
2018 12 03  

2 O.C. 211 – Page 1 

Title 2. Employment – Chapter 211 
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTION 

 
211.1  Purpose and Policy 

211.2  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 
211.3  Definitions 

211.4 Disclosure of Information 

211.5 Protection from Retaliation  

 1 

211.1.  Purpose and Policy 2 

211.1-1.   The purpose of this law is to give protection to employees who give information that is 3 

intended to protect the Nation from fraud, theft or other detrimental effects. 4 

211.1-2.   It is the policy of the Oneida Nation to extend protection to employees who act within 5 

this law to protect the Nation's interests. 6 

 7 

211.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 8 

211.2-1.   This law was adopted by the Oneida Business Committee by resolution BC-__-__-__-9 

__. 10 

211.2-2.  This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida Business Committee and/or the 11 

General Tribal Council pursuant to the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act.  12 

211.2-3.  Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 13 

be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are considered 14 

to have legal force without the invalid portions. 15 

211.2-4.  In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 16 

the provisions of this law shall control, provided that this law repeals the following: 17 

(a)  The Employee Protection Policy adopted by emergency pursuant to BC-04-20-95-B, 18 

permanently adopted pursuant to BC-12-06-95-B and subsequently amended pursuant to 19 

BC-01-20-99-B, BC-06-30-04-J, and BC-02-25-15-C. 20 

211.2-5.  This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation. 21 

 22 

211.3.  Definitions 23 

211.3-1.   This section shall govern the definitions of words as phrases used within this law. All 24 

words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 25 

(a)  “Employee” means any individual hired by the Nation and on the Nation’s payroll and 26 

encompasses all forms of employment, including but not limited to: full-time, part-time, 27 

at-will, political appointees, and contracted persons. 28 

(b)  “Entity” means a department, program, service, board, committee, or commission of 29 

the Nation. 30 

(c)  “Nation” means the Oneida Nation. 31 

(d)  “Official” means an individual elected or appointed to serve on a board, committee, or 32 

commission of the Nation, including the Oneida Business Committee. 33 

 34 

211.4.  Disclosure of Information  35 

211.4-1.  Whistleblowing occurs when an employee discloses information that the employee 36 

reasonably believes provides evidence that protects the Nation from any adverse actions of its 37 

employees that may result in a detrimental effect to the Nation. Adverse action that may result in 38 

a detrimental effect to the Nation includes, but is not limited to: 39 

(a)  Any dishonest or fraudulent act; 40 

(b)  Deceptive business practices; 41 

(c)  Theft; 42 

18 of 123



Draft 2 – PM Draft 
2018 12 03  

2 O.C. 211 – Page 2 

(d)  Extortion; 43 

(e)  Bribery; 44 

(f)  Embezzlement; 45 

(g)  Blackmail; 46 

(h)  Tampering and/or falsifying records contracts, or reports;  47 

(i)  Forgery; 48 

(j)  Misappropriate and/or misuse of the Nation’s funds; 49 

(k)  Disclosure of confidential information; 50 

(l)  Destruction, removal, or inappropriate use of property of the Nation; 51 

(m)  Unsafe working conditions; 52 

(n)  Poor management; 53 

(o)  Unethical conduct and conduct that violates a law and/or policy of the Nation. 54 

211.4-2.  An employee shall be protected from retaliatory action that results from making a 55 

disclosure of information as directed within this law. Retaliatory action includes all action whether 56 

disciplinary or otherwise. 57 

(a)  Disciplinary action that may be retaliatory includes, but is not limited to: 58 

(1)  dismissal;  59 

(2)  demotion; 60 

(3)  transfer; 61 

(4)  removal of duty; 62 

(5)  refusal to restore; 63 

(6)  layoff; 64 

(7)  furlough;  65 

(8)  suspension; and/or 66 

(9)  reprimand. 67 

(b)  Action other than disciplinary action that may be retaliatory may include, but is not 68 

limited to: 69 

(1)  loss of hours; 70 

(2)  rescheduling shifts outside of normal shift changes; 71 

(3)  change of job requirements without notice; 72 

(4)  verbal or physical harassment; 73 

(5)  reduction of pay; 74 

(6)  denial of educational benefits; 75 

(7)  reassignment; and/or 76 

(8)  failure to increase base pay. 77 

(c)  Any action that can be reasonably justified as taken in good faith based on documented 78 

employee performance shall be excluded from classification as retaliatory action. 79 

211.4-3.  An employee shall make a disclosure of information through the: 80 

(a)  use of the anonymous Fraud hotline; or 81 

(b)  submission of a written disclosure to the Nation’s Internal Audit Department. 82 

211.4-4.  Once a disclosure of information is made, the disclosing employee shall be provided an 83 

incident number confirming receipt of the disclosure.  84 

211.4-5.  The Internal Audit Department shall then have the authority to review the disclosure and 85 

conduct an investigation and/or an internal audit into the disclosure, if deemed appropriate. Upon 86 

the conclusion of the investigation the Internal Audit Department shall, where necessary, report 87 

their findings to an appropriate entity for action to address the findings, including, but not limited 88 

to, the: 89 

(a)  Oneida Business Committee; 90 

19 of 123



Draft 2 – PM Draft 
2018 12 03  

2 O.C. 211 – Page 3 

(b)  Oneida Law Office or other legal prosecuting agency; 91 

(c)  Human Resources Department; 92 

(d)  Oneida Police Department or other law enforcement agency; 93 

(e)  Audit Committee; and/or 94 

(f)  any other entity of the Nation. 95 

 96 

211.5.  Protection from Retaliation 97 

211.5-1.  If an employee alleges retaliatory action has been threatened or taken based on the 98 

employee’s disclosure of information under this law, the employee may file a complaint for the 99 

retaliatory action in accordance with the grievance procedures provided in the Nation’s laws and 100 

policies governing employment. 101 

211.5-2.  The employee shall be protected from the retaliatory action if the following is found: 102 

(a)  the employee made a disclosure of information; 103 

(1) The confirmation of disclosure that is provided when information is disclosed, 104 

as well as any resulting findings by the Internal Audit Department, shall be used as 105 

a reference to prove a disclosure of information. 106 

(b)  the individual alleged to have taken retaliatory action against the disclosing employee 107 

was aware or became aware the disclosing employee had disclosed information; 108 

(c)  the action taken against the disclosing employee was retaliatory as a result of the 109 

disclosure of information. 110 

211.5-3.  An individual who is found to have retaliated against an employee who made a disclosure 111 

of information pursuant to this law shall be subject to: 112 

(a)  disciplinary action, up to and including termination, pursuant to the Nation’s laws and 113 

policies governing employees, if an employee of the Nation;  114 

(b)  sanctions and penalties pursuant to the Nation’s laws and policies governing sanctions 115 

and penalties, if an official of the Nation; 116 

(c)  removal pursuant to the Nation’s laws and policies governing removal, if an elected 117 

official; and/or 118 

(d)  termination of appointment pursuant to the Nation’s laws and policies governing 119 

boards, committees, and commissions, if an appointed official. 120 

 121 

End. 122 

 123 

Adopted - BC-__-__-__-__ 124 

 125 

 126 

20 of 123



 

Page 1 of 3 

 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  
 

 
 

   Legislative Operating Committee 
November 7, 2018 

 

Sanctions and Penalties Law                     
Submission Date: 9/6/17 Public Meeting: 10/4/18 

LOC Sponsor:   Jennifer Webster Emergency Enacted: n/a 
 
Summary:  This item was carried over from the previous term.  The original proposal was to 

develop a consistent process that would provide for members of the Oneida Business Committee and 
other Boards, Committees and Commissions to face sanctions for misconduct. Currently, the only 
penalty that OBC members may be subject to, is removal from office – meaning that less serious 
misconduct would either go unpunished or would result in a penalty that might be considered too 
extreme for a particular violation.   

 

9/6/17 LOC: Motion by Ernest Stevens III to add Sanctions and Penalties Law to the active files list with 
Jennifer Webster as the sponsor; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

9/6/17: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jenny Webster Ernest Stevens III, Jennifer Falck, 
Clorissa Santiago, Candice Skenandore, Maureen Perkins, Tani Thurner. Drafting attorney 
provided an update on the status of the Sanctions and Penalties law. Next steps will be: 1) 
pull the current draft back, 2) hold community meetings to understand what 
sanctions/penalties the community is interested in, 3) meeting with the 
boards/committees/commissions for input, and 4) holding work meeting with LOC to make 
policy decisions and choose next steps. 

11/1/17 LOC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen to approve the 60 day active files list update and continue 
development of all the items on the active files list; seconded by Ernie Stevens III. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

11/1/17: Work Meeting. Present: Carol Silva, Bonnie Pigman, Ed Delgado, Rachel Hill, Matthew 
Denny, Reynold Danforth, Kirby Metoxen, Rosa Laster, Clorissa Santiago, Candice 
Skenandore, Maureen Perkins, Jennifer Falck. Representatives from all the B/C/C’s were 
invited to this meeting to provide input on what a Sanctions & Penalties Law might look like. 

12/6/17: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Webster, Ernest Stevens 
III, Daniel Guzman King, Clorissa Santiago, Jennifer Falck. The LOC reviewed and 
considered comments from the November 1, 2017, work meeting with boards, committees, 
and commissions. LOC began making policy decisions. Drafter will work on draft, and policy 
options, and bring materials back to LOC when ready. 

3/9/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Webster, Clorissa 
Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Rosa Laster, Laura Laitinen-Warren. LOC reviewed the first 
draft of the law, and directed that the LRO schedule a community meeting, with a special 
invitation to members of boards, committees, and commissions, to discuss the proposed law. 

21 of 123



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

3/16/18: Work Meeting: Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman, Ernest Stevens 
III, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Cathy Bachhuber, Rosa Laster. The LOC reviewed 
the potential date for the community meeting, and directed the drafting attorney to schedule 
the community meeting for May 3, 2018, and to ensure the notice is published in the 
Kalihwisaks twice, an appointment is sent to all members of the LOC and boards, 
committees, and commissions, and that the Communications Department is included in the 
appointment so they can make efforts to communicate notice of the event. 

4/2/18 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the draft of the Sanctions and Penalties law and direct 
that a community meeting/potluck be held on May 3, 2018; seconded by Daniel Guzman 
King. Motion carried unanimously. 

4/26/18: Work Meeting: Present: Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Jennifer Falck. This was an 
LRO prep meeting to prepare a plan for the upcoming community meeting. 

4/27/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Ernest Stevens III, Daniel Guzman 
King, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Rosa Laster, Cathy Bachhuber, 
Tani Thurner. The purpose of this work meeting was to prepare for the upcoming community 
meeting. 

5/2/18: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Jennifer Falck, David P. 
Jordan, Jennifer Webster. The LOC continued to prepare and discuss the upcoming 
community meeting. 

5/3/18: Community Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Kirby Metoxen, Ernest 
Stevens III, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Maureen Perkins, Carol 
Silva, Chad Wilson, Janice McLester, Gina Buenrostro, Winnifred Thomas, Brooke Doxtator, 
Ed Delgado, Oyanolu Adams, Michelle Braaten, Mark Powless, Cathy L. Metoxen, Carole 
Liggins, Madelyn Genskow. The purpose of this community meeting was to gain input on the 
proposed Sanctions and Penalties law. 

5/11/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Kirby Metoxen, Ernest Stevens 
III, Daniel Guzman, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Jennifer Falck. The purpose of 
this work meeting was to review the comments received during the community meeting, and 
to determine if any revisions should be made to the law. The drafting attorney will update the 
draft of the law based on this discussion. 

5/16/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman King, Kirby 
Metoxen, Ernest Stevens III, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Laura 
Laitinen-Warren. The purpose of this work meeting was to review and discuss the revisions 
to the draft made based on comments collected from the community meeting. Drafting 
attorney will update the draft. 

6/6/18/ LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the draft of the Sanctions and Penalties law and direct 
that a legislative analysis be completed; seconded by Ernest Stevens III. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

7/9/18: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Brooke Doxtator. The purpose 
of this work meeting was to review the BCSO’s involvement in the Sanctions and Penalties 
law to ensure their role can be implemented as required by law. 

7/18/18 LOC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen to accept the legislative analysis for the Sanctions and Penalties 
Law and defer to a work meeting; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

8/1/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Kirby Metoxen, Ernest Stevens 
III, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Kristen Hooker. The purpose of this 
work meeting was to review and consider the legislative analysis. 

22 of 123



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

8/15/18 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the public meeting packet and forward the Sanctions 
and Penalties Law to a public meeting to be held on September 20, 2018; seconded by Kirby 
Metoxen. Motion carried unanimously.  

 Subsequent Motion by Jennifer Webster to forward the Sanctions & Penalties Law to the 
Finance Office for a fiscal analysis to be completed; seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

9/10/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Ernest Stevens III, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa 
Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Kristen Hooker, Cathy Bachhuber, Maureen Perkins. The 
purpose of this work meeting was to discuss the fact that the September 20, 2018 public 
meeting on the proposed law will have to be canceled due to the Kalihwisaks failing to 
publish the public meeting notice in the September 6, 2018, edition. The LOC determined the 
next steps for moving the public meeting forward – an e-poll of an updated public meeting 
notice will be completed and the appointment that was sent out changed to reflect the new 
date. 

 E-poll conducted. 

9/19/18 LOC: Motion by Daniel Guzman King to enter the e-poll results into the record; seconded by 
Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously. 

10/4/18: Public Meeting Held. 

10/17/18 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the public meeting memo comments and public 
meeting comment review memorandum and defer to a work meeting; seconded by Daniel 
Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously. 

10/17/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman, Ernest Stevens 
III, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Kristen Hooker, Rosa Laster. 
The purpose of this work meeting was for the LOC to begin reviewing and considering the 
public comments that were received, and to make determinations on what revisions to the 
Law are necessary.  

10/25/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Kirby Metoxen, Ernest Stevens 
III, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Kristen Hooker. The purpose of 
this work meeting was for the LOC to continue reviewing and considering the public 
comments that were received, and to make determinations on what revisions to the Law are 
necessary. LRO will update the draft for the next LOC packet so a fiscal analysis can be 
requested. 

 
Next Steps: 
▪ Accept the updated draft and public comment review memorandum. 
 

23 of 123



 

Page 1 of 71 

 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54115-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov   
 
 
 
TO:  Legislative Operating Committee (LOC) 
FROM: Clorissa N. Santiago, Legislative Reference Office, Staff Attorney 
DATE:  October 17, 2018 
RE: Sanctions and Penalties Law: Public Meeting Comment Review 

 
On October 4, 2018, a public meeting was held regarding a proposed Sanctions and Penalties law 
(“the Law”). The public comment period was then held open until October 11, 2018. This 
memorandum is submitted as a review of the oral and written comments received within the public 
meeting and public comment period. 
 
Comment 1 –  Sanctions and Penalties Referendum: 
 
Lisa Liggins (oral):  First I would like to thank the LOC and LRO for all their work, including 
this draft together.  I submitted the referendum question in 2016 and was glad to see that it was 
supported and I looked forward to the draft being forwarded to General Tribal Council for 
consideration. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter thanks the Legislative Operating Committee and the Legislative Reference Office 
for the work in completing a draft of the proposed Sanctions and Penalties law, as the commenter 
submitted a referendum question on the matter in 2016. 
 
The July 2016 Special Election ballot contained a referendum question which asked, “Should the 
BC develop a law which provides for sanctions and due process for elected officials?” This 
referendum question was approved by a vote of one hundred and seventy-eight (178) to fifty-nine 
(59) during the July 2016 Special Election to be presented to General Tribal Council. 
 
A referendum question that receives a majority vote is not automatically enacted into law, it is 
simply an expression of the membership that the issue should be brought forward for discussion 
and action. 1 O.C 102.12-9(a)].  
 
On July 26, 2017, a legal opinion of the referendum question was submitted to the Oneida Business 
Committee, with the conclusion that there are no legal prohibitions regarding adoption of this type 
of a law. 
 
The proposed Sanctions and Penalties law will ultimately be submitted to the General Tribal 
Council for consideration of adoption. 
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

24 of 123



 

Page 2 of 71 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee appreciates the gratitude for the work completed on this 
legislative item. The Legislative Operating Committee determined there is no revision to the Law 
necessary based on this comment. 
 
Comment 2 – Purpose and Policy: 
 
120.1.  Purpose and Policy 
120.1-1. Purpose. The purpose of this law is to establish a consistent set of sanctions and 
penalties that may be imposed upon elected and appointed officials of the Nation, including 
members of the Oneida Business Committee, for misconduct in office; and to establish an 
orderly and fair process for imposing such sanctions and penalties. This law does not apply 
to judges of the Oneida Nation Judiciary. 
 
Bonnie Pigman (written): The draft Sanctions and Penalties law states the purpose "is to establish 
a consistent set of sanction and penalties that maybe imposed upon elected and appointed officials 
of the Nation, including members of the Oneida Business Committee, for misconduct in office; 
and to establish an orderly and fair process for imposing such sanctions and penalties." 
 
Comment: I could agree with the purpose "if” the context in other laws such as the Board, 
Committee, Commission law didn't expressly excludes the Business Committee as an elected 
entity. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter disagrees with the purpose of this Law due to the fact that the Oneida Business 
Committee is not subject to the provisions of the Boards, Committees, and Commissions law. 
 
It is important to remember that the exemption of an entity of the Nation from the provisions of 
one law does not necessarily affect the application of a different law to that very same entity. 
 
The Boards, Committees, and Commissions law purposefully exempts the Oneida Business 
Committee by clearly stating that the law does not apply to the Oneida Business Committee. [1 
O.C. 105.1-1(a)]. 
 
The Oneida Business Committee is one (1) of only three (3) governmental bodies formally 
recognized by the Constitution and Bylaws of the Oneida Nation, the others being the General 
Tribal Council as the governing body of the Nation when in session, and the Judiciary as the 
judicial authority of the Nation. The Oneida Business Committee is delegated the authority by the 
Constitution to perform such duties as authorized by the General Tribal Council. [Constitution 
Article III, Section 3]. The Constitution provides various requirements for the Oneida Business 
Committee such as: 

▪ Who may run for office with the Oneida Business Committee (must be age twenty-one (21) 

or over and physically reside in either Brown or Outagamie Counties); 

▪ How many members may sit on the Oneida Business Committee (overall nine (9) 

members); 

25 of 123



 

Page 3 of 71 

 

▪ What officer positions must be held on the Oneida Business Committee (necessary to have 

a chairman, a vice chairman, a treasurer, and a secretary); 

▪ What constitutes a quorum (a majority of the body including the chairman or vice 

chairman); 

▪ How regular meetings will be established (by resolution of the Oneida Business 

Committee); 

▪ Notice requirements for special meetings (three (3) day advance notice by the chairman to 

all members or upon written request of a majority of the Oneida Business Committee 

stating the time, place, and purpose of the special meeting); 

▪ How vacancies are filled (General Tribal Council may at any regular special meeting fill 

any vacancies that occur on the Oneida Business Committee for an unexpired term);  

▪ How Oneida Business Committee members are removed (at the discretion of the General 

Tribal Council by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote at any regular or special meeting of the 

General Tribal Council pursuant to a duly adopted ordinance); and  

▪ How often Oneida Business Committee members are elected (every three years in the 

month of July). 

[see Constitution Article III, Section 3 and Article III, Section 4]. 
 

Many of the standards and requirements that the Boards, Committees, and Commissions law sets 
forth for boards, committees, and commissions of the Nation are already addressed by the 
Constitution in terms of application to the Oneida Business Committee. Therefore, it is not that 
the Oneida Business Committee is exempt from many of the same requirements as other boards, 
committees, and commissions of the Nation are expected to comply with, it is just that the 
standards and requirements for the Oneida Business Committee are addressed through other 
legislative means. 
 
In recognition of the fact that the Oneida Business Committee is a constitutionally recognized 
extension of the General Tribal Council, and the fact that the standards and procedures regarding 
the Oneida Business Committee are already addressed by other legislative means, the Oneida 
Business Committee was exempted from the provisions of the Boards, Committees, and 
Commissions law.  
 
On the other hand, this Law clearly states that the Oneida Business Committee is to be subject to 
the provisions of this law. [120.1-1, 120.3-1(i), 120.3-1(m)]. The members of the Oneida Business 
Committee are subject to the provisions of this Law because there is no other legislation of the 
Nation that provides a process for addressing misconduct of an elected official outside of the 
Removal law. Therefore, the Legislative Operating Committee intended to develop one (1) law 
that could apply to all elected officials of the Nation, including the Oneida Business Committee 
members. 
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

26 of 123



 

Page 4 of 71 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee understands and supports the explanation as to why the 
Oneida Business Committee is subject to the provisions of the Sanctions and Penalties law, and 
not subject to the Boards, Committees, and Commissions law. The Legislative Operating 
Committee determined there is no revision to the Law necessary based on this comment. 
 
Comment 3 – Application of the Law to the Oneida Business Committee: 
 
120.1. Purpose and Policy 
120.1-1. Purpose. The purpose of this law is to establish a consistent set of sanctions and 
penalties that may be imposed upon elected and appointed officials of the Nation, including 
members of the Oneida Business Committee, for misconduct in office; and to establish an 
orderly and fair process for imposing such sanctions and penalties. This law does not apply 
to judges of the Oneida Nation Judiciary. 
 
120.3.  Definitions 
120.3-1.  This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  
All words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 

(i)  “Entity” means a board, committee or commission of the Nation, including the 
Oneida Business Committee.  
(m)  “Official” means any person who is elected or appointed to serve on a board, 
committee or commission of the Nation, including the Oneida Business Committee.  

 
Bonnie Pigman (written): On page 2 of 13 in the public meeting packet line 22 reflects a box that 
identifies elected and appointed Board, Committee, Commission's. The Business Committee states 
this law applies to them, however, they are clearly not included in the box. (This shows perspective, 
meaning the Business Committee is separate from all other "elected officials"). 
 
Response 

 

The commenter implies that the Oneida Business Committee does not see themselves as subject 
to this law since the box contained on page two (2) of the legislative analysis that identifies elected 
and appointed boards, committees, and commissions of the Nation does not include the Oneida 
Business Committee. 
 
The Law is clear that members of the Oneida Business Committee are subject to the provisions of 
this Law. The Law states that the purpose of this law is to establish a consistent set of sanctions 
and penalties that may be imposed upon elected and appointed officials of the Nation, including 
members of the Oneida Business Committee, for misconduct in office; and to establish an orderly 
and fair process for imposing such sanctions and penalties. This law does not apply to judges of 
the Oneida Nation Judiciary. [1 O.C. 120.1-1]. The Law then goes on to define official as any 
person who is elected or appointed to serve on a board, committee or commission of the Nation, 
including the Oneida Business Committee. [1 O.C. 120.3-1(m)], and defines entity as a board, 
committee or commission of the Nation, including the Oneida Business Committee. [1 O.C. 120.3-
1(i)]. 
 

27 of 123



 

Page 5 of 71 

 

Line twenty (20) of the legislative analysis, which appears two (2) lines above the chart referenced 
by the commenter clearly states that the Oneida Business Committee is subject to the provisions 
of this Law. Line twenty-one (21) of the legislative analysis then states that all other boards, 
committees, and commissions are subject to the provisions of this Law. The box found on page 
two (2) simply provides a visual breakdown of which boards, committees, and commissions are 
appointed and which are elected. 
 
The legislative analysis is a plain language analysis describing the important features of the 
legislation being considered as well as factual information to enable the Legislative Operating 
Committee to make informed decisions regarding legislation. [1 O.C. 109.3-1(g)]. The legislative 
analysis includes: 

1. a statement of the legislation’s terms and substance;  
2. intent of the legislation;  
3. a description of the subject(s) involved;  
4. a description of any conflicts with Oneida or other law; 
5. a description of  key issues; and 
6. a description of the potential impacts of the legislation and policy considerations. 
[1 O.C. 109.3-1(g)] 

 
The legislative analysis is a tool used during the legislative process to help inform the Legislative 
Operating Committee and community on the development of a law. Although the legislative 
analysis provides a valuable breakdown of essential information that is used in the development 
of a law, it is ultimately the provisions within the law itself that govern and control. Therefore, the 
reader’s understanding of the law should be based on the provisions of the law itself, and not solely 
on the legislative analysis, or any perceived inconsistencies within the legislative analysis. 
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 
The Legislative Operating Committee determined there is no revision to the Law necessary based 
on this comment. 
 
Comment 4 –  Application of the Law to the Legal Resource Center Advocates: 
 
120.1.  Purpose and Policy 
120.1-1. Purpose. The purpose of this law is to establish a consistent set of sanctions and 
penalties that may be imposed upon elected and appointed officials of the Nation, including 
members of the Oneida Business Committee, for misconduct in office; and to establish an 
orderly and fair process for imposing such sanctions and penalties. This law does not apply 
to judges of the Oneida Nation Judiciary. 
 
Lisa Liggins (oral):  Lines 4 and 5 indicate the law applies to elected and appointed officials, 
including members of the Oneida Business Committee.  Lines 5 and 6 state that the law does not 
apply to judges of the Judiciary.  In the analysis, earlier in the meeting packet, there is a table that 
lists the 18 appointed and elected boards, committees and commissions to which this law applies 

28 of 123



 

Page 6 of 71 

 

and the Legal Resource Center is not included.  Chapter 8-11, which is the Legal Resource Center 
laws organized under Title 8, The Judiciary.  Section 8-11.7 of the Legal Resource Center law 
covers discipline and removal of attorneys and advocates and states they are subject to disciplinary 
action pursuant to the Professional Conduct of Attorneys and Advocates law and any other law 
that governs discipline or removal of elected positions.  So it’s unclear to me if the Sanctions and 
Penalties law applies to the attorneys and advocates for the Legal Resource Center.  If it does then 
perhaps just the analysis needs to be updated.  If it does not, then I think that the language in Line 
6 and 7 should to be updated. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter questions whether the attorney and advocates of the Nation’s Legal Resource 
Center are subject to the provisions of this Law.  
 
The Nation’s Legal Resource Center was established by the adoption of the Legal Resource Center 
law for the purpose of providing legal advice and representation to both Tribal members and 
employees in cases before the Judiciary and to represent the Oneida General Tribal Council at 
General Tribal Council meetings. [8 O.C. 811.1-1, 811.4-1]. The Legal Resource Center consists 
of at least one (1) full-time attorney and at least two (2) full-time advocates, all of which shall be 
elected by the Nation’s membership. [8 O.C. 811.5-1, 811.5-2, 811.6-1, 811.6-2].  
 
The Legal Resource Center law states that attorneys and advocates shall be subject to disciplinary 
actions pursuant to the Professional Conduct for Attorneys and Advocates law and any other laws 
that govern discipline and/or removal of elected positions. [8 O.C. 811.7-1].  
 
The Professional Conduct for Attorneys and Advocates law governs the conduct of attorneys and 
advocates that are admitted to practice law before the Judiciary. [8 O.C. 810.1-1]. The Professional 
Conduct for Attorneys and Advocates law sets standards for the behaviors of attorneys and 
advocates, as well as outlines what constitutes misconduct. A client alleging that an attorney or 
advocate was negligent or violated a duty under the Professional Conduct for Attorneys and 
Advocates law may initiate a civil action against the attorney or advocate by filing a complaint 
with the Trial Court. [8 O.C. 810.22-1]. The Professional Conduct for Attorneys and Advocates 
law also allows the Trial Court to hear complaints filed regarding any disciplinary actions 
pertaining to this law. [8 O.C. 810.23-1]. Complaints of alleged violations of the Professional 
Conduct for Attorneys and Advocates law may be filed on behalf of the client with the Trial Court 
or initiated by the Judiciary. [8 O.C. 810.23-2]. 
 
Although the Professional Conduct for Attorneys and Advocates law provides a process for both 
a civil action against an attorney or advocate, and a disciplinary action against an attorney or 
advocate, both of those actions are specific to violations of the Professional Conduct for Attorney 
and Advocates law, and do not necessarily address any violations of other laws and/or policies of 
the Nation. It may be for that reason that the Legal Resource Center law alluded to an attorney or 
advocate of the Legal Resource Center being subject to any other laws that govern discipline and/or 
removal of elected positions. 
 

29 of 123



 

Page 7 of 71 

 

Although the purpose of this Law is stated generally as establishing a consistent set of sanctions 
and penalties that may be imposed upon all elected and appointed officials of the Nation, some 
definitions of terms included in the Law may exclude the Legal Resource Center advocates and 
attorney. 
 
An “official” is defined as any person who is elected or appointed to serve on a board, committee 
or commission of the Nation, including the Oneida Business Committee. [1 O.C. 120.3-1(m)]. An 
“entity” is then defined as a board, committee or commission of the Nation, including the Oneida 
Business Committee. [1 O.C. 120.3-1(i)]. The Legal Resource Center is not technically a board, 
committee, or commission of the Nation, and therefore does not meet the definition of official or 
entity under this Law. Due to the definitions, the Legal Resource Center advocates and attorney 
would not be subject to the provisions of this Law. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether the Legal Resource Center advocates 
and attorney should be subject to this Law. The Legislative Operating Committee may determine: 

1. The Legal Resource Center advocates and attorney are not subject to the provisions of this 
Law.  

a. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this determination, then it is 
recommended that a provision be added to section 120.1-1 of the Law clearly 
stating that the Legal Resource Center advocates and attorney are not subject to the 
provisions of this Law. 

2. The Legal Resource Center advocates and attorney should be subject to the provisions of 
this Law as they are officials that were elected by the membership. 

a. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this determination, then it is 
recommended that the definitions for “official” and “entity” be amended as follows: 
 
(i)  “Entity” means a board, committee, or commission, office, or center of the 
Nation, including the Oneida Business Committee.  
 
(m)  “Official” means any person who is elected or appointed to serve on a board, 
committee, or commission, office, center, or other position of the Nation, including 
the Oneida Business Committee.  

 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee discussed the application of this Law to the Legal Resource 
Center attorney and advocates and determined that the Legal Resource Center attorney and 
advocates should be subject to the provisions of this Law. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee determined that this Law should apply to the advocates and 
attorney in the Legal Resource Center because they are elected officials, and therefore there should 
be some general sanctions available for alleged misconduct not covered by the Professional 
Conduct of Attorneys and Advocates law. 
 

30 of 123



 

Page 8 of 71 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined the definitions for both entity and official should 
be made more general than the recommended revision, and decided to include the following 
revision to the Law based on this comment: 

(i)  “Entity” means a board, committee, or commission, office, or other group of the Nation 
an individual may be appointed or elected to serve a position on, including the Oneida 
Business Committee.  
 
(m)  “Official” means any person who is elected or appointed to serve a position for the 
Nation, including, but not limited to, those positions on a board, committee, or commission, 
or office of the Nation, including the Oneida Business Committee.  

 
Comment 5 – Application to All Boards of the Nation: 
 
120.1.  Purpose and Policy 
120.1-1. Purpose. The purpose of this law is to establish a consistent set of sanctions and 
penalties that may be imposed upon elected and appointed officials of the Nation, including 
members of the Oneida Business Committee, for misconduct in office; and to establish an 
orderly and fair process for imposing such sanctions and penalties. This law does not apply 
to judges of the Oneida Nation Judiciary. 
 
Travis Wallenfang (written): [Referencing Affected Entities Oneida Business Committee; All 
elected and appointed members of boards, committees, and commissions; Any individual who has 
knowledge that an official has committed misconduct, Judiciary Trial Court, Judiciary Court of 
Appeals, Business Committee Support Office. This law does not apply to the judges of the Oneida 
Judiciary, whose misconduct process is located in the Judiciary Law. This does not apply to 
members of corporate boards. (Page 1)]. 
 
There needs to be accountability for all boards when operating in appearance of conflicts of 
interests or potential Conflict of Interests.  
 
Example: Tribally Owned Company and an Oneida Nation’s member on a Board for Tribally 
Owned Company and works as an employee. They report to only the GTC and Business 
Committee.  

Response 

 

The commenter is stating that there should be accountability for all boards of the Nation. The 
commenter may be questioning whether all corporate boards, committees, and commission are 
subject to the provisions of this Law as other boards, committees, and commission of the Nation 
are. 
 
The Law defines an “official” as any person who is elected or appointed to serve on a board, 
committee or commission of the Nation, including the Oneida Business Committee. [1 O.C. 120.3-
1(m)]. The Law then defines an “entity” as a board, committee or commission of the Nation, 
including the Oneida Business Committee. [1 O.C. 120.3-1(i)]. From these definitions, it can be 

31 of 123



 

Page 9 of 71 

 

presumed that corporate boards, committees, and commissions of the Nation are subject to this 
Law. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee clarify whether it was intended that 
corporate boards, committees, and commissions are subject to the provisions of this Law. The 
LOC may determine: 

1. Corporate boards, committees, and commissions of the Nation are subject to the provisions 
of this Law. 

a. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this determination then no revision 
to the Law would be necessary, but the Legislative Operating Committee could 
determine that the definitions for official and entity could be clarified to expressly 
state this includes corporate boards. 

2. Corporate boards, committees, and commissions of the Nation are not subject to the 
provisions of this Law. 

a. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this determination, then the 
following revision is recommended: 
120.1-1. Purpose. The purpose of this law is to establish a consistent set of sanctions 
and penalties that may be imposed upon elected and appointed officials of the 
Nation, including members of the Oneida Business Committee, for misconduct in 
office; and to establish an orderly and fair process for imposing such sanctions and 
penalties.  
(a)  This law does not apply to judges of the Oneida Nation Judiciary. 
(b)  This law does not apply to corporate entities of the Nation. 

 
Additionally, in regard to the comment about the importance of accountability for perceived 
conflicts of interest, it is important to note that the Nation has a Conflict of Interest law that ensures 
all employees, contractors, elected officials, officers, political appointees, appointed and elected 
members and all others who may have access to information or materials that are confidential or 
may be used by competitors of the Nation’s enterprises or interests be subject to specific limitations 
to which such information and materials may be used in order to protect the interests of the Nation. 
[2 O.C. 217.1-1]. The Conflict of Interest law also contains provisions specific to organizational 
conflicts of interest, and a presumption that there is an organizational conflict of interest. [2 O.C. 
217.5]. 
 
Although the Nation’s Boards, Committees, and Commission law does not apply to corporate 
entities of the Nation, this Law also requires all other boards, committees, and commissions to 
adhere to the Nation’s Conflict of Interest law and disclose conflicts of interest to the Nation’s 
Secretary as the conflict arises, and update a conflict of interest disclosure form on an annual basis. 
[1 O.C. 105.15-1, 105.15-2]. 
 
A violation of the Conflict of Interest law or the Boards, Committees, and Commissions law would 
constitute misconduct under this Law and result in the official being subject to sanctions and 
penalties. [1 O.C. 120.4-2(a)]. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

32 of 123



 

Page 10 of 71 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that the provisions of this Law should not apply 
to corporate boards, committees, or commissions of the Nation as there should be some separation 
between the actions and governance of the Nation and the corporate entities.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee is currently developing a law regarding corporations that 
will be able to address these concerns, and many other issues specific to corporate entities of the 
Nation. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee decided the following revision should be made to the Law 
based on this comment: 
 

120.1-1. Purpose. The purpose of this law is to establish a consistent set of sanctions and penalties 
that may be imposed upon elected and appointed officials of the Nation, including members of the 
Oneida Business Committee, for misconduct in office; and to establish an orderly and fair process 
for imposing such sanctions and penalties.  

(a)  This law does not apply to judges of the Oneida Nation Judiciary. 
(b)  This law does not apply to corporate entities of the Nation. 

 
Comment 6 – Removal of the Nation’s Core Values: 
 
120.1. Purpose and Policy 
120.1-3.  It is the intent of the Nation that all elected and appointed officials strive to exhibit 

and uphold the Nation’s core values of The Good Mind as expressed by On<yote>a=ka, which 
includes: 

(a)  Kahletsyal&sla. The heart felt encouragement of the best in each of us. 
(b)  Kanolukhw@sla. Compassion, caring, identity, and joy of being. 
(c)  Ka>nikuhli=y%. The openness of the good spirit and mind. 
(d)  Ka>tshatst^sla. The strength of belief and vision as a People. 
(e)  Kalihwi=y%. The use of the good words about ourselves, our Nation, and our future. 
(f)  Twahwahts$lay<. All of us are family. 
(g)  Yukwats$stay<. Our fire, our spirit within each one of us. 

 
Bonnie Pigman (written): This is a "SANCTIONS AND PENALTIES" law. I feel the principles 
in Section 120.1-3 conflict with the very purpose and intent for drafting this law. I would like them 
to be deleted. If it is a desire to keep it in this law please insert them into Section 120.1-1. 
Idealistically, "The Good Mind" principles language could also be more appropriately placed on 
the application one might complete if interested in applying for an elected or appointed position. 
 
Response 

 
The commenter requests that the inclusion of the Nation’s core values be removed from section 
120.1-3 of this Law. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee made the determination to include the Nation’s core values 
of The Good Mind as expressed by On<yote>a=ka in the section of this Law that provides for the 
purpose and policy in an effort to set a tone that officials of the Nation are expected to behave in 

33 of 123



 

Page 11 of 71 

 

a manner than promotes and exhibits the Nation’s core values. The Legislative Operating 
Committee wanted to be clear that it is when an official fails to exhibit the Nation’s core values 
that the allegations of misconduct arise, and the process for filing and determining a complaint 
against an official as provided for by this Law are used. 
 
The commenter’s suggestion to move the provisions of section 120.1-3 into section 120.1-1 would 
not affect the intent, meaning, or interpretation of the provisions contained in section 120.1-3. 
Therefore, it is recommended that no revision be made to move the location of this provision as 
suggested. 
 
The commenter also proposes the idea that the Nation’s core values be included on an application 
for an elected or appointed position. The Boards, Committees, and Commissions law delegates the 
approval of all application materials to the Oneida Business Committee. [1 O.C. 105.5-1]. It is 
recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee share this idea with the Oneida Business 
Committee for consideration.  
 
LOC Consideration 

 
The Legislative Operating Committee made the decision that the Nation’s core values should 
remain in the Law in section 120.1-3, as this sets the tone for the Law regarding the expectation 
for how officials behave and conduct themselves. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee felt the suggestion to include the Nation’s core values on 
the application for an elected and/or appointed position is a great idea. The inclusion of the 
Nation’s core values on an application informs a person right away when they are first considering 
serving an elected or appointed position of the expectations that will be placed on himself or herself 
so that the person can make a determination as to if he or she can meet those expectations. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee determined there is no revision to the Law needed based on 
this comment.  
 
Comment 7 – Definition of Day: 
 
120.3.  Definitions 
120.3-1.  This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  
All words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 

(d)  “Business day” means Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m., excluding 
holidays recognized by the Nation.  
 

120.8. Sanctions and Penalties 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

(d)  Suspension.  An official may be suspended from performing his or her duties as 
an official for one (1) consecutive period of time, not to exceed sixty (60) days. 

 
Matthew W. Denny (oral):  Afternoon.  My first comment has to do with the definitions.  What’s 
missing is the fact that there are no, when you mention what days in the suspension or in here, I 

34 of 123



 

Page 12 of 71 

 

would like it defined whether you are talking about working days or calendar days, because there 
is a big difference in regards to suspension and that kind of stuff. So I would like to see the 
definition of days or otherwise be defined within whatever section is referencing days in the law. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter requests clarification on whether the reference to days for suspension means 
business days or calendar days, as this can change the amount of time referenced. The Law does 
define “business day” in section 120.3-1(d) as Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m., 
excluding holidays recognized by the Nation. Any other reference to solely the term “day” means 
calendar day. 
 
Therefore section 120.8-2 which states that an official may be suspended for a period of time not 
to exceed sixty (60) days, this means sixty (60) calendar days.     
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment. The LOC may determine whether the 
reference to days for suspensions should remain calendar days, or be amended to business days. 
 
It is recommended the LOC complete a review of all references to both “days” and “business days” 
to ensure the timeframes included in the Law are designated appropriately.  
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that the reference to suspension should be 
clarified to mean business days. Therefore, the Legislative Operating Committee determined the 
following revision should be made to the Law based on this comment: 
 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

(d)  Suspension.  An official may be suspended from performing his or her duties as an 
official for one (1) consecutive period of time, not to exceed sixty (60) business days. 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee also determined that overall the Law should use business 
days instead of calendar days when providing timelines. The Legislative Operating Committee 
will review the Law and make all necessary revisions as to the designation of what day means. 
 

Comment 8 – Terminology: 
 
120.5-3.  Contents of the Complaint.  The complaint alleging misconduct by an official shall 
include the following information: 

(h)  A notarized sworn statement attesting that the information provided in and with 
the complaint is true, accurate, and complete to the best of the complainant’s 
knowledge;  

 

120.6-5.  Initial Review.  The Oneida Business Committee shall perform an initial review of 
an allegation of misconduct on the part of an official. The purpose of the initial review shall 
be to determine whether the allegation made within the complaint has merit.  

35 of 123



 

Page 13 of 71 

 

(c)  The Oneida Business Committee shall determine, by majority vote, whether the 
complaint has merit.  

(2)  Upon finding that a complaint has no merit, the Oneida Business 
Committee shall dismiss the complaint. 

(A)  If the Oneida Business Committee dismisses the complaint based 
on a determination that the complaint was frivolous, false, or made 
with a malicious intent, the complainant may be subject to: 

(i)  a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500); 
(ii)  prohibition from filing another complaint for a period of 
time not to exceed one (1) year; and/or 
(iii)  a civil suit in the Nation’s Trial Court brought by the 
official accused by the frivolous, false or malicious allegation. 

 
Rae Skenandore (written): Terminology. Change the language from complaint to charge. 
Require the individual making the charge to sign a written statement under oath. 
 
Response 

 
The commenter suggests changing all mention of the word “complaint” to the word “charge.”  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee has used the term “complaint” throughout the provisions of 
this Law because complaint is a plain English term that is easily understood by members of the 
community.  Additionally, use of the word complaint is consistent with the Oneida Judiciary Rules 
of Civil Procedure which uses the term complaint, and defines it as the initial pleading setting out 
the case or cause of action on which relief is sought by the plaintiff. [8 O.C. 803.3-1(i)]. 
 
It is recommended that the word complaint remain in the Law. 
 
The commenter also requests that the Law be amended to require the individual making the 
complaint to sign a written statement under oath. 
 
The Law requires that the complaint include a notarized sworn statement attesting that the 
information provided in and with the complaint is true, accurate, and complete to the best of the 
complainant’s knowledge. [1 O.C. 120.5-3(h)]. 
 
The requirement to have a notarized sworn statement as a part of the complaint is more than what 
other procedures of the Nation regarding the filing of a complaint require. The Oneida Judiciary 
Rules of Civil Procedure does not require that a complaint that is filed with the Trial Court be 
signed under oath. Simply, the complaint that is filed must contain all the required information and 
attached summons in order to commence an action in the Trial Court. [8 O.C. 803.5)]. 
 
The Nation’s Child Care Department Consumer Complaint law, which sets a formal process for 
addressing complaints against the Oneida Child Care Department, also does not require that the 
complaint that is filed be signed under oath, and simply provides that all the information required 
by the law be provided in the complaint. [9 O.C. 902.4-4]. 
 

36 of 123



 

Page 14 of 71 

 

Additionally, complaints reported under the Nation’s Workplace Violence law [2 O.C. 223], and 
the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures do not require the written statement of the complaint 
to be signed under oath. 
 
It is important to note that the Law contains a provision that addresses an individual who has filed 
a frivolous, false, or malicious complaint that was determined to have no merit. [1 O.C. 120.6-
5(c)(2)(A)]. The Law allows the Oneida Business Committee to take the following actions against 
an individual who has filed a frivolous, false, or malicious complaint: 

1. Impose a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500); or 
2. Prohibit the individual from filing another complaint for a period of time not to exceed one 

(1) year. [1 O.C. 120.6-5(c)(2)(A)(i)-(ii)]. 
 
The official accused by the frivolous, false, or malicious allegation may also file a s civil suit in 
the Nation’s Trial Court against the individual who made the complaint. [1 O.C. 120.6-
5(c)(2)(A)(iii)]. 
 
The Oneida Judiciary Rules of Civil Procedure also requires that all pleadings, written motions, or 
other papers-whether by signing, filing, submitting, or later advocating it, an attorney, advocate or 
unrepresented party certifies that to the best of the person’s knowledge, information, and belief 
formed after an inquiry reasonable under the circumstances that it is not being presented to the 
Court for any improper purpose. [8 O.C. 803.8-2(a)]. If the Court has determined that provisions 
has been violated, the Court may impose an appropriate sanction on any attorney, law firm, 
advocate, or party that violated the Rules of Civil Procedure or is responsible for the violation. [8 
O.C. 803.8-3(a)]. 
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment.  
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee discussed the use of the term complaint and charge and 
determined that the term charge may have a more negative connotation than complaint. The 
Legislative Operating Committee determined that the term complaint shall remain in the Law.  
 

The Legislative Operating Committee also determined that the Law should not be amended to 
require the individual making the complaint to sign a written statement under oath, since the Law 
already requires the complainant to provide a notarized sworn statement attesting that the 
information provided in and with the complaint is true, accurate, and complete to the best of the 
complainant’s knowledge. 
 

Comments 9 through 10  –  Definition of Misconduct: 
 
120.4. Misconduct 
120.4-2.  An official may be subject to sanctions and penalties for behaving in a manner 
which constitutes misconduct. Misconduct includes:  

(a)  a violation of  the Constitution or any of the Nation’s laws, policies, or rules;  

37 of 123



 

Page 15 of 71 

 

(b)  a violation of the bylaws, standard operating procedures or other internal 
operating documents that govern the entity upon which the official serves; 
 (c)  a conviction of a felony, or any crime in any jurisdiction that would be classified 
as a felony under federal law or Wisconsin law; and 
(d)  any other activity that is incompatible with the high moral and ethical standards 
that are expected of the Nation’s officials. 

 
Travis Wallenfang (written): [Referencing Lines 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8 SECTION 2. 1 LEGISLATIVE 
DEVELOPMENT A. When officials of the Nation commit misconduct in office, there are few 
remedies available for the Nation to discipline that official. Currently, appointed officials may 
have their appointment terminated by the Business Committee, and elected officials may be 
removed in accordance with the Removal Law. However, there have been instances of misconduct 
that do not rise to the level of removal. For example, officials with multiple unexcused absences, 
failure to submit reports on time, or behaving disrespectfully to community members or fellow 
officials. In these cases, other remedies such as verbal reprimands, fines, or suspensions may be 
more appropriate. (Page 1)]. 
 
The following needs to be defined or clarified as they are subject to the interpretations: 

▪ Unexcused absences, 
▪ Failure to submit reports on time 
▪ Behaving disrespectfully to community members or fellow officials 
▪ Appearance or potential of conflicts of interests for self-interests. 
▪ Misconduct 
▪ Wrongful improper or unlawful conduct or behavior. 

 

Brian Doxtator (oral):  I went through the Sanctions and Penalties law and I have pros and cons 
of everything in there, but one of the things that kind of just hit me real hard was the word 
misconduct and I think back on the last four years, an elected official not showing up to work is 
not necessarily misconduct and that a penalty or sanction of some form to say hey we need you at 
work.  Obviously there were e-mails asking certain elected officials to come to work, but that’s 
kind of what, that’s not really misconduct, but elected officials are not employees. 
 
Response 

 

Both commenters begin to question what constitutes misconduct, and whether misconduct should 
be further defined so that the interpretation is clear. 
 
The Law intends that all elected and appointed officials will strive to exhibit and uphold the 
Nation’s core values of The Good Mind as expressed by On<yote>a=ka, which includes: 

1. Kahletsyal&sla. The heart felt encouragement of the best in each of us. 
2. Kanolukhw@sla. Compassion, caring, identity, and joy of being. 
3. Ka>nikuhli=y%. The openness of the good spirit and mind. 
4. Ka>tshatst^sla. The strength of belief and vision as a People. 
5. Kalihwi=y%. The use of the good words about ourselves, our Nation, and our future. 
6. Twahwahts$lay<. All of us are family. 
7. Yukwats$stay<. Our fire, our spirit within each one of us. 

38 of 123



 

Page 16 of 71 

 

[1 O.C. 120.1-3]. 
 
Furthermore, the Law states that it is the obligation of every official to behave in a manner that 
promotes the highest ethical and moral standard, since high moral and ethical standards amongst 
officials of the Nation is essential to the conduct of government. [1 O.C. 120.4-1]. 
 
The Law then states that misconduct includes: 

1. a violation of the Constitution or any of the Nation’s laws, policies, or rules;  
2. a violation of the bylaws, standard operating procedures or other internal operating 

documents that govern the entity upon which the official serves; 
3. a conviction of a felony, or any crime in any jurisdiction that would be classified as a 

felony under federal law or Wisconsin law; and 
4. any other activity that is incompatible with the high moral and ethical standards that 

are expected of the Nation’s officials. 
[1 O.C. 120.4-2]. 

 
When developing this Law, the Legislative Operating Committee made the decision to keep what 
constitutes misconduct as open as possible to allow for flexibility in addressing whatever situation 
arises. The Legislative Operating Committee understood that creating an exhaustive list of what 
behaviors constitutes misconduct, and defining exactly what those behaviors mean, would be 
nearly impossible. The Legislative Operating Committee wanted to avoid seeing someone 
prevented from filing a complaint in the future, because the alleged misconduct was not 
specifically included in the Law. 
 
The Law does however provide the opportunity for other laws, policies, rules, bylaws, and standard 
operating procedures to provide more specific standards of what may constitute misconduct. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee determined that it would be up to the Oneida Business 
Committee, for appointed officials, and the Trial Court, for elected officials, to review all 
information presented and interpret whether the action of the official constitutes misconduct.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may determine whether: 

1. The Law should remain as drafted and allow for flexibility in the interpretation of what 
constitutes misconduct. Or 

2. The Law should be amended to provide for more specific information on what constitutes 
misconduct. 

 

LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee discussed the fact that throughout the development of this 
proposed Law there was much discussion surrounding how much detail to include in regard to 
what constitutes misconduct. The Legislative Operating Committee determined that the Law 
should remain as currently drafted and allow for flexibility in the interpretation of what constitutes 
misconduct. 
 

39 of 123



 

Page 17 of 71 

 

Additionally, the Legislative Operating Committee discussed that fact that this Law is not being 
developed to address any specific behavior that is occurring today, but instead is being developed 
with the understanding that there should be a process for how complaints against elected and 
appointed officials are handled. 
 

Comment 11 – Process For Filing a Complaint: 
 
Rae Skenandore (written): Process. The majority of the process is predicated on the assumption 
of guilt on the official. On the flip side, when it’s considered, it’s overly harsh upon the 
complainant. If it’s based on personality conflicts, where is the middle ground to reach some sort 
of understanding or compromise before it gets to a point of a written complaint and an 
investigation? 
 
Response 

 
The commenter states that the process contained in the Law for addressing complaints of 
misconduct against an official is both predicated on the assumption of guilt of the official, and 
overly harsh to the complainant.  
 
It was the intention of the Legislative Operating Committee to provide a process that is fair and 
equitable to the complainant and the official alleged to have engaged in misconduct. Therefore, it 
is the policy of the Law to ensure that elected and appointed officials who commit misconduct 
while in office be subject to appropriate sanctions and penalties; and to ensure that there is a fair 
process in place that enables officials to fairly respond to allegations of misconduct. [1 O.C. 120.1-
2]. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee made efforts to ensure the process was both fair to the 
complainant and the official alleged to have engaged in misconduct by including the following 
provisions:  

1. The Law discusses what information is required for a complaint, resulting in an expansive 
amount of information to be included in the complaint so that the best determination can 
be made as to the merit of the complaint. [1 O.C. 120.5-3]; 

2. The Law prohibits any retaliation against any individual who makes a complaint or party 
or witness to a complaint, or any person offering testimony or evidence or complying with 
directives authorized under this law. [1 O.C. 120.5-5]; 

3. The Law allows any official who is the subject of a complaint has the right to be represented 
by an attorney or advocate, at his or her own expense, for any actions or proceedings related 
to the complaint. [1 O.C. 120.5-6]; 

4. The Law allows the accused official to provide an answer to the complaint. [1 O.C. 120.6-
3]; 

5. The Law prevents an Oneida Business Committee member that has a conflict of interest in 
a complaint brought before the Oneida Business Committee from participating in the 
complaint. [1 O.C. 120.6-4]; 

6. The Law allows the Oneida Business Committee to dismiss a complaint based on a 
determination that the complaint was frivolous, false, or made with a malicious intent, and 

40 of 123



 

Page 18 of 71 

 

subject the complainant to a fine or prohibition against filing another complaint. [1 O.C. 
120.6-5(c)(2)(A)]; 

7. All complaints of alleged misconduct have to be proved by clear and convincing evidence. 
[1 O.C. 120. 6-6, 120.7-2]; 

8. Appeals of both the Oneida Business Committee and Trial Court decisions are appealable 
to the Nation’s Court of Appeals. [1 O.C. 120. 6-9, 120.7-4]; and 

9. The resignation of an official after a complaint has been filed against the official shall not 
affect the status of the hearing and determination by either the Oneida Business Committee 
or Trial Court. [1 O.C. 120.9-1]. 

 
Additionally, the commenter questions what is in place to allow for the complainant and the 
accused official to come to an understanding or compromise before a written complaint and an 
investigation occurs.  
 
The Law focuses on the point in time where an official complaint is made, and investigation and 
determination of that complaint occurs. This does not prevent the complainant and official 
involved in the complaint from making efforts to come to an understanding prior to filing a 
complaint under this Law.  
 
Additionally, nothing prevents an entity of the Nation from creating a process to address 
complaints or misunderstanding that may arise before an individual chooses to file a complaint 
under this Law.  
 
For those cases that are filed with the Trial Court, the Trial Court has a Peacemaking and Mediation 
Division that provides a forum for the use of peacemaking and mediation to resolve disputes in a 
fair manner. [8 O.C. 801.6-1]. Peacemaking and mediation services are available at all stages of 
litigation. [8 O.C. 801.6-1]. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee believes the Law is both fair to the individual making a 
complaint, and to the official that is accused of misconduct. Therefore, the Legislative Operating 
Committee determined there is no revision to the Law necessary based on this comment. 
 

Comment 12 – Who May File a Complaint: 
 
120.5. Filing of a Complaint 
120.5-1.  Who May File.  Any individual at least eighteen (18) years of age or older, or entity, 
who in good faith, has knowledge or reason to believe that an official has committed 
misconduct, may file a written complaint. 
 
Travis Wallenfang (written): [Referencing Lines 83,84,85,86,87,88 120.5. Filing of a Complaint 
120.5-1. Who May File. Any individual at least eighteen (18) years of age or older, or entity, who 
in good faith, has knowledge or reason to believe that an official has committed misconduct, may 
file a written complaint. (Page 4)]. 
 

41 of 123



 

Page 19 of 71 

 

Can a Parent file a complaint on behalf of their child if something has happened to their child? 
 
Response 

 

The commenter questions whether a parent can file a complaint on behalf of their child if 
something has happened to their child. 
 
Yes, the Law does not require that the act of misconduct was directly at you personally in order to 
be eligible to file a complaint. As long as the parent is at least eighteen (18) years of age or older, 
is acting in good faith, and has knowledge or reason to believe that an official has committed 
misconduct, that parent can file a complaint on behalf of his or her child. [1 O.C. 120.5-1]. 
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee believes that the response adequately clarifies the 
commenter’s question, and no revision to the Law is needed based on this comment. 
 

Comment 13 – Statute of Limitations: 
 
120.5. Filing of a Complaint 
120.5-2.  When to File.  A complaint may be filed as long as the alleged misconduct has 
occurred, or was discovered to have occurred, within the previous ninety (90) days. 
 
Rae Skenandore (written): Statute of limitations. Is there a timeframe for bringing forward 
alleged violations/charges/complaints? 3 years? 5 years? What about after the individual is out of 
office? Can you still make charges against them 6 years later? 
 
Response 

 
The commenter questions whether there is a statute of limitations associated with making a 
complaint. The Law provides that a complaint may be filed as long as the alleged misconduct 
occurred, or was discovered to have occurred, within the previous ninety (90) days. [1 O.C. 120.5-
2]. 
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

Due to the fact that the Law provides that a complaint may be filed as long as the alleged 
misconduct has occurred, or was discovered to have occurred, within the previous ninety (90) days, 
the Legislative Operating Committee determined that no revision to the Law is needed based on 
this comment. 
 
 

42 of 123



 

Page 20 of 71 

 

Comment 14 – Where to File a Complaint: 
 

120.5. Filing of a Complaint 
120.5-4.  Where to File.   

(a)  Appointed Official.  Complaints against an appointed official shall be filed with 
the Business Committee Support Office. 
(b)  Elected Official.  Complaints against an elected official shall be filed with the 
Nation’s Trial Court. 

 
Bonnie Pigman (written): On page 4 of 13, the boxes reflected at the end of line 90 conflict with 
the language written on draft law lines 248 to 342. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter asserts that the boxes contained at the end of line ninety (90) of the legislative 
analysis conflict with the Law, specifically the provisions contained within lines two hundred and 
forty-eight (248) and three hundred and forty-two (342). 
 
Lines two hundred and forty-eight (248) to three hundred and forty-two (342) of this Law contains 
provisions of the Law which govern: 

1. sanctions and penalties [1 O.C. 120.8-2]; 
2. factors in determining an appropriate sanction and/or penalty[1 O.C. 120.8-3]; 
3. fact that imposition of a sanction under this Law does not exempt an official from 

individual liability from his or her misconduct [1 O.C. 120.8-4]; and 
4. effect of a resignation by an official after a complaint is filed [1 O.C. 120.9-1]. 

 
The boxes on page four (4) of the analysis simply provide a visual demonstration of the fact that 
complaints against appointed officials are filed with the Business Committee Support Office, and 
complaints against elected officials are filed with the Trial Court.  
 
It is unclear how the commenter interprets the chart in the legislative analysis to conflict with this 
Law. The Law clearly states that complaints against an appointed official shall be filed with the 
Business Committee Support Office, and complaints against an elected official shall be filed with 
the Nation’s Trial Court. [1 O.C. 120.5-4].  
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee agrees that no conflict exists between the legislative analysis 
and the proposed draft of the Law. Therefore, the Legislative Operating Committee determined 
that no revision to the Law is necessary based on this comment. 
 

Comment 15 –  Where to File a Complaint Against an Elected Official: 
 

120.5. Filing of a Complaint 

43 of 123



 

Page 21 of 71 

 

120.5-4.  Where to File.   
(b)  Elected Official.  Complaints against an elected official shall be filed with the 
Nation’s Trial Court. 

 
Bonnie Pigman (written): I disagree with where complaints against elected officials are to be 
filed, however, if GTC determines to have the complaints go to the Judiciary, then that's final. 
 
Response 

 
The commenter disagrees with the determination that complaints against an elected official should 
be filed with the Trial Court.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee made the policy determination that complaints against an 
elected official should be filed with the Trial Court. The Legislative Operating Committee made 
this determination based on the fact that elected officials serve in his or her position at the 
discretion of the Nation’s membership. Therefore, since the General Tribal Council adopted the 
Judiciary law as a step to formalize the hearing authority of the Oneida Nation in an independent 
judicial body, the Trial Court would be the most appropriate body to hear complaints of alleged 
misconduct against an elected official. 
 
There is no revision recommended based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee is confident in the policy determination that complaints 
against an elected official should be filed and heard by the Trial Court. Therefore, the Legislative 
Operating Committee determined that no revision to the Law is necessary based on this comment. 
 

Comment 16 – Filing of an Complaint with a Board, Committee, or Commission: 
 
120.5. Filing of a Complaint 
120.5-4.  Where to File.   

(a)  Appointed Official.  Complaints against an appointed official shall be filed with 
the Business Committee Support Office. 
(b)  Elected Official.  Complaints against an elected official shall be filed with the 
Nation’s Trial Court. 

 
Rae Skenandore (written): Complaints. For more minor infractions, has the Committee 
considered pushing some authority down to the BCC’s Chairperson? That person is in a leadership 
role and has some responsibility for the actions of those on their BCC. For more major infractions 
the Chair or the entire BCC should be required to be a mandatory reporter. Again, some sort of 
training of unacceptable behaviors/action should be offered. Again, the development of an 
expected code of conduct for elected or appointed officials. 
 
Response 

 

44 of 123



 

Page 22 of 71 

 

The commenter questions whether the Legislative Operating Committee has considered delegating 
authority to the chairperson of a board, committee, or commission to handle allegations of 
misconduct. 
 
During the various work meetings that were held, and the community meeting, the Legislative 
Operating Committee did consider the possibility of delegating authority to boards, committees, 
and commission to handle allegations of misconduct against a fellow member of the board, 
committee, and commission.  
 
Ultimately the Legislative Operating Committee decided against the delegation of authority to 
boards, committees, and commission for a couple reasons: 

1. The Legislative Operating Committee decided not to delegate authority to boards, 
committees, and commissions to handle allegations of misconduct against a fellow member 
due to the potential for conflicts of interest to arise. The Legislative Operating Committee 
had concerns that the individual making the complaint would fear that a complaint will not 
be taken seriously if it is submitted to someone who works closely with the individual 
alleged to have engaged in misconduct.  

2. The Legislative Operating Committee decided not to delegate authority to boards, 
committees, and commissions to handle allegations of misconduct against a fellow member 
due to the desire for consistency in how complaints made against an official are handled. 
There are currently nearly twenty (20) different elected or appointed entities. Instead of 
allowing for the potential for allegations of misconduct to be addressed in different ways 
and by different standards by each entity, the Legislative Operating Committee determined 
that all complaints for appointed officials should go to the Oneida Business Committee, 
and all complaints against elected officials should go to the Trial Court. This results in only 
two (2) bodies handling allegations of misconduct and interpreting this Law instead of 
upwards of twenty (20). This will lead to consistency in how allegations of misconduct are 
filed and handled, and how sanctions and penalties are imposed. 

3. The Legislative Operating Committee decided not to delegate authority to boards, 
committees, and commissions to handle allegations of misconduct against a fellow member 
due to the fact that the Boards, Committees, and Commissions law already allows a board, 
committee, or commission of the Nation to develop standards in their bylaws that address  
specific behavioral expectations and how the entity will enforce those behavioral 
expectations. [1 O.C. 105.10-3(d)(1)]. This means that a board, committee, or commission 
of the Nation already has the authority to create and enforce internal processes on handling 
complaints of misconduct. Although each board, committee, or commission of the Nation 
has the ability to set standards for misconduct for officials and how misconduct will be 
addressed as an individual entity, the Legislative Operating Committee still felt it was 
important to provide an impartial and consistent process for those who wish to make a 
complaint of misconduct outside of the individual entity on which the official serves. 
Although the Boards, Committees, and Commissions law does not apply to every official 
of the Nation, there is nothing that prohibits any other entity of the Nation from developing 
internal policies and procedures that address this issue. 

 

45 of 123



 

Page 23 of 71 

 

Additionally, an entity can decide to include a specific requirement in the bylaws of an entity, or 
other internal governing document, that states the expectation that every member of the entity 
would be a mandatory reporter of misconduct. 
 
Ultimately, the Legislative Operating Committee determined that complaints against an appointed 
official shall be filed with the Business Committee Support Office, and complaints against an 
elected official shall be filed with the Nation’s Trial Court. [1 O.C. 102.5-4]. 
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee echoes the response to this comment, and believes that an 
adequate explanation as to why the Legislative Operating Committee did not choose to delegate 
authority to the chairperson of a board, committee, or commission to handle complaints against a 
fellow elected or appointed official was provided. 
 
Ultimately, the Legislative Operating Committee determined that no revision to the Law is 
necessary based on this comment. 
 

Comment 17 – Where to File for Complaints Against Appointed Officials: 
 
120.6. Complaints Alleged Against an Appointed Official  
120.6-1.  Due to the fact that an appointed official serves at the discretion of the Oneida 
Business Committee, all complaints alleged against an appointed official shall be handled by 
the Oneida Business Committee. 
 
Rae Skenandore (written): Appointed officials. I understand that appointed official serve at the 
discretion of the Oneida Business Committee. However, it seems repetitive, inconsistent, a conflict 
of interest and an unnecessary use of the elected officials time to respond to complaints against 
appointed officials. 

a. The process for appointed officials should be the same for all those impacted under this 
law. 
b. The process should be consistent. 
c. There is inherent conflict of interest in the fact that the OBC appointed those individuals. 
d. A neutral third party, i.e. the Judiciary should hear all the complaints and determine 
appropriate sanctions and penalties in a consistent manner as defined under this law. This 
decision should be removed from any political influence, interests or activities. 

 
Response 

 

The commenter disagrees with the delegation of authority to the Oneida Business Committee to 
handle complaints against appointed officials of the Nation.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee made the determination that complaints alleged against an 
appointed official should be handled by the Oneida Business Committee based on the fact that an 

46 of 123



 

Page 24 of 71 

 

official who is appointed by the Oneida Business Committee serves at the discretion of the Oneida 
Business Committee. [1 O.C. 105.7-4, 120.6-1].  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee decided that if the Oneida Business Committee is the 
appropriate body to terminate the appointment of an appointed official due to the Oneida Business 
Committee’s direct interest in the governance of that official, then the Oneida Business Committee 
should be delegated the authority to take action through other sanctions and penalties to address 
the misconduct of officials before termination of appointment is necessary. 
 
The delegation of authority to a specific body to handle complaints alleged against appointed 
officials is a policy consideration for the Legislative Operating Committee. The Legislative 
Operating Committee may determine this authority should stay with the Oneida Business 
Committee and leave the Law as currently drafted, or determine that this Law should be amended 
to delegate the authority to handle complaints alleged against an appointed official to a different 
entity. 
 
Additionally, this Law is consistent in the sense that it provides a process for filing a complaint, 
and how that complaint will be handled, even if it differentiates between elected and appointed 
officials. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that complaints against appointed officials 
should remain with the Oneida Business Committee, as is currently drafted in the Law. The 
Legislative Operating Committee also discussed the fact that the process will be consistent because 
there are only two bodies handling complaints. 
 

Comment 18 – Retaliation Based on a Complaint: 
 
120.5. Filing of a Complaint 
120.5-5. Retaliation Prohibited. Retaliation against any individual who makes a complaint or 
party or witness to a complaint is prohibited. This protection shall also be afforded to any 
person offering testimony or evidence or complying with directives authorized under this 
law. Retaliation shall include any form of adverse or punitive action by or caused by, any 
official. 
 
Travis Wallenfang (written):  There needs to be a measure of protection if a person has 
information and is afraid to come forward for fear of retaliation. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter suggests that there be a measure of protection if a person has information and is 
afraid to come forward for fear of retaliation.  
 
The Law addresses this very issue and prohibits retaliation against any individual who makes a 
complaint or is a party or witness to a complaint. [1 O.C. 120.5-5]. This protection from retaliation 

47 of 123



 

Page 25 of 71 

 

is also afforded to any person offering testimony or evidence or complying with directives 
authorized under this Law. [1 O.C. 120.5-5]. The Law then clarifies that retaliation is any form of 
adverse or punitive action by or caused by, any official. [1 O.C. 120.5-5]. 
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

Due to the fact that the Law already addresses retaliation, the Legislative Operating Committee 
determined that no revision to the Law would be necessary based on this comment. 
 

Comment 19 –  Enforcement of Prohibition of Retaliation: 
 
120.5. Filing of a Complaint 
120.5-5. Retaliation Prohibited. Retaliation against any individual who makes a complaint or 
party or witness to a complaint is prohibited. This protection shall also be afforded to any 
person offering testimony or evidence or complying with directives authorized under this 
law. Retaliation shall include any form of adverse or punitive action by or caused by, any 
official.  
 
Lisa Liggins (oral):  Line 110 regarding retaliation.  I am wondering how that is going to be 
enforced.  If a complainant is retaliated against, where do they go, what do they do, who do they 
report it to.  There doesn’t appear to be any recourse identified within the law. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter states that although the Law provides that retaliation against an individual who 
makes a complaint against an official is prohibited, the Law does not provide details on how 
retaliatory actions will be handled or addressed. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee expand this provision of the Law so 
that more detail can be provided on how retaliatory action will be addressed. 
 
The LOC may consider making the following amendment to the proposed Law: 
 
120.5-5. Retaliation Prohibited. Retaliation against any individual who makes a complaint or party 
or witness to a complaint is prohibited. This protection shall also be afforded to any person offering 
testimony or evidence or complying with directives authorized under this law. Retaliation shall 
include any form of adverse or punitive action by or caused by, any official.  

(a)  If an individual alleges that retaliatory action has been threatened or taken based on the 
individual’s complaint, or cooperation with directives authorized under this law, the 
individual may file a complaint for the retaliatory action in accordance with section 120.5 
of this law. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

48 of 123



 

Page 26 of 71 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that Law should be revised to include clarifying 
information on how retaliations will be handled, and therefore, the following revisions should be 
made to the Law: 
 
120.5-5. Retaliation Prohibited. Retaliation against any individual who makes a complaint or party 
or witness to a complaint is prohibited. This protection shall also be afforded to any person offering 
testimony or evidence or complying with directives authorized under this law. Retaliation shall 
include any form of adverse or punitive action by or caused by, any official.  

(a)  If an individual alleges that retaliatory action has been threatened or taken based on the 
individual’s complaint, or cooperation with directives authorized under this law, the 
individual may file a complaint for the retaliatory action in accordance with section 120.5 
of this law. 

 

Comment 20 – Timelines for Initial Review: 
 
120.6. Complaints Alleged Against an Appointed Official  
120.6-2.  Receipt of Complaint.  Upon receiving a complaint, the Business Committee Support 
Office shall: 

(b)  place the complaint on the executive session portion of the agenda of a regular or 
special meeting of the Oneida Business Committee for an initial review within thirty 
(30) days after receipt of complaint. 

 
Lisa Liggins(oral):  Lines 128 and 130.  I believe the intent is that the initial review occur within 
30 days after the receipt of the complaint, but the language could be misunderstood to mean that 
the placement on the agenda by the Business Committee Support Office occurs within the 30 day 
time period. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter points out the potential for misinterpretation of the thirty (30) day timeline 
provided for the initial review of a complaint. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee make the following revision to avoid 
any misinterpretation: 
 
120.6-2.  Receipt of Complaint.  Upon receiving a complaint, the Business Committee Support 
Office shall: 

(b)  place the complaint on the executive session portion of the agenda of a regular or 
special meeting of the Oneida Business Committee for an initial review which shall occur 
within thirty (30) days after the initial receipt of a complaint. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined the following revision should be made to the 
Law to clarify that the initial review is to occur within thirty (30) days after the receipt of a 
complaint: 

49 of 123



 

Page 27 of 71 

 

 
120.6-2.  Receipt of Complaint.  Upon receiving a complaint, the Business Committee Support 
Office shall: 
(b)  place the complaint on the executive session portion of the agenda of a regular or special 
meeting of the Oneida Business Committee for an initial review which shall occur within thirty 
(30) days after the initial receipt of a complaint. 
 

Comment 21 – Recusal Based on Conflict of Interest: 
 
120.6-4.  Conflict of Interest.  An Oneida Business Committee member that has a conflict of 
interest in a complaint brought before the Oneida Business Committee, shall immediately 
recuse themselves and shall not participate in the initial review or the investigatory hearing. 

(a)  Failure of an Oneida Business Committee member to recuse themselves due to a 
conflict of interest shall constitute grounds for sanctions and/or penalties. 

 
Travis Wallenfang (written): [Referencing Lines 132 133, 134,135,  Conflict of Interest. If a 
member of the Oneida Business Committee (BC) has a conflict of interest regarding a complaint, 
they must recuse themselves and not participate in the review or hearings. If a member of the BC 
fails to recuse themselves, that member may be subject to sanctions and penalties under this law. 
(Page 5)]. 
 
This should be defined in all of the following processes.  The application to the  Investigatory, 
Deliberation, Determination, & Appeal processes. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter states that the provision prohibiting an Oneida Business Committee member from 
participating in the initial review or the investigatory hearing due to a conflict of interest should 
apply to any part of the complaint process, including the investigatory hearing, deliberation, 
determination, and the appeal process. 
 
Although it was intended that an Oneida Business Committee member who recuses himself or 
herself from the initial review and the investigatory hearing due to a conflict of interest would not 
then be participating in deliberation or determination due to the fact they were not present for the 
hearing, this can be made more clear through the following revision: 
 
120.6-4.  Conflict of Interest.  An Oneida Business Committee member that has a conflict of 
interest in a complaint brought before the Oneida Business Committee, shall immediately recuse 
themselves and shall not participate in any portion of the complaint processthe initial review or 
the investigatory hearing. 

(a)  Failure of an Oneida Business Committee member to recuse themselves due to a 
conflict of interest shall constitute grounds for sanctions and/or penalties. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

50 of 123



 

Page 28 of 71 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined the following revision should be made to the 
Law to clarify that an Oneida Business Committee member that recuses himself or herself due to 
a conflict of interest, shall not participate in any part of the complaint process: 
 
120.6-4.  Conflict of Interest.  An Oneida Business Committee member that has a conflict of 
interest in a complaint brought before the Oneida Business Committee, shall immediately recuse 
themselves and shall not participate in any portion of the complaint process the initial review or 
the investigatory hearing. 
 

Comment 22–  Notice of Investigatory Hearing: 
 
120.6. Complaints Alleged Against an Appointed Official  
120.6-6.  Investigatory Hearing.  The investigatory hearing shall occur within thirty (30) days 
after the initial review has concluded.  The investigatory hearing shall take place during the 
executive session portion of the agenda of a regular or special meeting of the Oneida Business 
Committee. The purpose of the investigatory hearing is for the Oneida Business Committee 
to determine if there is enough evidence to substantiate the allegations of misconduct by clear 
and convincing evidence. 

(a)  When conducting an investigatory hearing, the Oneida Business Committee shall 
have the broadest grant of authority to compel any person or organization within the 
Nation to: 

(1)  appear at the hearing to provide testimony under oath and/or information 
relevant to the allegations against the official; and/or 
(2)  produce physical evidence that is relevant to the allegations. 

(b)  The Oneida Business Committee shall provide an opportunity for the official who 
is the subject of the complaint to answer all allegations and to provide witness 
testimony, documents, and other evidence on his or her own behalf.  
(c)  The Oneida Business Committee shall also provide the complainant the 
opportunity to answer questions, provide witness testimony or additional 
information, and/or to otherwise speak on his or her own behalf. 
(d)  The hearing shall be informal and conducted as the interests of justice so require, 
and shall be recorded by the Business Committee Support Office. 

 
Lisa Liggins (oral):  Line 167, this starts the process for the investigatory hearing.  It indicates 
the hearing shall occur within 30 days of the initial review and indicates that the complainant and 
the elected official, the official, have the opportunity to appear, but that doesn’t include a 
requirement to provide notice to the complainant or the official and I think requiring notice is 
important, it should be included. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter identifies that although the Law provides a timeline for when the investigatory 
hearing, where both the complainant and the official have an opportunity to appear, shall occur, 
the Law does not include any requirements that the complainant or official be provided notice of 
that hearing. 
 

51 of 123



 

Page 29 of 71 

 

It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee make the following revision to 
include a notice requirement: 
 
120.6-6.  Investigatory Hearing.  The investigatory hearing shall occur within thirty (30) days after 
the initial review has concluded.  The investigatory hearing shall take place during the executive 
session portion of the agenda of a regular or special meeting of the Oneida Business Committee. 
The purpose of the investigatory hearing is for the Oneida Business Committee to determine if 
there is enough evidence to substantiate the allegations of misconduct by clear and convincing 
evidence. 

 (a)  When conducting an investigatory hearing, the Oneida Business Committee shall have 
the broadest grant of authority to compel any person or organization within the Nation to: 

(1)  appear at the hearing to provide testimony under oath and/or information 
relevant to the allegations against the official; and/or 
(2)  produce physical evidence that is relevant to the allegations. 

(b)  The Business Committee Support Office shall provide the complainant, the official 
who is the subject of the complaint, and any other individual compelled to attend the 
hearing with written notice of the date and the time of the investigatory hearing at least (#) 
days before the investigatory hearing. 
(bc)  The Oneida Business Committee shall provide an opportunity for the official who is 
the subject of the complaint to answer all allegations and to provide witness testimony, 
documents, and other evidence on his or her own behalf.  
(cd)  The Oneida Business Committee shall also provide the complainant the opportunity 
to answer questions, provide witness testimony or additional information, and/or to 
otherwise speak on his or her own behalf. 
(de)  The hearing shall be informal and conducted as the interests of justice so require, and 
shall be recorded by the Business Committee Support Office. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined the following revision should be made to the 
Law to add a provision that requires the Business Committee Support Office to notice the 
complainant and official of the investigatory hearing: 
 
120.6-7.  Notice of the Investigatory Hearing.  The Business Committee Support Office shall 
provide the complainant, the official who is the subject of the complaint, and any other individual 
compelled to attend the hearing with written notice of the date and the time of the investigatory 
hearing at least ten (10) days before the investigatory hearing. 
 

Comment 23 –  Recording of an Investigatory Hearing: 
 
120.6. Complaints Alleged Against an Appointed Official  
120.6-6.  Investigatory Hearing.  The investigatory hearing shall occur within thirty (30) days 
after the initial review has concluded.  The investigatory hearing shall take place during the 
executive session portion of the agenda of a regular or special meeting of the Oneida Business 
Committee. The purpose of the investigatory hearing is for the Oneida Business Committee 

52 of 123



 

Page 30 of 71 

 

to determine if there is enough evidence to substantiate the allegations of misconduct by clear 
and convincing evidence. 

(d)  The hearing shall be informal and conducted as the interests of justice so require, 
and shall be recorded by the Business Committee Support Office. 

 
120.6-9. Appeal. The complainant and the official who is the subject of the complaint shall 
both have the right to appeal the Oneida Business Committee’s decision to the Court of 
Appeals within twenty (20) days after the written decision is issued. The appeal shall be 
limited to review of the record, and the Oneida Business Committee’s decision may only be 
overturned if the Court of Appeals determines that:  

(a)  The findings or penalties imposed were clearly erroneous, unsupported by the 
record, or made on unreasonable grounds or without any proper consideration of 
circumstances; or 
(b)   Procedural irregularities occurred which prevented a fair and impartial hearing. 
 

120.10. Record of Conduct in Office  
120.10-1.  The Business Committee Support Office shall maintain a record of conduct in 
office for each official.  
120.10-2.  The record of conduct in office maintained for each official shall include, at a 
minimum:  

(a) a copy of each complaint filed against the official; 
(b) the outcome of the complaint, and 
(c) any sanctions or penalties imposed upon an official. 

120.10-3.  The record of conduct in office for each official shall be maintained for a period of 
no less than ten (10) years. 
 
Lisa Liggins (oral):  Line 185 is regarding the recording of the investigatory hearing and I am 
unclear as to why it would be recorded because it occurs within executive session and what is done 
with it after the hearing?  I’m not sure if it would be included in the record, referenced in the appeal 
process in Line 214.  And then subsequently Line 347 at the end of the law indicates that the record 
of conduct in office is maintained by the Business Committee Support Office, but that recording 
of the hearing is not included in that record, so I guess I just don’t understand why it’s recorded 
and what’s done with it after the hearing. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter questions for what purpose the investigatory hearing is recorded, since the 
investigatory hearing occurs during executive session of the Oneida Business Committee. 
 
Although meetings of the Oneida Business Committee are required by the Nation’s Open Records 
and Open Meetings law to be held in open session [1 O.C. 107.14-1], a closed meeting session, 
known as executive session, is allowed when an exception due to the sensitive nature of certain 
subjects is provided under the law. [1 O.C. 107.17-1].  
 
The Nation’s Open Records and Open Meetings law recognizes that there are discussions during 
meetings and/or records produced in the course of governmental business that are sensitive in 

53 of 123



 

Page 31 of 71 

 

nature, and the public’s right to a document or attendance at a meeting is outweighed by the public 
interest in keeping such a meeting or record confidential. [1 O.C. 107.4-1]. One such exception is 
for a discussion or record that contains personally identifiable information that is collected or 
maintained in connection with a complaint, investigation, or other circumstances that may lead to 
an enforcement action, administrative proceeding, arbitration proceeding, or court proceeding. [1 
O.C. 107.4-1(j)]. 
 
The fact that the recording of the investigatory hearing clearly meets the standard for an exception 
from an open record as provided by the Open Records and Open Meetings law does not mean that 
the recording cannot be made. It means that the public would not have access to inspect or copy 
this recording. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may determine if the requirement that a recording of the 
investigatory hearing should be made, as currently provided, should remain in the Law. 

1. If the Legislative Operating Committee determines that the requirement that the recording 
of the investigatory hearing be made, then it is recommended that the Law is clarified as to 
whether that recording is a part of the record that is reviewed by the Court of Appeals when  
decision of the Oneida Business Committee is appealed, and a part of the official’s record 
of conduct in office that is maintained by the Business Committee Support Office. 

2. If the Legislative Operating Committee determines that the recording of the investigatory 
hearing is unnecessary, then the Law should be revised to remove reference to this 
recording. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee discussed the fact that the recording of the Oneida Business 
Committee’s investigatory hearing falls in line with the requirement that proceedings at the Trial 
Court be generally recorded by audio, video, or other means such that an accurate transcript may 
be produced when needed or requested. [8 O.C. 803.32-1]. The Legislative Operating Committee 
wanted to ensure that there would be a record of the investigatory hearing that could be utilized in 
the future if necessary, much like there is a recording of the Trial Court’s hearings. The Legislative 
Operating Committee intended that the recording of the investigatory hearing would be maintained 
by the Business Committee Support Office in the official’s record of conduct. The Legislative 
Operating Committee determined the following revision should be made to the Law to clarify that 
records from hearings and proceedings will be included in the official’s record of conduct: 
 
120.10-2.  The record of conduct in office maintained for each official shall include, at a minimum:  

(a) a copy of each complaint filed against the official; 
(b)  recording and/or transcript from any hearings and/or proceedings; 
(bc) the outcome of the complaint, and 
(cd) any sanctions or penalties imposed upon an official. 

 

Comment 24 – Who Imposes a Sanction: 
 
120.6. Complaints Alleged Against an Appointed Official 

54 of 123



 

Page 32 of 71 

 

120.6-8.  Determination by the Oneida Business Committee.  After the investigatory hearing 
has concluded and the Oneida Business Committee has deliberated, the Oneida Business 
Committee shall in open session of a regular or special Oneida Business Committee meeting, 
by majority vote, declare whether the Oneida Business Committee has determined there is 
enough evidence to substantiate the allegations of misconduct by clear and convincing 
evidence.  

(a) If the Oneida Business Committee finds that there is clear and convincing evidence 
that the official engaged in misconduct, the Oneida Business Committee shall, by 
majority vote, determine and impose appropriate sanctions and/or penalties. 
(b) If the Oneida Business Committee does not find that there is clear and convincing 
evidence to support the allegations that the official engaged in misconduct, the 
complaint shall be dismissed. 
(c) Within ten (10) business days after the investigatory hearing, the Oneida Business 
Committee shall issue a written decision and provide copies of the decision to:  

(1) the complainant,  
(2) the official who is the subject of the complaint, and  
(3) the Business Committee Support Office, for recordkeeping.  
 

120.7. Complaints Alleged Against an Elected Official 
120.7-3.  In making a final determination, the Trial Court shall determine if there is enough 
evidence to substantiate the allegations of misconduct by the official by clear and convincing 
evidence. 

(a)  If the Trial Court finds that there is clear and convincing evidence that the official 
engaged in misconduct, the Trial Court shall determine and impose any sanctions 
and/or penalties deemed appropriate in accordance with this law. 
(b) If the Trial Court does not find that there is clear and convincing evidence to 
support the allegations that the official engaged in misconduct, the complaint shall be 
dismissed. 

 
Bonnie Pigman (written): Question: Why in this draft law (specifically Sections 120.8 & 120.9) 
does it read the Business Committee has appointed themselves the same authority or responsibility 
determine and/or carry out the court's findings? I believe the intent was to mean the Business 
Committee is responsible to carry out the sanctions and penalties related to appointed officials and 
the Tribal Court for carrying out sanctions and penalties related to elected officials. If so, then the 
law should read that way. This law should be so clear so there is little or no room for any other 
interpretation. 
 
Response 

 
The commenter expresses confusion on whether section 120.8 and 120.9 of the Law allow the 
Oneida Business Committee to carry out sanctions and penalties based on the Trial Court’s 
determination. The commenter suggests that the Law be clarified that the Oneida Business 
Committee imposes sanctions and/or penalties on appointed officials, and the Trial Court imposes 
sanctions and/or penalties on elected officials.  
 

55 of 123



 

Page 33 of 71 

 

This distinction is already made clear in the Law. The Law states that if the Oneida Business 
Committee finds that there is clear and convincing evidence that the official engaged in 
misconduct, the Oneida Business Committee shall, by majority vote, determine and impose 
appropriate sanctions and/or penalties. [1 O.C. 120.6-8(a)]. The Law also states that if the Trial 
Court finds that there is clear and convincing evidence that the official engaged in misconduct, the 
Trial Court shall determine and impose any sanctions and/or penalties deemed appropriate in 
accordance with this law. [1 O.C. 120.7-3(a)]. Therefore, the Oneida Business Committee will not 
be imposing sanctions and/or penalties against an elected official based on a determination from 
the Trial Court, and the Trial Court will not be imposing sanctions and/or penalties against an 
appointed official based on a determination from the Oneida Business Committee.  
 
There is no recommended revision based on this law. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that the Law is clear that Oneida Business 
Committee shall determine and impose appropriate sanctions and/or penalties against appointed 
officials, and the Trial Court shall determine and impose any sanctions and/or penalties against 
elected officials. Therefore, no revision to the Law is necessary based on this comment. 
 

Comment 25 – Trial Court Provides Determination for Record of Conduct: 
 
120.7. Complaints Alleged Against an Elected Official 
120.7-5.  The Trial Court shall provide the Business Committee Support Office a copy of the 
complaint and the determination of the Trial Court for the official’s record of conduct in 
office. 
 
Bonnie Pigman (written): In Section 120.10, I agree once the Judiciary has made a determination 
a copy of the imposed sentence could be provided to the Business Committee as stated on lines 
238 & 239 Section 12.7-5. 
 
Response 

 
The commenter expresses agreement with the provision of section 120.7-5 which requires the Trial 
Court to provide the Business Committee Support Office a copy of the complaint and the 
determination of the Trial Court for inclusion in the official’s record of conduct in office. 
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that there was no revision to the Law necessary 
based on this comment. 
 

Comment 26 – Involvement of the Oneida Business Committee and Business Committee 
Support Office in Sanctions and Penalties: 

56 of 123



 

Page 34 of 71 

 

 
Bonnie Pigman (written): Question: In Section 120.8 I'm not sure why the Business Committee 
or their Support Staff are performing duties that should be court or law enforcement personnel 
related. Isn't that what Judiciary staff /law enforcement officials are responsible for? If not, it 
should be. That's how other court' s handle their actions. Once a court determination is made, it 
becomes law enforcements responsibility to see that the sanction or penalty of the court is carried 
out. When did our Business Committee or their support staff become law enforcers? How are these 
duties outlined in the Constitution for elected officials or in the "Business Committee job 
descriptions"? 
 
Response 

 

The commenter questions why the Oneida Business Committee and the Oneida Business 
Committee Support Office staff are performing duties that should be completed by personnel of 
the Court or law enforcement.  
 
The Law does not require the Oneida Business Committee or the Business Committee Support 
Office to engage in any activity that should be handled by law enforcement or the Trial Court.  
 
The Oneida Business Committee imposes sanctions and/or penalties against appointed officials, 
and the Trial Court imposes sanctions and/or penalties against elected officials. [1 O.C. 120.6-
8(a), 120.7-3(a)]. The further involvement of the Oneida Business Committee and/or Business 
Committee Support Office in section 120.8-1 of the Law is to conduct administrative duties in 
regard to the sanctions and/or penalties, such as: 

1. Accepting notice of when a verbal reprimand will take place at an Oneida Business 
Committee or General Tribal Council meeting so the agenda can be properly prepared [1 
O.C. 120.8-2(a)(1)]; 

2. Reading the verbal reprimand statement at an Oneida Business Committee or General 
Tribal Council meeting [1 O.C. 120.8-2(a)(2)]; 

3. Accepting notice of when a public apology will take place at an Oneida Business 
Committee or General Tribal Council meeting so that the agenda can be properly prepared 
[1 O.C. 120.8-2(b)]; and 

4. Accepting notice of when an official will be placed on suspension [1 O.C. 120.8-2(d)(2)]. 
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment.  
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee has determined that there is no revision to the Law needed 
based on this comment. 
 

Comment 27 – Verbal Reprimand Imposed Against the Oneida Business Committee 
Chairperson: 
 
120.8. Sanctions and Penalties 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

57 of 123



 

Page 35 of 71 

 

(a)  Verbal Reprimand.  A verbal reprimand may be imposed on the official.  
(1)  The Oneida Business Committee or Trial Court shall submit written 
notices to both the official and to the Business Committee Support Office of 
the specific date, time and location of the verbal reprimand. The verbal 
reprimand shall occur at an Oneida Business Committee meeting and/or a 
General Tribal Council meeting. 
(2)  To impose the verbal reprimand, the Oneida Business Committee 
Chairperson shall read a statement that identifies: 

(A) The Oneida Business Committee or Trial Court’s findings 
regarding the specific actions or inaction taken by the official that were 
found to be misconduct; 
(B) The reasons why the official’s actions or inactions amounted to 
misconduct;  
(C) A statement identifying that the misconduct violates the high 
standards of behavior expected of the Nation’s officials and is not 
acceptable; and 
(D) A direction to the official to refrain from engaging in future 
misconduct.   

 
Lisa Liggins (oral):  Line 253, if a verbal reprimand is imposed upon the Oneida Business 
Committee Chairperson, who should read the statement.  I didn’t see it outlined in the definitions, 
but I might have missed it. 
 
Response 

 

Since the Law provides that the Oneida Business Committee Chairperson shall deliver the verbal 
reprimand to an official, the commenter questions who would deliver a verbal reprimand if the 
verbal reprimand is imposed upon the Oneida Business Committee Chairperson. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee makes the following revision to the 
Law to address this concern: 
 
120.8-2(a)(2)  To impose the verbal reprimand, the presiding Oneida Business Committee 
Chairperson, or another Oneida Business Committee member holding an officer position if the 
verbal reprimand is imposed against the presiding Oneida Business Committee Chairperson, shall 
read a statement that identifies: 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee agreed with the commenter that the Law should be clarified 
to provide for who would read a verbal reprimand if it is the Oneida Business Committee 
Chairperson who is being reprimanded. The Legislative Operating Committee wanted the Law to 
be more flexible than the recommended revision, and directed that the following revision be made 
to the Law: 
 

58 of 123



 

Page 36 of 71 

 

120.8-2(a)(2)  To impose the verbal reprimand, the presiding Oneida Business Committee 
Chairperson, or another Oneida Business Committee member if the verbal reprimand is imposed 
against the presiding Oneida Business Committee Chairperson, shall read a statement that 
identifies: 
 

Comment 28 –  Consequences of a Refusal to Make a Public Apology: 
 
120.8. Sanctions and Penalties 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

(b)  Public Apology.  The official may be ordered to make a public apology. The 
Oneida Business Committee or Trial Court shall submit written notices to both the 
official and to the Business Committee Support Office of the specific date, time and 
location of the public apology. The public apology shall occur at an Oneida Business 
Committee meeting and/or a General Tribal Council meeting. The public apology 
shall: 

(1) identify the specific misconduct committed by the official; 
(2) recognize that the official’s actions or inactions were wrong; 
(3) identify the effects of the official’s misconduct; and 
(4) include a clear and unambiguous apology from the official. 

 
Lisa Liggins (oral):  Line 262 is regarding public apologies and what’s the consequence if an 
official refuses to give a public apology that’s been imposed upon them or if the public apology 
that they do provide doesn’t meet the requirements in Lines 267 to 270.  It seems like the only 
recourse would be the Removal Law, but then if that’s the case, it should probably be referenced 
in this section. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter questions if the only recourse for an official who refuses to make an ordered public 
apology, or makes an apology that does not meet the requirements of the Law, would be the 
Removal law. If so, the commenter suggests that that fact be referenced in this section of the Law.  
 
Removal of an official, pursuant to the Nation’s Removal law, would not be the only recourse 
available if an official does not comply with the provisions of this Law, as the Removal law only 
applies to those officials which are elected by the Nation’s membership. [1 O.C. 104.1-1]. 
Although the Removal law does not apply to those officials that serve appointed positions, 
appointed officials of the Nation are subject to termination of appointment by the Oneida Business 
Committee in accordance with the Nation’s Boards, Committees, and Commissions law. [1 O.C. 
105.7-4]. 
 
Therefore, there are a couple options for responding to an official who does not comply with the 
provisions of this Law, which include: 

1. Filing another complaint of misconduct against the official in accordance with this Law for 
the opportunity of imposing additional penalties against the official;  

2. Proceeding with fulfilling the requirements for removal pursuant to the Removal law, if an 
elected official; or  

59 of 123



 

Page 37 of 71 

 

3. Proceeding with fulfilling the requirements for termination of appointment pursuant to the 
Boards, Committees, and Commissions law, if an appointed official.  

 
The Legislative Operating Committee may determine if it is necessary to revise the Law to state 
the consequences of not following provisions of this Law, or if it is understood that there is always 
the option of filing an additional complaint against the official, pursuing removal, or pursuing 
termination of appointment separately. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that the Law could be clarified to state the 
options for responding to an official who does not comply with the provisions of this Law. The 
Legislative Operating Committee determined the following revision should be made to the Law: 
 
120.8-5.  An official who does not comply with a sanction and/or penalty that has been imposed 
against him or her by either the Oneida Business Committee or Trial Court may be subject to the 
following: 

(a)  additional sanctions and/or penalties that result from a compliant of misconduct filed 
in accordance with this Law based on the non-compliance; 
(b) termination of appointment by the Oneida Business Committee in accordance with the 
Nation’s laws and policies governing boards, committees, and commissions, if the official 
was appointed to his or her position; and/or 
(c)  removal in accordance with the Nation’s laws and policies governing removal, if the 
official was elected to his or her position. 

 

Comment 29 – Conditional Use of Public Apologies: 
 
Lisa Liggins (oral):  But overall I do agree with the recommendation in Lines 407 to 409 of the 
analysis of offering public apology as an alternative to other sanctions and penalties and I would 
ask that the LOC consider this recommendation. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter agrees with the consideration offered in the legislative analysis that public 
apologies should be offered as an alternative to the imposition of other sanctions and penalties. 
 
This means that if the Oneida Business Committee or the Trial Court makes the determination that 
a sanction should be imposed against the official, a public apology can be imposed against the 
official as a sanction, with the condition that if the official does not make the public apology then 
a verbal reprimand or fine will be imposed. The conditional use of a public apology would 
encourage the official to take accountability and make an apology for his or her action. 
 
During the review and discussion of the legislative analysis, the Legislative Operating Committee 
supported the suggestion of using public apologies as an alternative to other sanctions, but 
ultimately decided that the use of a public apology as an alternative to other sanctions can be used 
in that way without any revision to the Law. 

60 of 123



 

Page 38 of 71 

 

 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider if the conditional use of certain sanctions 
and/or penalties should be referenced directly in the Law. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

Although the Legislative Operating Committee determined that the conditional use of certain 
sanctions and/or penalties could occur without revisions to the Law, that Legislative Operating 
Committee wanted to ensure that this point is included in the Law so that all future readers of the 
Law are aware that the conditional use of a sanction and/or penalty is possible. Therefore, the 
Legislative Operating Committee determined that the following revision should be made to the 
Law based on this comment: 
 
120.8-4.  The Oneida Business Committee and/or the Trial Court may impose a sanction and/or 
penalty on a conditional basis, whereas compliance with a specific sanction and/or penalty shall 
prevent the imposition of a more stringent or burdensome sanction and/or penalty. 
 

Comments 30 through 31 – Simplify Suspension Language: 
 
120.8. Sanctions and Penalties 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

(d)  Suspension.  An official may be suspended from performing his or her duties as 
an official for one (1) consecutive period of time, not to exceed sixty (60) business days. 

(1)  During a suspension, the official shall not: 
(A)  attend meetings, trainings or any other event as part of the entity; 
(B)  attend conferences or other events on behalf of, or as a 
representative of, the entity; 
(C)  vote or participate in any activities of the entity;  
(D)  perform work on behalf of the entity; or 
(E)  be eligible for any compensation, including regular pay, stipends, 
or mileage reimbursement. 

(2)  When an official is suspended, the Oneida Business Committee or Trial 
Court shall submit written notices to both the official and to the Business 
Committee Support Office of the specific start and end date of the suspension. 

 
Lisa Liggins (oral):  Line 277 is regarding suspension.  I think that the intent is that the period of 
time can only be once per complaint and it can’t be split, it’s the language that says one consecutive 
set of days or something like that.  It’s just confusing. And so I have just one other, but I will 
submit that in writing and thank you for your consideration. 
 
Lisa Liggins (written): Line 277 - regarding Suspension. I think I understand the intent that the 
"period of time" (i.e. hours, days, weeks) imposed can only be "one (1)" time per complaint (as 
opposed to per act of misconduct) and it cannot be split up and must be taken one after another 
("consecutive"). If that is the intent, I think plainer language is needed. Such as: An official may 
be suspended from performing his or her duties as an official for a period of time, not to exceed 

61 of 123



 

Page 39 of 71 

 

sixty (60) days. The period of time must run consecutively. Suspensions may be imposed once per 
complaint. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter states that the language used in regard to suspension “An official may be 
suspended from performing his or her duties as an official for one (1) consecutive period of time, 
not to exceed sixty (60) days” is confusing and should be simplified into plainer language. 
 
It is recommended that this provision of the Law be simplified to remove “one (1) consecutive.” 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that the language in this section of the Law 
could be simplified, and therefore the following revision should be made: 
 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

(d)  Suspension.  An official may be suspended from performing his or her duties as an 
official for one (1) consecutive a period of time, not to exceed sixty (60) business days. 

 

Comments 32 through 33 –  Timeframe for Suspensions: 
 
120.8. Sanctions and Penalties 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

(d)  Suspension.  An official may be suspended from performing his or her duties as 
an official for one (1) consecutive period of time, not to exceed sixty (60) days. 

 
Matthew W. Denny (oral):  The other issue would be Line 276, Suspension, it says an official 
may be suspended not to exceed 60 days and I know it was mentioned in the analysis about the 
Gaming Commission and the Business Committee, but that is not in this law as it’s written right 
now and I would like that to be referenced about the Business Committee and the Gaming 
Commission as they are not monthly or bi-monthly meetings, they are five day a week jobs and a 
60 day suspension is way too long.  I know that may not be the intent, but the fact is the law says 
you could be suspended up to 60 days, when in fact any employee is only to be suspended up to 
15 days.  I think there should be some consistency with a suspension of that kind and additionally, 
any suspension that has to do with 60 days is not the intent of this law.  The intent of this law is to 
bring about corrective action for minor infractions of a law, that does not mean removal.  So a 60 
day suspension to me is cause for removal.  You shouldn’t be suspended for 60 days or even past 
15 days.  If you’re suspended past 15 days, that’s cause for removal in my opinion and it’s not 
consistent with the other parts of this law. 
 
Travis Wallenfang (written):  Suspensions longer than 14 days are not conducive to the Tribal 
governments as work still continues so it is with my recommendation  Shall not exceed 14 business 
day and if more serious look at termination. 
 
Response 

62 of 123



 

Page 40 of 71 

 

 

The commenters suggest that the maximum time allowed for an official to be suspended be 
lowered from the sixty (60) days currently provided for in the Law for couple reasons: 

1. To be consistent with the Nation’s policies governing suspension for employees, which 
only allows a maximum suspension of three (3) weeks;  

2. An action that would warrant a suspension of sixty (60) days would most likely rise to the 
level of removal; and  

3. A suspension longer than fourteen (14) days would cause a burdensome delay to the 
Nation’s government functions, that still have to operate while that person is on suspension. 

 
Elected and appointed officials are not employees of the Nation, and therefore are not subject to 
the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures. This means that elected and appointed officials are 
not subject to the requirement that suspensions will be limited to a maximum of three (3) weeks. 
[Personnel Policies and Procedures Section V.5.6.1.1]. Although elected and appointed officials 
are not subject to the three (3) week limitation, it is up to the Legislative Operating Committee to 
determine if the sixty (60) day maximum should remain in the Law, or if the maximum time 
allowed for suspensions should be modified. The Legislative Operating Committee may choose to 
lower the maximum amount of time allowed for suspensions to reflect the fact that the most 
egregious of cases can be addressed through termination or removal. 
 
Additionally, the commenter suggests that the Law be amended to specifically reference the fact 
that some elected or appointed officials serve in a full-time capacity, such as members of the 
Oneida Business Committee or Oneida Gaming Commission. Suspension of a full time official 
will have different consequences and impacts than suspension of an official who attends monthly 
regular meetings. Suspension of a full-time official will impact salaries, benefits such as health 
insurance, and access to buildings and email.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may determine if the Law should specifically address those 
elected or appointed officials that serve in a full-time capacity when setting limitations for 
suspension. The LOC may make the determination that: 

1. The Law should remain as currently drafted and set one maximum suspension timeframe 
for elected or appointed officials, whether or not they serve in a full-time capacity. 

2. The Law should be amended as follows to reflect the fact that some officials serve in a full-
time capacity: 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 
(d)  Suspension.  An official may be suspended from performing his or her duties as an 
official for one (1) consecutive a period of time, not to exceed _(#) meetings, or (#) sixty 
(60) days if the official serves in a full-time capacity. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee agreed with the commenters that the sixty (60) maximum 
suspension time could be considered excessive. Boards, committees, and commissions of the 
Nation provide important government functions, the Legislative Operating Committee does not 
want the work of a board, committee, or commission to be affected, due to a loss of quorum or 
other reasons, for up to sixty (60) days due to a suspension.  The Legislative Operating Committee 

63 of 123



 

Page 41 of 71 

 

determined that suspensions should be allowed for a maximum of fifteen (5) business days, which 
would be consistent with the suspension policy for employees of the Nation.  
 
Additionally, the Legislative Operating Committee determined that the Law should be amended 
to address the fact that there are some officials that serve in a full-time capacity, and reference 
suspensions in terms of days and meetings. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee decided the following revision should be made to the Law 
as a result of these comments: 

(d)  Suspension.  An official may be suspended from performing his or her duties as an 
official for one (1) consecutive a period of time, not to exceed two (2) meetings, or fifteen 
(15) sixty (60) days, if the official serves in a full-time capacity. 

 

Comment 34 – Community Service instead of Suspension: 
 
120.8. Sanctions and Penalties 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

(d)  Suspension.  An official may be suspended from performing his or her duties as 
an official for one (1) consecutive period of time, not to exceed sixty (60) days. 

 
(f)  Fines.  An official may be ordered to pay a fine not to exceed five thousand dollars 
($5,000)  per act of misconduct. 

 (4)  Community service may be substituted for part or all of any fine at the 
minimum wage rate of the Nation for each hour of community service. 

 
Travis Wallenfang (written): [Referencing lines 264,265, 266, 267 Suspension. The BC or Trial 
Court may suspend an official for up to sixty (60) days. During a suspension, the official cannot 
attend meetings, trainings, or conferences. The official also cannot vote or perform work for the 
board. In addition, the official cannot earn any stipends, salary or mileage during the suspension. 
(Page 9)]. 
 
Suspension- is not a means of discipline, why not do community service instead of could order 
community service along with the other items. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter questions why suspension is included in the Law as a sanction that may be imposed 
on an official, while community service is not included. 
 
Although community service is not included as a standalone sanction that can be imposed on an 
official, community service is referenced in the Law as an alternative to paying a fine. 
 
The Law states that community service may be substituted for part or all of any fine at the 
minimum wage rate of the Nation for each hour of community service. [1 O.C. 120.8-2(f)(4)]. 
 

64 of 123



 

Page 42 of 71 

 

It would be a policy consideration for the Legislative Operating to determine if community service 
should be added into the Law as a standalone sanction that may be imposed on an elected official.  
 
LOC Consideration 

 
The Legislative Operating Committee determined that it is sufficient that the Law allows for 
community service as an alternative to paying a fine, therefore, no additional revision to the Law 
is needed based on this comment. 
 
Comment 35 – Should Suspension be a Sanction: 
 
120.8. Sanctions and Penalties 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

(d)  Suspension.  An official may be suspended from performing his or her duties as 
an official for one (1) consecutive period of time, not to exceed sixty (60) days. 

 
Brian Doxtator (oral): Shekoli, (other Oneida greeting), Brian Doxtator (speaking Oneida), 
Enrollment number (speaking Oneida).  Thank you for holding this public hearing on sanctions 
and penalties.  I don’t know how to say this, but the sanctions and penalties is not suspension and 
it’s not removal and I didn’t get the connection of talking about suspending and removing in 
regards to the whole law, it’s something to try to get a leader back on track and so I thought it was 
a disconnect from that whole conceptual thinking and so when this kind of started. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter states that sanctions and penalties should not include suspension or removal, and 
instead should focus on getting the official back on track and should not focus on removing the 
official from his or her position. 
 
Currently, there are few remedies available to address an official of the Nation that commits 
misconduct in office. Appointed officials may have their position terminated by the Oneida 
Business Committee in accordance with the Boards, Committees, and Commissions law, and 
elected officials may be subject to removal in accordance with the Removal law. The Legislative 
Operating Committee recognized that there might be instances of misconduct that occur that do 
not rise to the level of termination of appointment or removal. For that reason, this Law was 
developed. It was the intention of the Legislative Operating Committee to provide a means to 
address instances of misconduct before the misconduct rises to the level of removal. This will 
provide members of the community an opportunity to voice their concerns about alleged 
misconduct, and also allow officials of the Nation an opportunity to accept accountability for 
behavior that has been classified as misconduct and become a better official as a result of the 
growth that may come from a sanction and/or penalty. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee made an effort to include a wide variety of potential 
sanctions and penalties that could be imposed against an official in an effort to provide options to 
address any potential act of misconduct that may arise. The Law allows the Oneida Business 
Committee and the Trial Court the opportunity to impose a single sanction and/or penalty, or a 

65 of 123



 

Page 43 of 71 

 

combination of sanctions and/or penalties. [1 O.C. 120.8-1]. The Law then provides guidance to 
the Oneida Business Committee and the Trial Court in what factors to consider when determining 
the appropriate sanction and/or penalty to impose. [1 O.C. 120.8-3]. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee made the policy determination that suspension of an official 
should be included in the Law as a sanction and penalty. The Legislative Operating Committee 
may determine: 

1. The Law should remain as currently drafted and include suspensions as a potential sanction 
and penalty that may be imposed against an official.  

2. The Law should be amended to remove suspension from the potential sanctions and 
penalties that may be imposed against an official. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that suspension should remain in the Law as a 
potential sanction and penalty that may be imposed against an official. The Legislative Operating 
Committee wanted to ensure that there were a variety of options for sanctions and/or penalties 
available under the Law so that every act of misconduct can be addressed in the most appropriate 
way.  
 
Although the intent of the Law is not to prevent an official from serving in his or her official 
capacity, the Legislative Operating Committee recognized that there might be a situation that arises 
in which a more serious sanction such as suspension would be needed to address the action of the 
official, and to ensure the official does not engage in that behavior again.  
 

When reviewing this comment, the Legislative Operating Committee discussed the possibility of 
an individual filing a complaint against all members of a board, committee, or commission at the 
same time, and therefore the possibility that a suspension could be imposed against all members 
of a board, committee, or commission. The Legislative Operating Committee determined that in 
the interest of protecting a board, committee, or commission’s ability to conduct business, a 
provision should be added to the Law that states if multiple members of a board, committee, or 
commission are suspended the suspensions should be staggered.  
The Legislative Operating Committee determined the following provision should be added to the 
Law: 

(d)  Suspension.  An official may be suspended from performing his or her duties as an 
official for a period of time, not to exceed two (2) meetings, or fifteen (60) business days 
if the official serves in a full-time capacity. 

(3)  If a suspension is imposed on multiple officials of the same entity at one time, 
the Oneida Business Committee or the Trial Court shall impose the suspensions of 
the officials on a staggered basis to avoid any interruption of the official business 
and function of the entity. 

 

Comment 36 – Restitution: 
 
120.8. Sanctions and Penalties 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

66 of 123



 

Page 44 of 71 

 

(e)  Restitution. An official may be ordered to pay restitution, which may include the 
repayment of any improperly-received benefit, or any other payment which is 
intended to make another whole after suffering losses as a result of the official’s 
misconduct. 

 
Lisa Liggins (written):  Line 289 – Typo.  The "n" in "Restitution" should be capitalized 
 
Response 

 

The commenter correctly identified an error in line 289 of the draft. The term restitution appears 
as “(e)  Restitution.”  
 
It is recommended that this error be corrected, and the last “n” in restitution be italicized as the 
rest of the word. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee agrees that the revision be made to the Law. 
 

Comments 37 through 38 - Amount of Fines: 
 
120.8. Sanctions and Penalties 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

(f)  Fines.  An official may be ordered to pay a fine not to exceed five thousand dollars 
($5,000) per act of misconduct. 
 

Matthew W. Denny (oral):  Another issue, comment, is on line 292, Fines.  The official may be 
ordered to pay not to exceed $5,000.  Again, $5,000 to me is way too high.  If something were to 
be so severe that you would come up with a $5,000 fine, then that to me is a removal process.  
Again, that’s way too much, way too excessive for a minor infraction, so I would like to see that 
number reduced, possibly to $500 to $1,000 would be my recommendation, but $5,000 is way too 
much.  You’re talking about removal at that point. 
 
Travis Wallenfang (written):  [Referencing lines 272 & 273 Fines. An official can be ordered to 
pay a fine for each act of misconduct. Unlike restitution, a fine is a punishment. The maximum 
amount of each fine is $5000. (Page 9)]. 
 
Fines should not get to the excessive point of $5000 and the Oneida Business Committee, Boards, 
Committees and Commissions should be Termination or official to be removed from the position. 
fines may be applicable based on Sections F Factors in Determining Appropriate Sanction and /or 
penalty and amount for the Fines. 
 

Response 

 

67 of 123



 

Page 45 of 71 

 

The commenters express the opinion that allowing an official to be ordered to pay a fine up to five 
thousand dollars ($5,000) per act of misconduct is excessive. One commenter instead suggests that 
fines be limited to possibly five hundred dollars ($500) or to one thousand dollars ($1,000). 
 
The maximum amount of fines that may be ordered upon an official found to have committed 
misconduct is a policy determination for the Legislative Operating Committee to make. The LOC 
may determine: 

1. The Law should remain as drafted; or 
2. The Law should be amended to reflect an alternative maximum fine amount. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee discussed at length what the maximum amount for a fine 
should be and was split in regards to opinions on how to move forward with this policy 
consideration.  
 
Some members of the Legislative Operating Committee agreed with the commenters that the five 
thousand dollar ($5,000) maximum fine could be considered excessive, and if an official engages 
in misconduct that warrants a five thousand dollar ($5,000) fine, that official should probably face 
termination or removal.  
 

Other members of the Legislative Operating Committee felt the five thousand dollar ($5,000) 
maximum fine amount should remain in the Law due to the fact that even if the misconduct of the 
official rises to the level that termination of appointment or removal is sought, that should not 
prevent a fine from being imposed in addition to that termination of appointment or removal.  
 
Ultimately, the Legislative Operating Committee compromised amongst themselves and 
determined the following revision should be made to the Law based on these comments: 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

(f)  Fines.  An official may be ordered to pay a fine not to exceed five two thousand and 
five hundred dollars ($25,5000) per act of misconduct. 

 

Comment 39 –  Fines Per Act of Misconduct: 
 
120.8. Sanctions and Penalties 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

(f)  Fines.  An official may be ordered to pay a fine not to exceed five thousand dollars 
($5,000)  per act of misconduct. 

(1)  Fines shall be paid to the Trial Court. 
(2)  Fines shall be paid within ninety (90) days after the order is issued or 
upheld on final appeal, whichever is later. Cash shall not be accepted for 
payment of fines. If the fine is not paid by this deadline, the Trial Court may 
seek to collect the money owed through the Nation’s garnishment and/or per 
capita attachment process. 
(3)  Money received from fines shall be deposited into the General Fund. 

68 of 123



 

Page 46 of 71 

 

(4)  Community service may be substituted for part or all of any fine at the 
minimum wage rate of the Nation for each hour of community service. 

 
Lisa Liggins (written):  Line 293 - regarding Fines.  This section states fines can be imposed "per 
act". This is the only sanction or penalty that is specifically imposed "per act". Is it the intent that 
the others are imposed "per complaint"? If so, then maybe language should be added to line 242 
of the main section which indicates all except fines may imposed "per complaint". Or could any 
of the other sanctions and penalties also be imposed "per act"?  Another option might be to include 
"per complaint" or "per act" language to each sanction or penalty. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter expresses confusion on why the section of the Law regarding fines includes the 
qualifier that the fine is imposed per act of misconduct, while none of the other sanctions mention 
whether the sanction is imposed per act of misconduct or per complaint.  
 
It was the intent of this Law that every sanction and/or penalty that could be imposed would be 
imposed as a result of the complaint as a whole, and not per act of misconduct contained in one 
complaint. For clarification purposes it is recommended that the following revision be made: 
 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

(f)  Fines.  An official may be ordered to pay a fine not to exceed five thousand dollars 
($5,000)  per act of misconduct. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee made the decision to remove the qualifier that fines are 
imposed per act of misconduct due to the fact that a sanction or sanctions will be imposed as a 
result of a complaint as a whole. The Legislative Operating Committee determined the following 
revision should be made to the Law as a result of this comment: 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

(f)  Fines.  An official may be ordered to pay a fine not to exceed two thousand and five 
hundred dollars ($2,500)  per act of misconduct. 

 

Comment 40 – Cultural Context of Fines: 
 
Travis Wallenfang (written):  My Next comment was to the context of the fines as the Anglo-
American law systems often times do not reflect the ways of the of the Traditional/Cultural laws. 
In section pertaining to the fines it essential to take look at the tradition ways once again because 
if they elders have spoken to the leadership multiple times and the leadership has chosen not to 
listen, then they can be removed from the positions of leadership. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter questions the cultural context of the inclusion of fines in the Law, and worries that 
the inclusion of fines does not reflect traditional and/or cultural ways. 

69 of 123



 

Page 47 of 71 

 

 
The Legislative Operating Committee made an effort to include a wide variety of potential 
sanctions and penalties that could be imposed against an official in an effort to provide options to 
address any potential act of misconduct that may arise. The Law allows the Oneida Business 
Committee and the Trial Court the opportunity to impose a single sanction and/or penalty, or a 
combination of sanctions and/or penalties. [1 O.C. 120.8-1]. The Law then provides guidance to 
the Oneida Business Committee and the Trial Court in what factors to consider when determining 
the appropriate sanction and/or penalty to impose. [1 O.C. 120.8-3]. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee made the policy determination that fines should be included 
in the Law as a sanction and penalty. The Legislative Operating Committee may determine: 

1. The Law should remain as currently drafted and include fines as a potential sanction and 
penalty that may be imposed against an official.  

2. The Law should be amended to remove fines from the potential sanctions and penalties 
that may be imposed against an official. 

 
Additionally, the commenter provides an example of a traditional practice by which elders provide 
warnings to an official if the official engages in behavior that constitutes misconduct, and if the 
official fails to heed the warnings of the elders, the official can be removed from the position of 
leadership. Today, the removal of an official from his or her position of leadership can only be 
done in accordance with the process contained in the Removal law, which was adopted by the 
Nation’s General Tribal Council.  
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that fines should remain in the Law as a 
potential sanction that can be imposed against an official who engaged in misconduct, and 
therefore no revision to the Law is necessary based on this comment. 
 

Comment 41 –  Loss of Stipends: 
 
120.8. Sanctions and Penalties 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

(g)  Loss of Stipend.  An official may be ordered to forfeit a stipend for his or her 
service on an entity not to exceed twelve (12) meetings. 

 
Matthew W. Denny (oral):  Additionally, I want to comment about line 303, the loss of a stipend.  
You go back, at the bottom, it says you cannot exceed 12 meetings.  Again, that is being 
inconsistent with a suspension, because a suspension loses your stipend as well with a 60 day 
policy.  So you have a loss of stipend for 12 meetings which could be 12 days, a 12 day suspension 
more or less.  That should be consistent with the suspension part of it.  So, if you going to lose 60 
days, you are going to be suspended for 60 days, but you can only lose your stipend for 12 
meetings, it’s not consistent, so I would like that clarified or cleaned up a little bit.  And that’s it, 
that’s all I got. 
 
Response 

70 of 123



 

Page 48 of 71 

 

 

The commenter believes that the provisions regarding a loss of stipend and suspension are 
inconsistent since a suspension can span a maximum of sixty (60) days while a person can be 
ordered to forfeit a stipend for a maximum of twelve (12) meetings. 
 
A suspension automatically includes a loss of stipend and/or any other form of compensation 
during the suspension period due to the fact that an official is not allowed to attend meetings, 
trainings, conferences, or any other activity. [1 O.C. 120.8-2(d)]. Although a loss of stipend is 
inherent to a suspension, a suspension is not required in order for the Oneida Business Committee 
of the Judiciary to order a loss of stipend. The Law states that a sanction or penalty, or any 
combination of sanctions and penalties, may be imposed upon an official. [1 O.C. 120.8-1]. 
Therefore, a loss of stipend can be ordered independent of a suspension, and the maximum 
allotments for each sanction do not necessarily have to be consistent.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether the maximum amount of time an 
official may be ordered to forfeit a stipend should be consistent with the maximum amount of time 
an official may be ordered to be suspended for. The Legislative Operating Committee may decide: 

1. The Law should remain as currently drafted; or 
2. The Law should be amended to make the maximum amount of time an official may be 

ordered to forfeit a stipend consistent with the maximum amount of time an official may 
be ordered to be suspended for. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that the Law should be amended to make the 
maximum amount of time an official may be ordered to forfeit a stipend consistent with the 
maximum amount of time an official may be ordered to be suspended for. The Legislative 
Operating Committee directed that the following revision be made to the Law: 
 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

(g)  Loss of Stipend.  An official may be ordered to forfeit a stipend for his or her service 
on an entity not to exceed twoelve (12) meetings. 

 

Comment 42  – Application of the Loss of Stipend: 
 
120.8. Sanctions and Penalties 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

(g)  Loss of Stipend.  An official may be ordered to forfeit a stipend for his or her 
service on an entity not to exceed twelve (12) meetings. 

 
Bonnie Pigman (written): Example of an incomplete sanction or penalty is found on lines 303-
304: (g) Loss of Stipend. States that the fine is to forfeit a stipend for twelve (12) meetings. The 
doesn't say it has to occur consecutively or even if applies to only the entity which the individual 
may have committed the misconduct. (Example individual is on 3 entities and misconduct occurs 
on only one. Since the stipends are now a standard $100 for every Board, Committee, Commission, 

71 of 123



 

Page 49 of 71 

 

what difference would it make if they had the stipend withheld from each until the twelve (12) 
were met? 
 
Response 

 
The commenter suggests that more detail regarding the loss of stipend provision would be 
beneficial to aid in the understanding of the application of this sanction. The commenter questions 
if the loss of stipend happens for a consecutive period of time, and if the loss of stipends applies 
to all boards, committees, and commissions an individual sits on, or just the board, committee, or 
commission that the complaint arose from. 
 
It was intended that the loss of stipend for a set number of time would designate the period of time 
in which the person would not be eligible to receive a stipend for. Since it sets a period of time the 
assumption is that this will be a consecutive period of time. 
 
In regard to the question of whether an individual would lose his or her stipend for a determined 
amount of meetings for all positions the individual serves, or just the position that is most related 
to the complaint, this is a policy consideration for the Legislative Operating Committee. The 
Legislative Operating Committee may determine: 

1. The loss of stipends should apply for a set number of meetings, and include meetings for 
all positions the official serves. 

2. The loss of stipends should apply for a set number of meetings, and only include meetings 
for the positions that is most related to the complaint, not any other position of the official. 

3. The Law should allow for flexibility in making the determination of whether the loss of 
stipends only applies to meetings of one position or meetings of all positions of an official, 
as there are many different situations that may arise. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that the Law should remain as currently drafted 
and not address whether the time period for the loss of stipends should apply to only the entity the 
official serves on that was related to the complaint or apply to all entities an official may serve on. 
The Legislative Operating Committee made this decision based on the desire to allow for 
flexibility and discretion in the Oneida Business Committee or Trial Court’s decision of whether 
the loss of stipends only applies to meetings of one position or meetings of all positions of an 
official, in recognition of the fact that a multitude of situations may arise that could potentially be 
addressed in a variety of manners. 
 

Comment 43 – Application of Loss of Stipend to the Oneida Business Committee: 
 
120.8. Sanctions and Penalties 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 

(g)  Loss of Stipend.  An official may be ordered to forfeit a stipend for his or her 
service on an entity not to exceed twelve (12) meetings. 

 

72 of 123



 

Page 50 of 71 

 

Bonnie Pigman (written): How would a Loss of Stipend apply to the Business Committee as they 
are exempted from the Board, Committee, Commission's law. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter questions how the loss of stipend sanction would apply to the Oneida Business 
Committee since they are not subject to the Boards, Committees, and Commissions law which 
governs stipends.  
 
The loss of stipend sanction would not necessarily apply to those officials that serve in a full-time 
capacity, such as members of the Oneida Business Committee and the Oneida Gaming 
Commission. 
 
The Law provides a variety of potential sanctions and penalties that can be applied to officials of 
the Nation that engage in misconduct, and the discretion to determine which sanction and/or 
penalty is appropriate is left up to either the Oneida Business Committee or the Trial Court. [1 
O.C. 120.8].  Not every sanction will be applicable to every elected or appointed official, and not 
every sanction has to be used. 
 
Since the Oneida Business Committee and Oneida Gaming Commission members are full-time 
officials and receive a salary instead of a stipend for every meeting, the loss of stipend sanction is 
not a sanction that would be imposed against a full-time official. Instead, a sanction such as 
suspension or a fine would be more appropriate for a full-time official. 
 
It is a policy consideration for the Legislative Operating Committee to determine if every sanction 
and/or penalty should be applicable to every elected or appointed official, or if it is permissible to 
have a variety of options for sanctions that may not be applicable to every individual official. The 
Legislative Operating Committee may determine: 

1. The Law should remain as currently drafted, with the understanding that while a loss of 
stipend would not apply to the Oneida Business Committee or Oneida Gaming 
Commission members, other sanctions and penalties do apply. 

2. The Law should be amended so that every sanction and/or penalty that is available under 
this law can be applied to every individual official.  

 
LOC Consideration 

 
The Legislative Operating Committee made the determination that the Law should remain as 
currently drafted due to the fact that although the loss of a stipend sanction would not apply to the 
Oneida Business Committee or Oneida Gaming Commission members who serve in a full-time 
capacity, three are other sanctions and penalties that would apply. The Legislative Operating 
Committee understands that not every sanction allowed under the Law will be appropriate for 
every official. 
 

Comment 44 – Prohibition from Office: 
 
120.8. Sanctions and Penalties 

73 of 123



 

Page 51 of 71 

 

120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 
(j)  Prohibition.  Once terminated from office, an appointed official may be prohibited 
from serving on an entity for a period of time not to exceed three (3) years. 

 
Bonnie Pigman (written): Also, on lines 310 - 311: (j) Prohibition. Is the language in this to mean 
prohibition would not apply to elected officials? Why not? Is this intentionally written to be a 
protection for the Business Committee? 
 
Response 

 
The commenter questions if this provision of the Law only applies to appointed officials, and if 
this provision was included for the purpose of providing protection to the Oneida Business 
Committee. 
 
Section 120.8-2(j), which governs the prohibition of officials, does only apply to appointed 
officials that have been terminated from his or her position. 
 
When discussing the inclusion of this provision in the Law, the Legislative Operating Committee 
originally wanted to apply a prohibition from office to both appointed and elected officials, 
recognizing that there might be egregious situations that arise in the future that would result in the 
desire to prohibit an official from seeking office again. 
 
During these discussions the Legislative Operating Committee discussed the Nation’s Constitution 
and Bylaws which provide for the qualifications for election to the Oneida Business Committee. 
The Constitution states that the qualified voters may elect an individual for placement on the 
Oneida Business Committee if the individual is age twenty-one (21) and over, physically resides 
in either Brown or Outagamie Counties of Wisconsin, and is an enrolled member of the Nation. 
[Article III, Section 3].  
 
The Constitution later states that it is within the General Tribal Council’s authority to adopt 
resolutions on behalf of the Nation, but that they may not be inconsistent with the Constitution in 
regard to regulating the procedure of other tribal agencies, tribal officials, or tribal organizations. 
[Article IV, Section 1(i)]. 
 
Additionally, the Legislative Operating Committee discussed the Nation’s Election law, which 
provides requirements for candidate eligibility. The Election law requires that every candidate for 
election be an enrolled member of the Nation, be a qualified voter on the day of the election, and 
provide proof of physical residency as required for the position for which they seek. [1 O.C. 102.5-
2]. The Election law then goes on to recognize that any further specific requirements or exceptions 
that are set out in duly adopted bylaws or other documents must be followed. [1 O.C. 102.5-1]. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee did not want to inhibit an individual’s right to run for an 
elected position within the Nation, and for that reason the Legislative Operating Committee 
ultimately decided to apply this provision only to appointed officials. This concern was for all 
elected positions of the Nation, and not just a protection for the Oneida Business Committee.  
 

74 of 123



 

Page 52 of 71 

 

If an elected official exhibited such egregious behavior that he or she was removed from office, it 
would be up to the membership of the Nation to choose not to elect that official again. Who serves 
in an elected position is up to the discretion of the Nation’s membership, and therefore the 
Legislative Operating Committee was not comfortable with allowing the Trial Court to make a 
determination that a prohibition sanction should be imposed against an individual resulting in that 
individual not being able to run for an elected position for some time. 
 
Although the Legislative Operating Committee made the determination not to apply prohibitions 
to elected officials, it is worth noting that the Election law does state that an Election Board 
member who is removed from the Election Board shall be ineligible to serve on the Election Board 
for a period of three (3) years. [1 O.C. 102.4-4]. This prohibition after removal is specific to the 
Election Board only. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee determined that a prohibition from office could be a sanction 
that is imposed against appointed officials that are terminated from office due to the fact that 
appointed officials serve at the discretion of the Oneida Business Committee. [1 O.C. 105.7-4, 1 
O.C. 120.6-1]. Therefore, it is within the authority of the Oneida Business Committee to make a 
decision that an individual will not be reconsidered to serve an appointment for a period of time. 
 
Additionally, in regard to the application of this provision, it is important to note that the Oneida 
Business Committee is the body that has the authority to remove an appointed official. The Oneida 
Business Committee can then make the decision to terminate the appointment of an individual and 
prohibit that individual from running for an appointed position for a set period of time at the same 
time. This would not be the case for the Trial Court and prohibition of elected officials. Although 
the Trial Court may impose sanctions and penalties against an elected official, the Trial Court 
cannot order the removal of an elected official from office. The Trial Court may simply 
recommend that the process for removing an elected official be initiated in accordance with the 
Nation’s Removal law. [1 O.C. 120.8-2(i)]. The Removal law ultimately delegates the authority 
to make a determination as to the removal of an elected official to the General Tribal Council. [1 
O.C.104.8-3]. Therefore, even if the Law allowed the Trial Court to prohibit an elected official 
from running for office for a period not to exceed three (3) years, this does not mean the official 
would be removed from his or her position. 
 
To whom a prohibition from office applies to is ultimately a policy consideration for the 
Legislative Operating Committee. The Legislative Operating Committee may determine: 

1. The Law shall remain as currently drafted, and prohibitions from office shall only apply to 
an appointed official who is terminated from his or her position. 

2. The Law should be amended to allow for a prohibition from office to apply to both elected 
and appointed officials. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

During the discussion of this comment, the Legislative Operating Committee echoed their original 
concerns of not inhibiting a person’s right to run for an elected position of the Nation. In an effort 
to eliminate any concerns about consistency, the Legislative Operating Committee made the 
decision to eliminate this provision from the Law.  

75 of 123



 

Page 53 of 71 

 

 

Comments 45 through 47  – Determination of Sanctions and Penalties: 
 
120.8. Sanctions and Penalties 
120.8-1.  A sanction or penalty, or any combination of sanctions and/or penalties, may be 
imposed upon the Nation’s officials for misconduct in office, in accordance with this law.  
120.8-3.  Factors in Determining an Appropriate Sanction and/or Penalty. When determining 
the appropriate sanction or sanctions to impose, the Oneida Business Committee or the Trial 
Court may consider all factors it deems relevant, including but not limited to: 

(a)  the seriousness or severity of the misconduct;  
(b)  whether the conduct was intentional or not;  
(c)  the likelihood of repetition;  
(d)  the extent of probable damage to the finances or reputation of the Nation, the 
complainant, the entity, or to any other person or organization;  
(e)  whether the official or his or her family personally profited, financially or 
otherwise, from the prohibited conduct;  
(f)  the official’s remorse, or  
(g)  the official’s willingness and ability to take steps to mitigate the harm caused by 
the violation, and  
(h)  any prior complaints filed, including any previous sanctions and penalties 
imposed upon the official while serving on an entity.  

 
Rae Skenandore (written): Sanctions and Penalties. Specific actions should have specific 
penalties. This need not be in the Law, but it should be available similar to a fines & fees schedule. 
 
Bonnie Pigman (written): I feel the Sanctions and Penalties draft law lacks clearly outlining what 
the fine or penalty will be assessed for each offense. I read there are "factors" the court is to use, 
but there should some table like there is for Hunting and Fishing or the Domestic Animal laws so 
people know. The law only identifies some offenses. 
 
Travis Wallenfang (written):  Another opportunity is to take a look if money was associated 
similar to felonies with the state which over a certain dollar amount sets in place the amount of 
actions to be taken. 
 
Response 

 

The commenters state that each action of misconduct should have a specific sanction and/or 
penalty that is associated with that misconduct. Additionally, that when allegations of misconduct 
arise that are associated with money, the process for imposing sanctions and penalties should be 
modeled after how felonies are handled in the state of Wisconsin, where every misconduct 
associated with money over a certain dollar amount sets in place the amount of actions, and 
therefore sanctions, to be taken against the individual. 
 
Through the development of this Law the Legislative Operating Committee spent a lot of time 
discussing how sanctions and penalties should be imposed upon officials who have been found to 
have participated in some form of misconduct. The Legislative Operating Committee debated 

76 of 123



 

Page 54 of 71 

 

whether the Law should provide an exhaustive list of potential misconduct, and then prescribe 
specific sanctions and penalties for each type of misconduct. Ultimately, the Legislative Operating 
Committee made the decision to keep what constitutes misconduct and what sanctions and 
penalties should be imposed against an official as open as possible to allow for flexibility in 
addressing whatever situation arises. 
 
Instead of prescribing specific sanctions and/or penalties for behaviors that constitute misconduct, 
the Law provides factors for the Oneida Business Committee and the Trial Court to use when 
determining what an appropriate sanction and/or penalty is. [1 O.C. 120.8-3]. When determining 
the appropriate sanction or sanctions to impose, the Oneida Business Committee or the Trial Court 
may consider all factors it deems relevant, including but not limited to: 

1. the seriousness or severity of the misconduct;  
2. whether the conduct was intentional or not;  
3. the likelihood of repetition;  
4. the extent of probable damage to the finances or reputation of the Nation, the 

complainant, the entity, or to any other person or organization;  
5. whether the official or his or her family personally profited, financially or otherwise, 

from the prohibited conduct;  
6. the official’s remorse, or  
7. the official’s willingness and ability to take steps to mitigate the harm caused by the 

violation, and  
8. any prior complaints filed, including any previous sanctions and penalties imposed 

upon the official while serving on an entity.  
[1 O.C. 120.8-3]. 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee may make the following policy determination as to the detail 
the Law should provide when prescribing sanctions and/or penalties to officials: 

1. The Law should remain as drafted and allow for flexibility in the determination of what 
sanction and/or penalty should be imposed on an official.  

2. The Law should be amended to provide for more specific information on what sanction 
and/or penalty should be imposed for what misconduct. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

During the discussion of this comment the Legislative Operating Committee considered the many 
discussions that had taken place throughout the development of this Law regarding how to impose 
sanctions. The Legislative Operating Committee ultimately decided that the Law should remain as 
drafted and allow for discretion and flexibility in the Oneida Business Committee and Trial Court’s 
determination of what sanction and/or penalty should be imposed on an official.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee made this decision based on the fact that the intent of this 
Law is to find a sanction and/or penalty that would most appropriately addresses the specific 
misconduct of the official. It would be impossible to come up with an exhaustive list of behaviors 
and actions that constitute misconduct to match up with prescribed sanctions. The Legislative 
Operating Committee therefore, cannot determine all behaviors and actions that may constitute 

77 of 123



 

Page 55 of 71 

 

misconduct and what sanction and/or penalty would be most appropriate based on the facts of the 
complaint, it would be better for the Law to allow for flexibility. 
 

Comment  48 – Length of Time to Maintain a Record of Conduct in Office: 
 
120.10. Record of Conduct in Office  
120.10-1.  The Business Committee Support Office shall maintain a record of conduct in 
office for each official.  
120.10-2.  The record of conduct in office maintained for each official shall include, at a 
minimum:  

(a) a copy of each complaint filed against the official; 
(b) the outcome of the complaint, and 
(c) any sanctions or penalties imposed upon an official. 

120.10-3.  The record of conduct in office for each official shall be maintained for a period of 
no less than ten (10) years. 
 
Bonnie Pigman (written): Question: What was the rationale for recommending the ten (10) years 
in section 120.10-3? 
 
Response 

 

The commenter questions the rationale behind requiring the record of conduct in office for each 
official to be maintained for a period of no less than ten (10) years. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee made the policy determination that an official’s record of 
conduct in office should be maintained by the Business Committee Support Office for a period of 
ten (10) years. 
 
The Open Records and Open Meetings law outlines a general retention period of seven (7) years 
for records that are maintained by the Records Management Department before destruction, but 
allows for alternate retention period to be approved by the Oneida Business Committee for specific 
records. [1 O.C. 107.9-4].  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether an alternative time period should be 
developed for the retention of records in the Law, or if the law should remain as currently drafted 
with the requirement that records be maintained for a period no less than ten (10 years). 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee reflected on the fact that the ten (10) year requirement was 
originally included in the Law in the desire to ensure that the record of conduct was maintained 
for a period of time that spanned a couple terms, with the understanding the average term length 
is three (3) years. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee ultimately determined that the following revision should be 
made to the Law to make the provisions of this Law consistent with the requirement that the 

78 of 123



 

Page 56 of 71 

 

Records Management Department maintain all records for a period of at least seven (7) years in 
accordance with the Nation’s Open Records and Open Meetings law: 
 
120.10-3.  The record of conduct in office for each official shall be maintained for a period of no 
less than seventen (107) years. 
 

Comment 49  – Mistreatment of Record of Conduct in Office: 
 
120.10. Record of Conduct in Office  
120.10-1.  The Business Committee Support Office shall maintain a record of conduct in 
office for each official.  
120.10-2.  The record of conduct in office maintained for each official shall include, at a 
minimum:  

(a) a copy of each complaint filed against the official; 
(b) the outcome of the complaint, and 
(c) any sanctions or penalties imposed upon an official. 

120.10-3.  The record of conduct in office for each official shall be maintained for a period of 
no less than ten (10) years. 
 
Bonnie Pigman (written): What controls are in place when there are changes to Business 
Committee (who oversee the BC Support Staff) to ensure no prior misconducts for themselves 
could be just deleted, because they are now the supervisor? 
 
Response 

 
The commenter questions what controls are in place to ensure that the Oneida Business Committee 
does not direct the Business Committee Support Office staff to destroy records. 
 
The Law requires the Business Committee Support Office to maintain an official’s record of 
conduct in office for a period of no less than ten (10) years. [1 O.C. 120.10-3]. If a member of the 
Oneida Business Committee directed the destruction or altercation of a record before the ten (10) 
year timeframe required by this Law has expired, then that would be a direct violation of this Law 
and the official would be subject to sanctions and/or penalties under this Law. 
 
The Oneida Business Committee is also not the direct supervisor of the staff in the Business 
Committee Support Office. The staff in the Business Committee Support Office report to the Area 
Manager of the Oneida Business Committee Records.  
 
If an employee in the Business Committee Support Office improperly maintained the record of 
conduct for an official in violation of this Law, that employee would be subject to the disciplinary 
procedures provided in the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures, since the Oneida Personnel 
Policies and Procedures provides that a violation of a duly adopted law of the Nation may result 
in discipline. [Personnel Policies and Procedures Section V.5].  
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment.  
 

79 of 123



 

Page 57 of 71 

 

LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined there is no revision to the Law needed based on 
this comment. 
 

Comment  50 – Confidentiality: 
 
Rae Skenandore (written): Confidentiality. Is there any presumption of confidentiality prior to 
the hearing of the case? I understand that most documents are public record. However, a reputation 
can be damaged much more readily than it can be repaired. Should these types of cases require 
some sort of confidentiality until a judgement is reached? Also, having information go through the 
courts would help maintain confidentiality. The fewer hands that a complaint goes through, the 
more likely it is to remain confidential. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter questions whether there is a presumption of confidentiality prior to the hearing of 
the case. 
 
When complaints against an appointed official is filed with the Business Committee Support 
Office, the complaint is placed onto an executive session meeting agenda of the Oneida Business 
Committee. Although meetings of the Oneida Business Committee are required by the Nation’s 
Open Records and Open Meetings law to be held in open session [1 O.C. 107.14-1], a closed 
meeting session, known as executive session, is allowed when an exception due to the sensitive 
nature of certain subjects is provided under the law. [1 O.C. 107.17-1].  
 
The Nation’s Open Records and Open Meetings law recognizes that there are discussions during 
meetings and/or records produced in the course of governmental business that are sensitive in 
nature, and the public’s right to a document or attendance at a meeting is outweighed by the public 
interest in keeping such a meeting or record confidential. [1 O.C. 107.4-1]. One such exception is 
for a discussion or record that contains personally identifiable information that is collected or 
maintained in connection with a complaint, investigation, or other circumstances that may lead to 
an enforcement action, administrative proceeding, arbitration proceeding, or court proceeding. [1 
O.C. 107.4-1(j)]. 
 
This means that all records and discussions during the executive session portion of the Oneida 
Business Committee meeting related to the complaint would be kept confidential, and would not 
be subject to review by the general public. 
 
There is the expectation that the Business Committee Support Office staff, the members of the 
Oneida Business Committee, and other any staff that handles confidential records, or is present 
during executive session, will properly handle and maintain the confidential information. If an 
official mishandles confidential information, then that official would be subject to sanctions and/or 
penalties under this Law. If an employee mishandles confidential information, then that employee 
can be subject to disciplinary action in accordance with the Oneida Personnel Policies and 
Procedures. 

80 of 123



 

Page 58 of 71 

 

 
The Nation’s Judiciary law states that the proceedings of the Trial Court shall be public and 
members of the general public may freely attend the same, except for peacemaking or mediation 
proceedings or if expressly prohibited by law; provided that, in any case where the presiding Judge 
determines that there are safety or confidentiality concerns the Judge may exclude from the 
proceedings all individuals not necessarily present as parties or witnesses. [8 O.C. 801.4-4]. 
Additionally, the Oneida Judiciary Rules of Civil Procedure states that the records of all hearings 
and matters shall be available except where they are prohibited from disclosure by this Law, any 
other Tribal law or Court order or rule. [8 O.C. 803.32-2]. Deliberations of the Court are 
confidential, and not included in the record, and not subject to reproduction. [8 O.C. 803.32-2(c)]. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may determine if confidentiality is adequately addressed in 
the Law, or if the Law should be amended to include a specific provision that states a complaint is 
treated as confidential by the Oneida Business Committee and Trial Court until a decision is made 
regarding the complaint. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee discussed the issue of confidentiality and determined that a 
provision should be added to the Law to clarify that all complaints alleged against an official 
should be treated as confidential. All hearings and proceedings, whether with the Oneida Business 
Committee or the Trial Court, should be closed to the public, and the only information that should 
be available to the public is the result of the complaint and what, if any, sanctions are imposed on 
an official. The Legislative Operating Committee desires to prevent any frivolous or unfounded 
complaints from damaging the reputation of an official.  
 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined the following revision should be made to the 
Law: 
120.5-7.  Confidentiality.  All complaints alleged against an official of the Nation shall be handled 
in a confidential manner. 

(a)  All hearings and/or proceedings related to a complaint shall be closed to the general 
public. 
(b)  All records of hearings and/or proceedings shall not be subject to public review or 
inspection. An official’s record of conduct shall only be made available for review to the 
Oneida Business Committee and the Trial Court.  
(c)  Exception.  A decision of the Trial Court or the Oneida Business Committee regarding 
a complaint alleged against an official, and any sanctions and/or penalties that are imposed 
against an official, shall be public information. 

 

Comment 51  – Conflict Resolution Alternatives: 
   
Rae Skenandore (written): Conflict Resolution Alternatives. It is possible that a complaint may 
arise out of personality conflicts or bad behavior on the part of an official toward another official, 
staff, or the general public. A ½ hearted public apology does little to actually solve the problem. 

a. If the complainant agrees, the process should include a step that could resolve the issue 
before it elevates beyond a complaint. 

81 of 123



 

Page 59 of 71 

 

i. HRD offers a CIMs mediation between employees. 
ii. The Judiciary offers peacemaking. 

b. The ability to apply court ordered training at the offender’s expense, i.e. 
i. Anger management 
ii. Sexual harassment training 
iii. Other sensitivity training 
 

Response 

 
The commenter suggests that a provision be added to the Law that allows for an alternative conflict 
resolution to take place before the issues elevates beyond an initial complaint. For those cases that 
are filed with the Trial Court, the Trial Court has a Peacemaking and Mediation Division that 
provides a forum for the use of peacemaking and mediation to resolve disputes in a fair manner. 
[8 O.C. 801.6-1]. Peacemaking and mediation services are available at all stages of litigation. [8 
O.C. 801.6-1]. 
 
There is currently no provision that allows for mediation or a form of an alternative conflict 
resolution to take place for those complaints that are alleged against appointed officials. The 
Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the following policy considerations: 

1. The Law should remain as currently drafted and not address mediation or alternative 
conflict resolutions for complaints alleged against appointed officials. 

2. The Law should be amended to include a provision that addresses mediation or alternative 
conflict resolutions for complaints alleged against appointed officials. 
 

The commenter also suggests including provisions that allow for training, such as anger 
management training or sexual harassment training, to be imposed on the official as a sanction 
and/or penalty at the official’s expense. Whether or not to include ordered trainings as a sanction 
for an official will be a policy determination for the Legislative Operating Committee. The 
Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the following policy considerations: 

1. The Law should remain as currently drafted and not include the imposition of ordered 
training as a sanction and/or penalty for an official. 

2. The Law should be amended to include the imposition of ordered training as a sanction 
and/or penalty for an official. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that a provision should be added to the Law to 
allow for mediation during the process of handling complaints against an appointed official, much 
like the Trial Court allows for mediation or peacemaking during the process of handling a 
complaint against an elected official. The Legislative Operating Committee discussed the fact that 
mediation and/or peacemaking falls in line with traditional values, and therefore, should be 
provided as an option. 
 

The Legislative Operating Committee directed the following revision be made to the Law 
regarding mediation: 
 

82 of 123



 

Page 60 of 71 

 

120.6-5.  Mediation.  The complainant or the official who is the subject of the complaint shall have 
up to five (5) business days after the initial receipt of the complaint to contact the Business 
Committee Support Office and request mediation.   

(a)  If both the complainant and the official who is the subject of the complaint agree to 
mediation, then the Business Committee Support Office shall schedule a mediation 
between the parties. The intent of this mediation meeting is to resolve the complaint prior 
to commencing an initial review. 
(b)  The Business Committee Support Office shall utilize a trained mediator to facilitate 
the mediation meeting. Every mediator shall have at least twenty-five (25) hours of 
mediation training or at least three (3) years of experience in dispute resolution. 
(c)  The mediation shall occur before the investigatory hearing is scheduled to take place. 
(d)  If a resolution is reached during mediation, the Oneida Business Committee shall be 
informed of the resolution before the initial review and the complaint shall be formally 
dismissed during the initial review. 
(e) If the matter is not resolved through mediation, the initial review shall occur as 
prescribed by this law. 

 
The Legislative Operating Committee also discussed the commenter’s suggestion to allow for 
mandatory participation in trainings to be imposed against an official as a sanction and/or penalty. 
The Legislative Operating Committee determined that it is important to have a wide range of 
potential sanctions and/or penalties available to address whatever situation of misconduct arises in 
the future. Therefore, the Legislative Operating Committee decided to amend the Law to allow for 
mandatory participation in training to be used as a potential sanction, and directed that the 
following revision be made to the Law based on this comment: 
 

(h)  Mandatory Participation in Training.  An official may be ordered to participate in and 
complete a training class or program that will assist the official in addressing and 
improving his or her behaviors and/or actions. 

(1)  The mandated training class or program may address a variety of topics 
including, but not limited to, anger management, sexual harassment, or other 
sensitivity training. 

 

Comment 52 – Clarification Provided in Flowcharts of the Legislative Analysis: 
 
Bonnie Pigman (written): The flowcharts on pages 7 and 8 of the analysis provide more clarity 
than the language in the draft law does. The law should mirror the flowcharts in the analysis.  
 
Response 

 

The commenter states that the flowcharts provided on pages seven (7) regarding the complaint 
process for appointed officials, and page eight (8) regarding the complaint process for elected 
officials, in the legislative analysis provide more clarity than the language in the draft law does, 
and therefore the language in the law should mirror the flowcharts. 
 
Both flowcharts contained in the legislative analysis provide a simplified visual representation of 
the provisions stated in the Law. 

83 of 123



 

Page 61 of 71 

 

 
All the information that is provided on page seven (7) of the legislative analysis in the flowchart 
regarding the complaint process against appointed officials is clearly stated in section 120.6 of the 
Law. 
 
In regard to the information that is provided on page eight (8) of the legislative analysis in the 
flowchart on the complaint process for elected officials, the flowchart in the legislative analysis 
does contain more information than is provided for in section 120.7 of the Law. More information 
is provided in the flowchart than the actual provision of the Law due to the fact that the Law states 
that complaints of alleged misconduct shall be filed with the Trial Court pursuant to the Nation’s 
Rules of Civil Procedure. [1 O.C. 120.7-1]. The Oneida Judiciary Rules of Civil Procedure governs 
all civil actions that fall under the jurisdiction of the Nation and provides a consistent set of rules 
governing the process for civil claims, in order to ensure equal and fair treatment to all persons 
who come before the Nation’s courts to have their disputes resolved. [8 O.C. 803.1]. 
 
The Law simply references the Rules of Civil Procedure instead of including the specific 
information contained in the Rules of Civil Procedure like the flowchart does for a couple reasons: 

1. The Legislative Operating Committee wanted to avoid having two (2) separate laws that 
provide the same procedure as this would be duplicative. The Rules of Civil Procedure 
already extensively outlines how a complaint is filed and handled by the Trial Court, so the 
Legislative Operating Committee can simply reference this existing process in this Law. 

2. The Legislative Operating Committee understands that the Nation’s Rules of Civil 
Procedure might be amended in the future and the Trial Court’s processes and procedures 
might change. The Legislative Operating Committee wanted to avoid a situation where a 
potential conflict between two (2) provisions in two (2) laws arises because the provisions 
that were once consistent now conflict after amendments were made to one (1) of the laws. 
Referencing the Rules of Civil Procedure instead of duplicating the provisions in the Law 
allow the flexibility for the procedures contained in the Rules of Civil Procedure to change, 
while still remaining compatible with the most current court process and procedure. 

 
There is no recommended revision based on this law. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee agrees that there is no revision to the Law needed based on 
this comment due to the fact that a reference to the Oneida Judiciary Rules of Civil Procedure, 
instead of the duplication of process, allows the most flexibility for this Law to remain current and 
consistent with the procedures and processes the Trial Court utilizes. 
 

Comment 53 – Judiciary: 
 
Rae Skenandore (written): Judiciary. Title 8. Judiciary ‐ Chapter 801 Section 801.12. 
Reprimand, Suspension and Removal of Judges along with the Canons of Judicial Ethics contains 
a process and criteria for complaints against Judges. Sanctions and penalties should have mirrored 
the already established process & not attempted to reinvent the wheel. Instead of sanctions and 

84 of 123



 

Page 62 of 71 

 

penalties, what should have been updated/created first is a Governmental Ethics Ordinance that 
includes all of these areas and a standard of conduct for elected officials. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter states that this Law should have mirrored the provisions of the Judiciary law and 
Canons of Judicial Ethics for the process and criteria for complaints against judges, instead of 
creating an alternative process for complaints against officials. 
 
The process for complaints against judges contained in the Judiciary Law and the Oneida Tribal 
Judiciary Canons of Judicial Conduct was reviewed during the development of this law. 
 
Ultimately, the process and criteria for making a complaint against an official of the Nation was a 
policy determination for the Legislative Operating Committee to make, and the Legislative 
Operating Committee made the determination to move forward with a different process for elected 
and appointed officials of the Nation. 
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that there is no recommended revision based on 
this comment.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee also wished to highlight the fact that the complaint process 
for judges which is currently included in the Judiciary law requires that when a complaint is filed 
against a judge a disciplinary panel of five (5) pro tem judges shall handle the complaint and be 
comprised of individuals who: 

1. Are currently serving as a judge for any tribal court located in the state of Wisconsin, but 
not the Nation’s Judiciary;  

2. Are not enrolled members of the Nation; 
3. Are not related to the judge or complainant involved in the complaint; and 
4. Does not maintain or has not previously maintained a personal or professional relationship 

with either the judge facing the complaint, or with the complainant. 
[8 O.C. 801.11-11(a)(2)] 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined it would be unnecessary to subject a complaint 
against an official of the Nation to the stringent requirements for the creation of a disciplinary 
panel as required for a complaint against a judge. 
 

Comments 54 through 56 – Code of Ethics: 
 
Travis Wallenfang (written): [Referencing Lines 81 & 82 Any other activity that does not uphold 
the moral and ethical standards expected of the Nation’s  officials. (Page 3)]. 
 
Establish a code of Ethical and moral standards expected of the Nation’s Officials.  

85 of 123



 

Page 63 of 71 

 

 
Rae Skenandore (written): Code of conduct. This process should have included the development 
of a specific code of conduct FIRST, prior to developing the punishment. What are the expectations 
for the behavior of all of our public officials? 
 
Rae Skenandore (written): I understand that a lot of work went into developing this law. 
However, overall, I think the cart is before the horse. Prior to an allegation of misconduct, you 
need a code of conduct to hold them to. A stronger code of ethics needs to be in place, and you 
need to train everyone on the standards and ethics they will be held to. I think that will go a lot 
farther in instilling public trust than the Hodge podge of punishment listed in sanctions & penalties. 
 
Response 

 

The commenters all suggests that the Nation establish a code of ethical and moral standards 
expected of the Nation’s officials. 
 
The Nation currently has a Code of Ethics law for the purpose of promoting the highest ethical 
conduct in all of its elected and appointed officials, and employees. [1 O.C. 103.1-1]. The Code 
of Ethics sets the minimum standard of conduct that is expected of officials and employees. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee currently has the Code of Ethics on its Active Files List, 
and intends on pursuing amendments to the law to provide more details as to the ethical 
expectations of elected and appointed officials of the Nation. 
 
The Law also provides information on what behavior constitutes misconduct. [1 O.C. 120.4-2]. 
Expectations for the behavior of an official include: 

1. The official shall abide by the Constitution and all laws, policies, and rules of the Nation. 
2. The official shall abide by all bylaws, standards operating procedures, and/or other internal 

policies that govern the entity upon which the official serves.  
a. The Boards, Committees, and Commissions law provides all boards, committees, 

and commissions of the Nation the opportunity and flexibility to create detailed 
behavioral expectations that meet the specific needs of their board, committee, or 
commission, and details on how the entity will enforce those expectations. [1 O.C. 
105.10-3(d)].  

b. Oneida Business Committee resolution BC-09-26-18-C requires that all boards, 
committees, and commissions of the Nation update their bylaws in accordance with 
the requirements of the most recently amended Boards, Committees, and 
Commissions law by March 26, 2019.  

c. This means that boards, committees, and commissions will have the opportunity to 
provide for more specific behavioral and ethical requirements, in addition to those 
already present in the Code of Ethics and other laws and policies of the Nation. 

3. The official shall avoid conviction of a felony, or any crime in any jurisdiction that would 
be classified as a felony under federal law or Wisconsin law. 

4. The official shall avoid any other activity that is incompatible with the high moral and 
ethical standards that are expected of the Nation’s officials. 

 

86 of 123



 

Page 64 of 71 

 

In addition to the Code of Ethics, and the information provided by this Law, the Nation also 
possesses a variety of other laws that contain expectations for the behavior of an official, including, 
but not limited to: 

1. Boards, Committees, and Commissions law [1 O.C. 105]; 
2. Removal law [1 O.C. 104]; 
3. Conflict of Interest law [2 O.C. 217]; 
4. Social Media Policy [2 O.C. 218]; and 
5. Oneida Travel and Expense Policy [2 O.C. 219]. 

 
There is no recommended revision based on these comments. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that no revision to the Law, or to the plan to 
bring this law forward for General Tribal Council’s consideration, is needed based on this 
comment due to the fact that the Nation already has a Code of Ethics, as well as many other laws 
that address expectations for the behavior of an official. 
 
Additionally, the Legislative Operating Committee has already made the effort to add the Code of 
Ethics to the Active Files List with the intent of updating the Law, and will be working on 
improving this piece of legislation. 
 

Comment 57 – Ethics Training : 
 
Rae Skenandore (written): Ethic’s training. While training is not specifically addressed in this 
law, it is a standard used for imposing sanctions and penalties. If it is a standard to be held to, 
perhaps the offer of ethics training would be beneficial. 
 
Response 

 
The commenter suggests that ethics training be provided to officials, since the Law will hold 
officials of the Nation to an ethical standard, and potentially impose sanctions upon them. 
 
The Law provides the various sanctions and/or penalties that may be imposed upon an official 
found to have engaged in misconduct, as well as an orderly and fair process for determining when 
those sanctions should be imposed. [1 O.C. 120.1-1].  
 
Although the Law does not provide for training on the ethical standards an official is expected of 
meet, the Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether some type of ethics training 
should be made available to officials of the Nation as a part of the implementation of this proposed 
Law. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee made the decision that at this point in time there will be no 
creation of an ethics training for officials of the Nation.  

87 of 123



 

Page 65 of 71 

 

 
The Legislative Operating Committee based this decision on a discussion surrounding the fact that 
it is not the responsibility of this Law to build character in officials of the Nation, as this Law 
simply provides for how misconduct is addressed when it occurs. Every official of the Nation is 
provided the standards he or she will be expected to meet through the various laws, policies, and 
bylaws of the Nation, and it will be up to that individual person to ensure that his or her behavior 
meets those standards. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee then discussed the fact that information on the various 
expectations an official is required to meet can be provided by the specific board, committee, or 
commission of the Nation when an official is sworn in. 
 

Comment 58 – Additional Research: 
 
Travis Wallenfang (written): [Referencing Lines 23,24,25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34, 
SECTION 3. CONSULTATION AND OUTREACH - A. The Rules of Civil Procedure, Rules of 
Appellate Procedure, Judiciary Law, Code of Ethics, Open Meetings and Open Records Law, and 
Comprehensive Policy on Boards Committees and Commissions were reviewed in drafting this 
analysis. In addition, the following laws were reviewed in drafting this analysis: (Page 2) 

▪ Ho Chunk Nation Code of Ethics 2 HCC 1; 
▪ Oglala Sioux Tribe Code of Ethics Ordinance No. 08-11; 
▪ Pokagon Band of Potawatomi Indians Ethics Code; 
▪ Rosebud Sioux Tribal Code of Ethics Ordinance 86-04; 
▪ Siletz Tribal Council Ethics Ordinance –Siletz Tribal Code 2.200; 
▪ Skokomish Code of Ethics S.T.C. 1.05; 
▪ Pit River Tribal Government Code of Conduct Section 80.] 

 
Take a look at the Navajo law system Constitutions and bylaws. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter suggests reviewing the Constitution and Bylaws, as well as the law system, of the 
Navajo Nation.  
 
Although the laws and/or policies of the Navajo Nation were not reviewed in the development of 
this Law, laws and policies from the following Nations were reviewed: 

1. Ho Chunk Nation; 
2. Oglala Sioux Tribe; 
3. Pokagon Band of Potawatomi Indians; 
4. Rosebud Sioux; 
5. Siletz Tribe; 
6. Skokomish Indian Tribe; 
7. Pit River Tribe. 

 

The provisions of this Law are consistent with the other tribal laws and policies that were consulted 
during the development of this law. 

88 of 123



 

Page 66 of 71 

 

 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined there is no revision to the Law needed based on 
this comment. 
 

Comment 59 –   Additional Research Specific to Culture: 
 

Travis Wallenfang (written):  Proof of Oneida Custom Tradition, & Culture- all components are 
essential In determining what if any limitations period applies under Oneida Nations law, the laws 
and  rules interpretations of such laws and rules as the law of the Oneida Nation of Wisconsin, the 
Oneida Nation needs to discuss the a application of customary law to identify methods of finding, 
analyzing and applying customary Law in order to discern the strengths and weakness of their 
methods.  
 Resources regarding the adaptation of Intertribal or common law into tribal government: 

▪ Hoopla Valley Tribe Traditional Tribal Law, Hoopla Valley Tribal Code §2.1.04   
▪ Pat Sekaqiaptewa, 32 Am. Indian L. Rev. 319, 375-85 (2007-2008) 
▪ Considering Individual Religious Freedoms under Tribal Constitutions, 14 Kan. J.L. & 

Pub. POL’Y 561,562-64 (2004)   
▪ Elizabeth E. Joh, Custom, Tribal Court Practice, and Popular Justice, 25 AM. Indian L. 

Rev. 117 121 (2000-2001) 
▪ e.g. Keith Basso, Wisdom Sits In Places: Landscape and Language Among wester Apache 

40(1996) 
▪ Navajo Nation v. Rodriguez, No. SC-SC-03-0, at 10 (Navajo 2004) 
▪ In re: (Certified Question II: Navajo Nation v. MacDonald, 16 Indian L. Rep. 6086 (Navajo 

Sup. Ct. Apr. 13, 1989). 
 
Response 

 

The commenter states the importance of integrating Oneida custom and culture into legislation of 
the Nation, and provides a list of resources regarding the adaptation of common law into tribal 
governmental.  
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment.  
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined there is no revision to the Law needed based on 
this comment. 
 
Comment 60 – SOP Instead of a Law: 
 
Brian Doxtator (oral):  I also talked to previous leaders, whether they be a board, committee or 
commission or the Business Committee and one of the recommendations was to take just the 

89 of 123



 

Page 67 of 71 

 

sanctions and penalties, create an SOP and implement it immediately, let it run for about a three 
year period of time, just on the Business Committee, not other boards, committees and 
commissions.  At the end of that election period assess it to see what worked, what didn’t work 
and then draft a law for consideration of the new Business Committee, then to be placed across the 
realm of the Nation of all appointed boards, committees and commissions and elected officials.  
So I guess it feels like when we start implementing the large fines and the suspensions and all this 
stuff it went against, not against, I apologize, it kind of became more of a big huge book and a 
really nice undertaking of the LRO as well as the LOC, I am recommending going back to just the 
sanctions and penalties, applying it just to the Business Committee immediately and not all other 
boards, committees and commissions.  Move forward and then assess it at the end of this term and 
then give to the next Business Committee the consideration to adopt this recommended law and 
so forth.  That’s my thinking. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter suggests that instead of creating this Law, an Oneida Business Committee standard 
operating procedure be developed instead. The standard operating procedure could be 
implemented immediately only for the Oneida Business Committee for a three (3) year period of 
time. Then after the initial period of time for the standard operating procedure has expired, use the 
three (3) years of implementation experience to draft a law that would then apply to all boards, 
committees, and commission. 
 
On November 1, 2017, the Legislative Operating Committee held a work meeting in which all 
members of a board, committee, or commission of the Nation were invited to participate. During 
this work meeting many of the representatives of the various boards, committees, and commissions 
expressed the fact that a Sanctions and Penalties law was necessary, not just to address misconduct 
of the Oneida Business Committee, but to address misconduct that occurs throughout any board, 
committee, or commission of the Nation. 
 
For that reason, the Legislative Operating Committee made the determination to develop a law 
that establishes a consistent set of sanctions and penalties that may be imposed upon elected and 
appointed officials of the Nation for misconduct in office; and to establish an orderly and fair 
process for imposing such sanctions and penalties. 
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined there is no revision to the Law needed based on 
this comment. 
 

Comment 61 – Officials are not Employees: 
 
Brian Doxtator (oral):  The other thing is this understanding in our current system is to file a 
complaint and that kind of took me into a different realm again in treating our elected officials as 
employees.  They are not employees.  I’ve never considered any elected official an employee and 

90 of 123



 

Page 68 of 71 

 

I don’t like that whole thought that we are all equal to be treated the same way.  I disagree in that 
whole idea of filing a complaint is how we deal with employees, I don’t like the idea.   
 
So I started making comments pros and cons and I thought it just seems a little bit more like an 
employee written, no I’m sorry, an employee focused on our leadership when swear word, so 
anyway thank you to the LRO and the LOC for this public hearing and that’s all my comments 
publicly, Yawko. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter expresses concern that the Law appears too similar to an employee complaint 
process, and cautions that officials are not employees. 
 
Elected and/or appointed officials are not considered employees of the Nation.  The intent of the 
Law is not to liken the position of an official to that of an employee, it is to establish a consistent 
set of sanctions and penalties that may be imposed upon elected and appointed officials of the 
Nation, including members of the Oneida Business Committee, for misconduct in office; and to 
establish an orderly and fair process for imposing such sanctions and penalties. [1 O.C. 120.1-1].  
 
During both the work meeting held with members of various boards, committees, and commission 
on November 1, 2017, and the community meeting held on May 3, 2018, the Legislative Operating 
Committee received comments that expressed a desire for the development of a process that can 
be used to address instances of misconduct by an official of the Nation. For that reason, the 
Legislative Operating Committee has made the policy decision to develop a law that provides a 
process to impose sanctions and penalties.  
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined there is no revision to the Law needed based on 
this comment. 
 

Comments 62 through 63 – Cultural Context of the Law: 
 
Brian Doxtator (oral):  I know we’re not close to our culture, but you know the clan mothers had 
a way of addressing a chief and they could do it three times before they would remove his antlers, 
de-horn him so to speak and our system doesn’t have enough trust to give that to say ONCOA or 
to give it to, maybe like to choose the three oldest grandmas on the reservation to go and talk to 
that leader.  I know that we don’t have that system of trust in place, but filing a complaint and 
these penalties and suspensions, it doesn’t fit in line with that cultural value.   
 
Travis Wallenfang (written):  Good morning, I would like to give submit my comments in regard 
to the Sanctions & Penalties Law. Before establishing the set of sanctions and penalties that may 
be imposed upon elected and appointed officials of the Nation, including members of the Oneida 

91 of 123



 

Page 69 of 71 

 

Business Committee, for misconduct in office; and to establish an orderly and fair process for 
imposing such sanctions and penalties. 
 
It is my recommendation that when establishing the Sanctions and Penalties Law portions that we 
take a look at the not only our Oneida Constitutional and Oneidas Traditional Laws but also take 
a look at the Haudenosaunee Confederacy before making any decisions on establishing any 
sanctions and penalties. This is to be sure to intergrade the cultural and traditional aspects into 
sanctions and penalties to help identify the best balanced application of Traditional laws &Anglo 
American Laws before establishing any code of law, sanctions, ordinances, and penalties. Take a 
look at the Navajo Law structures as well to reference information.   
 
In the Haudenosaunee Confederacy, Removing Chiefs is left to the authority of the Clan Mother. 
If she believes he is not acting for the benefit of the people, she will warn him to change his actions. 
If his behavior does not change after her warning she will then take him aside and remove his 
antlers, thus removing his authority as Chief. 
 
If a Chief acts improperly or is not living up to his responsibilities his Clan Mother and Faith 
Keepers will warn him about his actions. If he continues to act selfishly the Clan Mother may 
symbolically remove his antlers, thus removing his authority as Chief. 
 
To maintain balance with the cultural and tradition ways it is my recommendation to establish 
Clans Mothers or Group of Elders as they have paved the roads and set everything in place. 
 
Response 

 

The commenters both discuss a perceived disconnect between the proposed Law and cultural and 
traditional values of the Nation, and encourage the incorporation of these values in to the Law.  
 
The Law does incorporate the Nation’s core values by stating that it is the intent of the Nation that 
all elected and appointed officials strive to exhibit and uphold the Nation’s core values of The 
Good Mind as expressed by On<yote>a=ka, which includes: 

1. Kahletsyal&sla. The heart felt encouragement of the best in each of us. 
2. Kanolukhw@sla. Compassion, caring, identity, and joy of being. 
3. Ka>nikuhli=y%. The openness of the good spirit and mind. 
4. Ka>tshatst^sla. The strength of belief and vision as a People. 
5. Kalihwi=y%. The use of the good words about ourselves, our Nation, and our future. 
6. Twahwahts$lay<. All of us are family. 
7. Yukwats$stay<. Our fire, our spirit within each one of us. 

 

To what extent tradition and culture is incorporated into a law of the Nation is a policy 
determination for the Legislative Operating Committee to make. 
 
Additionally, both commenters suggested the use of a group of elders that could address 
misconduct. The Legislative Operating Committee did consider the creation of an Ethics 
Committee that could handle addressing all alleged instances of misconduct. Ultimately, the 
Legislative Operating Committee decided against this option for a couple reasons: 

92 of 123



 

Page 70 of 71 

 

1. Since an official who is appointed by the Oneida Business Committee serves at the 
discretion of the Oneida Business Committee, the Legislative Operating Committee felt 
the Oneida Business Committee was the best entity to address alleged misconduct of 
appointed officials. [1 O.C. 105.7-4, 120.6-1]. 

2. The General Tribal Council adopted the Judiciary law as a step to formalize the hearing 
authority of the Oneida Nation in an independent judicial body. Therefore, the Legislative 
Operating Committee felt it appropriate to allow the Trial Court to serve as the hearing 
authority for those individuals who are elected to his or her position by the membership of 
the Nation. 

 

There is no recommended revision based on this comment. It would be up to the Legislative 
Operating Committee to determine to what degree this law should reflect traditions and culture. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined there is no revision to the Law needed based on 
this comment. 
 

Comment 64  – Legislative Process: 
 
Bonnie Pigman (written): Question: Should the five (5) Business Committee councilpersons be 
recusing themselves as they are initially determining & approving what goes in draft laws, then 
approving those laws to go on a Business Committee agenda? Then those same five (5) Business 
Committee councilpersons are approving the laws now as Business Committee members and 
because the Tribal Chair has no vote, this law would get adopted overwhelmingly. The draft 
language in Section 120.6-4 Conflict of Interest, spells out an example of this. I understand what 
authorities are afforded the Business Committee in the Constitution, one being to promulgate law. 
I don't believe the five (5) Business Committee members who comprise of the LOC should be both 
drafting and then turning around and adopting the laws they drafted. A comparative would be 
having the Judiciary judges drafting and adopting the laws they are using to dete1mine legal 
proceedings on. 
 
Response 

 

The commenter believes a conflict of interest exists within the fact that the Legislative Operating 
Committee members that develop and draft legislation for the Nation are a part of the Oneida 
Business Committee which adopts legislation of the Nation. 
 
The members of the Legislative Operating Committee participating in the drafting and 
development of law, and then participating in the approval and adoption of that law as members 
of the Oneida Business Committee is not a conflict of interest.  
 
General Tribal Council prescribed the manner in which legislation of the Nation should be drafted, 
developed, and adopted through the adoption of the Legislative Procedures Act. The Legislative 
Procedures Act provides a process for the adoption of laws of the Nation. [1 O.C. 109.1-1]. The 
Legislative Procedures Act provides: 

93 of 123



 

Page 71 of 71 

 

1. The Legislative Operating Committee is the legislative committee of the Nation that is 
responsible for the development of laws of the Nation. [1 O.C. 109.4-1, 109.4-2]. 

1. The Legislative Operating Committee handles requests for legislation and determines if the 
request for the development of legislation should be accepted or denied. [1 O.C. 109.5]. 

2. The Legislative Operating Committee will direct an agency of the Nation to complete a 
fiscal impact statement for all legislation. [1 O.C. 109.6]. 

3. A legislative analysis shall be completed by the Legislative Reference Office and provided 
to the Legislative Operating Committee. [1 O.C. 109.7]. 

4. The Legislative Operating Committee will hold open a public comment period with a 
public meeting, and then consider fully all comments received. [1 O.C. 109.8]. 

5. The Legislative Operating Committee shall forward the legislation, legislative analysis and 
fiscal impact statement to the Oneida Business Committee when legislation is ready for 
consideration. [1 O.C. 109.9-1]. 

6. The Oneida Business Committee shall consider the adoption of the legislation, or forward 
the legislation to the General Tribal Council for consideration. [1 O.C. 109.9-1]. 

 
Additionally, the General Tribal Council adopted the Nation’s Ten Day Notice Policy, which 
clarifies that the Legislative Operating Committee shall consist of the Oneida Business Committee 
members who are not officers of the Oneida Business Committee. [1 O.C. 110.4-1(b)]. 
 
The adoption of both the Ten Day Notice Policy and the Legislative Procedures Act clearly 
demonstrates General Tribal Council’s intention to have the members of the Legislative 
Procedures Act draft and develop legislation of the Nation, and then the members of the Oneida 
Business Committee adopt legislation, or forward legislation to the General Tribal Council for 
adoption. Therefore, no conflict exists in the role the members of the Legislative Operating 
Committee play with the role those same members play as part of the Oneida Business Committee. 
 
Additionally, the Legislative Operating Committee has made the determination that the General 
Tribal Council, and not the Oneida Business Committee, should be the adopting authority for this 
law, and therefore this Law will be presented to the General Tribal Council for the final 
consideration of adoption. 
 
Although the commenter likens the role of the Legislative Operating Committee members in the 
adoption of legislation through their role on the Oneida Business Committee to the Judiciary 
drafting and adopting legislation, it is important to note that the Judiciary Canons of Judicial 
Conduct clearly prohibit a Judge of the Judiciary from participating in any service or activities that 
cross the bounds separating the powers of the Nation’s government, such as the development and 
adoption of legislation. [8 O.C. 1.2]. 
 
There is no recommended revision based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee agreed there is no conflict of interest in the members of the 
Legislative Operating Committee participating in the drafting and development of law, and then 
participating in the approval and adoption of that law as members of the Oneida Business 
Committee. 

94 of 123



Draft 3 – PM Draft4 
2018 10 0411 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 1 

  Title 1. Government and Finances - Chapter 120 
SANCTIONS AND PENALTIES  

 
120.1.   Purpose and Policy 

120.2.   Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 
120.3.   Definitions 
120.4.   Misconduct. 

120.5.   Filing of a Complaint 
120.6.   Complaint Alleged Against an Appointed Official  
 

120.7.   Complaint Alleged Against an Elected Official 

120.8.   Sanctions and Penalties 
120.9.   Effect of Resignation by an Official 
120.10. Record of Conduct in Office  

 
 
 

 1 
120.1.  Purpose and Policy 2 
120.1-1. Purpose. The purpose of this law is to establish a consistent set of sanctions and penalties 3 
that may be imposed upon elected and appointed officials of the Nation, including members of the 4 
Oneida Business Committee, for misconduct in office; and to establish an orderly and fair process 5 
for imposing such sanctions and penalties. This law does not apply to judges of the Oneida Nation 6 
Judiciary. 7 

(a)  This law does not apply to judges of the Oneida Nation Judiciary. 8 
(b)  This law does not apply to corporate entities of the Nation.  9 

120.1-2. Policy. It is the policy of the Nation to ensure that elected and appointed officials who 10 
commit misconduct while in office be subject to appropriate sanctions and penalties; and to ensure 11 
that there is a fair process in place that enables officials to fairly respond to allegations of 12 
misconduct.   13 
120.1-3.  It is the intent of the Nation that all elected and appointed officials strive to exhibit and 14 
uphold the Nation’s core values of The Good Mind as expressed by On<yote>a=ka, which includes: 15 

(a)  Kahletsyal&sla. The heart felt encouragement of the best in each of us. 16 
(b)  Kanolukhw@sla. Compassion, caring, identity, and joy of being. 17 
(c)  Ka>nikuhli=y%. The openness of the good spirit and mind. 18 
(d)  Ka>tshatst^sla. The strength of belief and vision as a People. 19 
(e)  Kalihwi=y%. The use of the good words about ourselves, our Nation, and our future. 20 
(f)  Twahwahts$lay<. All of us are family. 21 
(g)  Yukwats$stay<. Our fire, our spirit within each one of us. 22 

 23 
120.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 24 
120.2-1. This law was adopted by the General Tribal Council by resolution GTC-__-__-__-__. 25 
120.2-2. This law may be amended or repealed by the General Tribal Council pursuant to the 26 
procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act. 27 
120.2-3. Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 28 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are considered 29 
to have legal force without the invalid portions. 30 
120.2-4. In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 31 
the provisions of this law shall control.   32 
120.2-5. This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation.  33 
 34 
120.3.  Definitions 35 
120.3-1.  This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  All 36 
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 37 

95 of 123



Draft 3 – PM Draft4 
2018 10 0411 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 2 

(a)  “Affirmative defense” means a fact or set of facts other than those alleged by the 38 
complainant which, if proven by the official, defeats or mitigates the consequences of the 39 
official's otherwise unlawful conduct. 40 
(b)  “Answer” means a formal written statement addressing the dispute on the merits 41 
and presents any defenses and counterclaims. 42 
(c)  “Business Committee Support Office” means the office that provides administrative 43 
support for the Oneida Business Committee and various other governmental operations. 44 
(d)  “Business day” means Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m., excluding 45 
holidays recognized by the Nation.  46 
(e)  “Clear and convincing evidence” means that it is substantially more likely than not that 47 
the facts presented are true. 48 
(f)  “Complainant” means an individual who has made a complaint. 49 
(g)  “Constitution” means the Constitution and By-Laws of the Oneida Nation.  50 
(h)  “Court of Appeals” means the Court of Appeals of the Oneida Nation Judiciary. 51 
(i)  “Entity” means a board, committee or, commission, office, or other group of the Nation 52 
an individual may be appointed or elected to serve a position on, including the Oneida 53 
Business Committee.  54 
(j)  “Frivolous” means a complaint without any reasonable basis or merit, that cannot be 55 
supported by a good faith argument. Most often frivolous complaints are intended to 56 
merely harass, delay, or embarrass the opposition. 57 
(k)  “Misconduct” means wrongful, improper or unlawful conduct or behavior.  58 
(l)  “Nation” means the Oneida Nation.  59 
(m)  “Official” means any person who is elected or appointed to serve a position for the 60 
Nation, including, but not limited to, a position on a board, committee or, commission, or 61 
office of the Nation, including the Oneida Business Committee.  62 
(n)  “Restitution” means compensation to an individual or entity for an injury, damage or 63 
loss. 64 
(o)  “Stipend” means the amount paid by the Oneida Nation to individuals serving on 65 
boards, committees and commissions of the Nation to offset the expenses of being a 66 
member on the board, committee or commission. 67 
(p)  “Substantiate” means to find that the complaint or allegation in the complaint is valid 68 
because there is clear and convincing evidence. 69 
(q)  “Trial Court” means the Trial Court of the Oneida Nation Judiciary. 70 
 71 

120.4. Misconduct 72 
120.4-1.  It shall be the obligation of every official to behave in a manner that promotes the highest 73 
ethical and moral standard. High moral and ethical standards amongst officials of the Nation is 74 
essential to the conduct of government.  75 
120.4-2.  An official may be subject to sanctions and penalties for behaving in a manner which 76 
constitutes misconduct. Misconduct includes:  77 

(a)  a violation of  the Constitution or any of the Nation’s laws, policies, or rules;  78 
(b)  a violation of the bylaws, standard operating procedures or other internal operating 79 
documents that govern the entity upon which the official serves; 80 
 (c)  a conviction of a felony, or any crime in any jurisdiction that would be classified as a 81 
felony under federal law or Wisconsin law; and 82 
(d)  any other activity that is incompatible with the high moral and ethical standards that 83 
are expected of the Nation’s officials. 84 

96 of 123



Draft 3 – PM Draft4 
2018 10 0411 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 3 

 85 
120.5. Filing of a Complaint 86 
120.5-1.  Who May File.  Any individual at least eighteen (18) years of age or older, or entity, who 87 
in good faith, has knowledge or reason to believe that an official has committed misconduct, may 88 
file a written complaint. 89 
120.5-2.  When to File.  A complaint may be filed as long as the alleged misconduct has occurred, 90 
or was discovered to have occurred, within the previous ninety (90) days.  91 
120.5-3.  Contents of the Complaint.  The complaint alleging misconduct by an official shall 92 
include the following information: 93 

(a)  The name(s) of the official alleged to have committed the misconduct; 94 
(b)  The entity or entities upon which the official serves; 95 
(c)  The specific date(s), time(s), and location(s) of the alleged misconduct; 96 
(d)  The specific details of the official’s misconduct; 97 
(e)  The specific provision of law, policy, rule, or bylaw of the Nation allegedly violated 98 
by the official; 99 
(f)  Names of any witnesses of the alleged misconduct, or individuals who may have 100 
knowledge pertinent to the alleged misconduct; 101 
(g)  The contact information for the person filing the complaint, which at minimum shall 102 
include the person’s name, address, and telephone number;  103 
(h)  A notarized sworn statement attesting that the information provided in and with the 104 
complaint is true, accurate, and complete to the best of the complainant’s knowledge;  105 
(i)  Any supporting documentation; and 106 
(j)  Any other information required by the Nation’s Rules of Civil Procedure if the 107 
complaint is alleging misconduct of an elected official. 108 

120.5-4.  Where to File.   109 
(a)  Appointed Official.  Complaints against an appointed official shall be filed with the 110 
Business Committee Support Office. 111 
(b)  Elected Official.  Complaints against an elected official shall be filed with the Nation’s 112 
Trial Court. 113 

120.5-5. Retaliation Prohibited. Retaliation against any individual who makes a complaint or party 114 
or witness to a complaint is prohibited. This protection shall also be afforded to any person offering 115 
testimony or evidence or complying with directives authorized under this law. Retaliation shall 116 
include any form of adverse or punitive action by or caused by, any official.  117 

(a)  If an individual alleges that retaliatory action has been threatened or taken based on the 118 
individual’s complaint, or cooperation with directives authorized under this law, the 119 
individual may file a complaint for the retaliatory action in accordance with section 120.5 120 
of this law. 121 

120.5-6. Any official who is the subject of a complaint has the right to be represented by an 122 
attorney or advocate, at his or her own expense, for any actions or proceedings related to the 123 
complaint. 124 
120.5-7.  Confidentiality.  All complaints alleged against an official of the Nation shall be handled 125 
in a confidential manner. 126 

(a)  All hearings and/or proceedings related to a complaint shall be closed to the general 127 
public. 128 
(b)  All records of hearings and/or proceedings shall not be subject to public review or 129 
inspection. An official’s record of conduct shall only be made available for review to the 130 
Oneida Business Committee and the Trial Court.  131 

97 of 123



Draft 3 – PM Draft4 
2018 10 0411 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 4 

(c)  Exception.  A decision of the Trial Court or the Oneida Business Committee regarding 132 
a complaint alleged against an official, and any sanctions and/or penalties that are imposed 133 
against an official, shall be public information. 134 

 135 
120.6. Complaints Alleged Against an Appointed Official  136 
120.6-1.  Due to the fact that an appointed official serves at the discretion of the Oneida Business 137 
Committee, all complaints alleged against an appointed official shall be handled by the Oneida 138 
Business Committee.  139 
120.6-2.  Receipt of Complaint.  Upon receiving a complaint, the Business Committee Support 140 
Office shall: 141 

(a)  immediately forward copies of the complaint, including any supporting documentation, 142 
to: 143 

(1)  all members of the Oneida Business Committee for review; and 144 
(2)  the individual who is the subject of the complaint. 145 

(b)  place the complaint on the executive session portion of the agenda of a regular or 146 
special meeting of the Oneida Business Committee for an initial review which shall occur 147 
within thirty (30) business days after the initial receipt of a complaint. 148 

120.6-3.120.6-3.  Mediation.  The complainant or the official who is the subject of the complaint 149 
shall have up to five (5) business days after the initial receipt of the complaint to contact the 150 
Business Committee Support Office and request mediation.   151 

(a)  If both the complainant and the official who is the subject of the complaint agree to 152 
mediation, then the Business Committee Support Office shall schedule a mediation 153 
between the parties. The intent of this mediation meeting is to resolve the complaint prior 154 
to commencing an initial review. 155 
(b)  The Business Committee Support Office shall utilize a trained mediator to facilitate 156 
the mediation meeting. Every mediator shall have at least twenty-five (25) hours of 157 
mediation training or at least three (3) years of experience in dispute resolution. 158 
(c)  The mediation shall occur before the investigatory hearing is scheduled to take place. 159 
(d)  If a resolution is reached during mediation, the Oneida Business Committee shall be 160 
informed of the resolution before the initial review and the complaint shall be formally 161 
dismissed during the initial review. 162 
(e) If the matter is not resolved through mediation, the initial review shall occur as 163 
prescribed by this law. 164 

120.6-4.  Answer to the Complaint.  The individual who is the subject of the complaint shall have 165 
ten (10) business days after receiving his or her copy of the complaint, to submit to the Business 166 
Committee Support Office a written answer setting forth any admission, denial, affirmative 167 
defense, or other relevant information upon which the official intends to rely during proceedings 168 
related to the complaint.  169 

(a)  The Business Committee Support Office shall immediately forward the answer and 170 
any supporting documentation to all members of the Oneida Business Committee upon 171 
receipt from the individual who is the subject of the complaint.  172 

120.6-45.  Conflict of Interest.  An Oneida Business Committee member that has a conflict of 173 
interest in a complaint brought before the Oneida Business Committee, shall immediately recuse 174 
themselveshimself or herself and shall not participate in any portion of the initial review or the 175 
investigatory hearingcomplaint process. 176 

(a)  Failure of an Oneida Business Committee member to recuse themselves due to a 177 
conflict of interest shall constitute grounds for sanctions and/or penalties. 178 

98 of 123



Draft 3 – PM Draft4 
2018 10 0411 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 5 

120.6-56.  Initial Review.  The Oneida Business Committee shall perform an initial review of an 179 
allegation of misconduct on the part of an official. The purpose of the initial review shall be to 180 
determine whether the allegation made within the complaint has merit.  181 

(a)  During the initial review the Oneida Business Committee shall review the complaint 182 
and the written answer; as well as any supporting documentation. 183 
(b)  In order to determine if a complaint has merit, the Oneida Business Committee will 184 
discuss if whether assuming the facts alleged are true, said facts would support a 185 
determination of misconduct. 186 
(c)  The Oneida Business Committee shall determine, by majority vote, whether the 187 
complaint has merit.  188 

(1)  Upon a finding that the complaint has merit, the Oneida Business Committee 189 
shall schedule an investigatory hearing to consider the specific allegations 190 
identified in the complaint. 191 

(A)  The investigatory hearing shall occur within thirty (30) business days 192 
after the initial review has concluded and shall take place during the 193 
executive session portion of the agenda of a regular or special meeting of 194 
the Oneida Business Committee. 195 

(2)  Upon finding that a complaint has no merit, the Oneida Business Committee 196 
shall dismiss the complaint. The Oneida Business Committee shall send notice that 197 
the complaint was dismissed to the complainant and the official who is the subject 198 
of the complaint within five (5) business days. 199 

(A)  If the Oneida Business Committee dismisses the complaint based on a 200 
determination that the complaint was frivolous, false, or made with a 201 
malicious intent, the complainant may be subject to: 202 

(i)  a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500); 203 
(ii)  prohibition from filing another complaint for a period of time 204 
not to exceed one (1) year; and/or 205 
(iii)  a civil suit in the Nation’s Trial Court brought by the official 206 
accused by the frivolous, false or malicious allegation. 207 

120.6-6.  7.  Notice of the Investigatory Hearing.  The investigatoryBusiness Committee Support 208 
Office shall provide the complainant, the official who is the subject of the complaint, and any other 209 
individual compelled to attend the hearing shall occur within thirty (30) days after the initial review 210 
has concluded.  Thewith written notice of the date and the time of the investigatory hearing shall 211 
take place during the executive session portion of the agenda of a regular or special meeting of the 212 
Oneida Business Committee.at least ten (10) business days before the investigatory hearing. 213 
120.6-8.  Investigatory Hearing.  The purpose of the investigatory hearing is for the Oneida 214 
Business Committee to determine if there is enough evidence to substantiate the allegations of 215 
misconduct by clear and convincing evidence. 216 

(a)  When conducting an investigatory hearing, the Oneida Business Committee shall have 217 
the broadest grant of authority to compel any person or organization within the Nation to: 218 

(1)  appear at the hearing to provide testimony under oath and/or information 219 
relevant to the allegations against the official; and/or 220 
(2)  produce physical evidence that is relevant to the allegations. 221 

(.(b)  The Oneida Business Committee shall provide an opportunity for the official who is 222 
the subject of the complaint to answer all allegations and to provide witness testimony, 223 
documents, and other evidence on his or her own behalf.  224 

99 of 123



Draft 3 – PM Draft4 
2018 10 0411 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 6 

(c)  The Oneida Business Committee shall also provide the complainant the opportunity to 225 
answer questions, provide witness testimony or additional information, and/or to otherwise 226 
speak on his or her own behalf. 227 
(d)  The hearing shall be informal and conducted as the interests of justice so require, and 228 
shall be recorded by the Business Committee Support Office. 229 

120.6-79.  Deliberation of the Oneida Business Committee.  At the conclusion of the investigatory 230 
hearing, the Oneida Business Committee shall excuse everyone from executive session for the 231 
deliberation of the Oneida Business Committee. Prior to making a final determination as to 232 
whether to substantiate the complaint, the Oneida Business Committee shall: 233 

(a)  consider all evidence and information provided, and shall have a full and complete 234 
discussion of all aspects of the complaint and answer; and 235 
(b)  have a full and complete discussion of all potential sanctions and penalties that may be 236 
imposed, if appropriate. 237 

120.6-810.  Determination by the Oneida Business Committee.  After the investigatory hearing has 238 
concluded and the Oneida Business Committee has deliberated, the Oneida Business Committee 239 
shall in open session of a regular or special Oneida Business Committee meeting, by majority vote, 240 
declare whether the Oneida Business Committee has determined there is enough evidence to 241 
substantiate the allegations of misconduct by clear and convincing evidence.  242 

(a) If the Oneida Business Committee finds that there is clear and convincing evidence that 243 
the official engaged in misconduct, the Oneida Business Committee shall, by majority vote, 244 
determine and impose appropriate sanctions and/or penalties. 245 
(b) If the Oneida Business Committee does not find that there is clear and convincing 246 
evidence to support the allegations that the official engaged in misconduct, the complaint 247 
shall be dismissed. 248 
(c) Within ten (10) business days after the investigatory hearing, the Oneida Business 249 
Committee shall issue a written decision and provide copies of the decision to:  250 

(1) the complainant,  251 
(2) the official who is the subject of the complaint, and  252 
(3) the Business Committee Support Office, for recordkeeping.  253 

120.6-911. Appeal. The complainant and the official who is the subject of the complaint shall both 254 
have the right to appeal the Oneida Business Committee’s decision to the Court of Appeals within 255 
twenty (20) days after the written decision is issued.pursuant to the Nation’s Rules of Appellate 256 
Procedure. The appeal shall be limited to review of the record, and the Oneida Business 257 
Committee’s decision may only be overturned if the Court of Appeals determines that:  258 

(a)  The findings or penalties imposed were clearly erroneous, unsupported by the record, 259 
or made on unreasonable grounds or without any proper consideration of circumstances; 260 
or 261 
(b)   Procedural irregularities occurred which prevented a fair and impartial hearing. 262 

 263 
120.7. Complaints Alleged Against an Elected Official  264 
120.7-1.  The Trial Court shall have jurisdiction to hear complaints of alleged misconduct of 265 
elected officials. Complaints of alleged misconduct shall be filed with the Trial Court pursuant to 266 
the Nation’s Rules of Civil Procedure. 267 
120.7-2.  In a civil action against an elected official for misconduct, the complainant has the burden 268 
of proving by clear and convincing evidence that the official engaged in misconduct.  269 

100 of 123



Draft 3 – PM Draft4 
2018 10 0411 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 7 

120.7-3.  In making a final determination, the Trial Court shall determine if there is enough 270 
evidence to substantiate the allegations of misconduct by the official by clear and convincing 271 
evidence. 272 

(a)  If the Trial Court finds that there is clear and convincing evidence that the official 273 
engaged in misconduct, the Trial Court shall determine and impose any sanctions and/or 274 
penalties deemed appropriate in accordance with this law. 275 
(b) If the Trial Court does not find that there is clear and convincing evidence to support 276 
the allegations that the official engaged in misconduct, the complaint shall be dismissed. 277 

120.7-4.  Appeal.  The complainant and the official who is the subject of the complaint shall both 278 
have the right to appeal the Trial Court’s decision to the Court of Appeals pursuant to the Nation’s 279 
Rules of Appellate Procedure. The appeal shall be limited to review of the record, and the Trial 280 
Court’s decision may only be overturned if the Court of Appeals determines that:  281 

(a)  The findings or penalties imposed were clearly erroneous, unsupported by the record, 282 
or made on unreasonable grounds or without any proper consideration of circumstances; 283 
or 284 
(b)   Procedural irregularities occurred which prevented a fair and impartial hearing. 285 

120.7-5.  The Trial Court shall provide the Business Committee Support Office a copy of the 286 
complaint and the determination of the Trial Court for the official’s record of conduct in office. 287 
 288 
120.8. Sanctions and Penalties 289 
120.8-1.  A sanction or penalty, or any combination of sanctions and/or penalties, may be imposed 290 
upon the Nation’s officials for misconduct in office, in accordance with this law.  291 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 292 

(a)  Verbal Reprimand.  A verbal reprimand may be imposed on the official.  293 
(1)  The Oneida Business Committee or Trial Court shall submit written notices to 294 
both the official and to the Business Committee Support Office of the specific date, 295 
time and location of the verbal reprimand. The verbal reprimand shall occur at an 296 
Oneida Business Committee meeting and/or a General Tribal Council meeting. 297 
(2)  To impose the verbal reprimand, the presiding Oneida Business Committee 298 
Chairperson, or another Oneida Business Committee member if the verbal 299 
reprimand is imposed against the presiding Oneida Business Committee 300 
Chairperson, shall read a statement that identifies: 301 

(A) The Oneida Business Committee or Trial Court’s findings regarding the 302 
specific actions or inaction taken by the official that were found to be 303 
misconduct; 304 
(B) The reasons why the official’s actions or inactions amounted to 305 
misconduct;  306 
(C) A statement identifying that the misconduct violates the high standards 307 
of behavior expected of the Nation’s officials and is not acceptable; and 308 
(D) A direction to the official to refrain from engaging in future misconduct.   309 

(b)  Public Apology.  The official may be ordered to make a public apology. The Oneida 310 
Business Committee or Trial Court shall submit written notices to both the official and to 311 
the Business Committee Support Office of the specific date, time and location of the public 312 
apology. The public apology shall occur at an Oneida Business Committee meeting and/or 313 
a General Tribal Council meeting. The public apology shall: 314 

(1) identify the specific misconduct committed by the official; 315 
(2) recognize that the official’s actions or inactions were wrong; 316 

101 of 123



Draft 3 – PM Draft4 
2018 10 0411 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 8 

(3) identify the effects of the official’s misconduct; and 317 
(4) include a clear and unambiguous apology from the official. 318 

 (c)  Written Reprimand.  A written reprimand may be imposed on the official by 319 
publication on the Nation’s official media outlets, as determined by the Oneida Business 320 
Committee. The Oneida Business Committee or the Trial Court may publish a written 321 
reprimand which includes the information required for the verbal reprimand as stated in 322 
section 120.8-2(a)(2)(A)-(D). 323 
(d)  Suspension.  An official may be suspended from performing his or her duties as an 324 
official for one (1) consecutivea period of time, not to exceed sixty (60)two (2) meetings, 325 
or fifteen (15) business days if the official serves in a full-time capacity. 326 

(1)  During a suspension, the official shall not: 327 
(A)  attend meetings, trainings or any other event as part of the entity; 328 
(B)  attend conferences or other events on behalf of, or as a representative 329 
of, the entity; 330 
(C)  vote or participate in any activities of the entity;  331 
(D)  perform work on behalf of the entity; or 332 
(E)  be eligible for any compensation, including regular pay, stipends, or 333 
mileage reimbursement. 334 

(2)  When an official is suspended, the Oneida Business Committee or Trial Court 335 
shall submit written notices to both the official and to the Business Committee 336 
Support Office of the specific start and end date of the suspension. 337 
(3)  If a suspension is imposed on multiple officials of the same entity at one time, 338 
the Oneida Business Committee or the Trial Court shall impose the suspensions of 339 
the officials on a staggered basis to avoid an interruption of the official business 340 
and function of the entity. 341 

(e)  Restitution. An official may be ordered to pay restitution, which may include the 342 
repayment of any improperly- received benefit, or any other payment which is intended to 343 
make another whole after suffering losses as a result of the official’s misconduct. 344 
(f)  Fines.  An official may be ordered to pay a fine not to exceed fivetwo thousand and 345 
five hundred dollars ($5,000)  per act of misconduct.2,500). 346 

(1)  Fines shall be paid to the Trial Court. 347 
(2)  Fines shall be paid within ninety (90) days after the order is issued or upheld 348 
on final appeal, whichever is later. Cash shall not be accepted for payment of fines. 349 
If the fine is not paid by this deadline, the Trial Court may seek to collect the money 350 
owed through the Nation’s garnishment and/or per capita attachment process. 351 
(3)  Money received from fines shall be deposited into the General Fund. 352 
(4)  Community service may be substituted for part or all of any fine at the minimum 353 
wage rate of the Nation for each hour of community service. 354 

(g)  Loss of Stipend.  An official may be ordered to forfeit a stipend for his or her service 355 
on an entity not to exceed twelve (12two (2) meetings. 356 
(h(h)  Mandatory Participation in Training.  An official may be ordered to participate in 357 
and complete a training class or program that will assist the official in addressing and 358 
improving his or her behaviors and/or actions. 359 
(1)  The mandated training class or program may address a variety of topics including, but 360 
not limited to, anger management, sexual harassment, or other sensitivity training.(i)  361 
Termination of Appointment. An appointed official may have his or her appointment 362 

102 of 123



Draft 3 – PM Draft4 
2018 10 0411 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 9 

terminated by the Oneida Business Committee in accordance with the Nation’s laws and/or 363 
policies governing boards, committees, and commissions. 364 
(ij)  Removal.  The Trial Court may recommend that the process for removing an elected 365 
official as contained in the Nation’s laws and/or policies governing removal be initiated.  366 
(j)  Prohibition.  Once terminated from office, an appointed official may be prohibited from 367 
serving on an entity for a period of time not to exceed three (3) years. 368 

120.8-3.  Factors in Determining an Appropriate Sanction and/or Penalty. When determining the 369 
appropriate sanction or sanctions to impose, the Oneida Business Committee or the Trial Court 370 
may consider all factors it deems relevant, including but not limited to: 371 

(a)  the seriousness or severity of the misconduct;  372 
(b)  whether the conduct was intentional or not;  373 
(c)  the likelihood of repetition;  374 
(d)  the extent of probable damage to the finances or reputation of the Nation, the 375 
complainant, the entity, or to any other person or organization;  376 
(e)  whether the official or his or her family personally profited, financially or otherwise, 377 
from the prohibited conduct;  378 
(f)  the official’s remorse, or  379 
(g)  the official’s willingness and ability to take steps to mitigate the harm caused by the 380 
violation, and  381 
(h)  any prior complaints filed, including any previous sanctions and penalties imposed 382 
upon the official while serving on an entity.  383 

120.8-4.  The Oneida Business Committee and/or the Trial Court may impose a sanction and/or 384 
penalty on a conditional basis, whereas compliance with a specific sanction and/or penalty shall 385 
prevent the imposition of a more stringent or burdensome sanction and/or penalty. 386 
120.8-5.  The imposition of sanctions and/or penalties in accordance with this law does not exempt 387 
an official from individual liability for the underlying misconduct, and does not limit any penalties 388 
that may be imposed in accordance with other applicable laws.  In addition to any sanctions and 389 
penalties that may be imposed in accordance with this law, officials who commit misconduct in 390 
office may be subject to other consequences; including but not limited to: 391 

(a) removal in accordance with the Nation’s laws and/or policies governing removal, if an 392 
elected official;  393 
(b) termination of appointment by the Oneida Business Committee, if an appointed official; 394 
(c) criminal prosecution, for misconduct that also violates applicable criminal law;  395 
(d) civil liability, in accordance with the applicable law of any jurisdiction; and/or 396 
(e) penalties for specific misconduct as authorized by any other law of the Nation. 397 

120.8-6.  An official who does not comply with a sanction and/or penalty that has been imposed 398 
against him or her by either the Oneida Business Committee or Trial Court may be subject to the 399 
following: 400 

(a)  additional sanctions and/or penalties that result from a complaint of misconduct filed 401 
in accordance with this Law based on the non-compliance; 402 
(b) termination of appointment by the Oneida Business Committee in accordance with the 403 
Nation’s laws and policies governing boards, committees, and commissions, if the official 404 
was appointed to his or her position; and/or 405 
(c)  removal in accordance with the Nation’s laws and policies governing removal, if the 406 
official was elected to his or her position. 407 

 408 

103 of 123



Draft 3 – PM Draft4 
2018 10 0411 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 10 

120.9.  Effect of Resignation by an Official 409 
120.9-1.  The resignation of an official after a complaint has been filed against the official shall 410 
not affect the status of the hearing and determination by either the Oneida Business Committee or 411 
Trial Court.  412 
120.9-2.  An official who resigns may still be subject to sanctions and/or penalties at the discretion 413 
of the Oneida Business Committee or Trial Court. 414 
 415 
120.10. Record of Conduct in Office  416 
120.10-1.  The Business Committee Support Office shall maintain a record of conduct in office 417 
for each official.  418 
120.10-2.  The record of conduct in office maintained for each official shall include, at a minimum:  419 

(a) a copy of each complaint filed against the official; 420 
(b)  recording and/or transcript from any hearings and/or proceedings; 421 
(c) the outcome of the complaint, and 422 
(cd) any sanctions or penalties imposed upon an official. 423 

120.10-3.  The record of conduct in office for each official shall be maintained for a period of no 424 
less than ten (10seven (7) years. 425 
 426 
End. 427 
 428 
Adopted – GTC-__-__-__-__ 429 
 430 

104 of 123



Draft 4 
2018 11 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 1 

  Title 1. Government and Finances - Chapter 120 
SANCTIONS AND PENALTIES  

 
120.1.   Purpose and Policy 

120.2.   Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 
120.3.   Definitions 
120.4.   Misconduct. 

120.5.   Filing of a Complaint 
120.6.   Complaint Alleged Against an Appointed Official  
 

120.7.   Complaint Alleged Against an Elected Official 

120.8.   Sanctions and Penalties 
120.9.   Effect of Resignation by an Official 
120.10. Record of Conduct in Office  

 
 
 

 1 
120.1.  Purpose and Policy 2 
120.1-1. Purpose. The purpose of this law is to establish a consistent set of sanctions and 3 
penalties that may be imposed upon elected and appointed officials of the Nation, including 4 
members of the Oneida Business Committee, for misconduct in office; and to establish an 5 
orderly and fair process for imposing such sanctions and penalties.  6 

(a)  This law does not apply to judges of the Oneida Nation Judiciary. 7 
(b)  This law does not apply to corporate entities of the Nation.  8 

120.1-2. Policy. It is the policy of the Nation to ensure that elected and appointed officials who 9 
commit misconduct while in office be subject to appropriate sanctions and penalties; and to 10 
ensure that there is a fair process in place that enables officials to fairly respond to allegations of 11 
misconduct.   12 
120.1-3.  It is the intent of the Nation that all elected and appointed officials strive to exhibit and 13 
uphold the Nation’s core values of The Good Mind as expressed by On<yote>a=ka, which 14 
includes: 15 

(a)  Kahletsyal&sla. The heart felt encouragement of the best in each of us. 16 
(b)  Kanolukhw@sla. Compassion, caring, identity, and joy of being. 17 
(c)  Ka>nikuhli=y%. The openness of the good spirit and mind. 18 
(d)  Ka>tshatst^sla. The strength of belief and vision as a People. 19 
(e)  Kalihwi=y%. The use of the good words about ourselves, our Nation, and our future. 20 
(f)  Twahwahts$lay<. All of us are family. 21 
(g)  Yukwats$stay<. Our fire, our spirit within each one of us. 22 

 23 
120.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 24 
120.2-1. This law was adopted by the General Tribal Council by resolution GTC-__-__-__-__. 25 
120.2-2. This law may be amended or repealed by the General Tribal Council pursuant to the 26 
procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act. 27 
120.2-3. Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 28 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are 29 
considered to have legal force without the invalid portions. 30 
120.2-4. In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 31 
the provisions of this law shall control.   32 
120.2-5. This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation.  33 
 34 
120.3.  Definitions 35 
120.3-1.  This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  All 36 
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 37 

105 of 123



Draft 4 
2018 11 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 2 

(a)  “Affirmative defense” means a fact or set of facts other than those alleged by the 38 
complainant which, if proven by the official, defeats or mitigates the consequences of the 39 
official's otherwise unlawful conduct. 40 
(b)  “Answer” means a formal written statement addressing the dispute on the merits 41 
and presents any defenses and counterclaims. 42 
(c)  “Business Committee Support Office” means the office that provides administrative 43 
support for the Oneida Business Committee and various other governmental operations. 44 
(d)  “Business day” means Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m., excluding 45 
holidays recognized by the Nation.  46 
(e)  “Clear and convincing evidence” means that it is substantially more likely than not 47 
that the facts presented are true. 48 
(f)  “Complainant” means an individual who has made a complaint. 49 
(g)  “Constitution” means the Constitution and By-Laws of the Oneida Nation.  50 
(h)  “Court of Appeals” means the Court of Appeals of the Oneida Nation Judiciary. 51 
(i)  “Entity” means a board, committee, commission, office, or other group of the Nation 52 
an individual may be appointed or elected to serve a position on, including the Oneida 53 
Business Committee.  54 
(j)  “Frivolous” means a complaint without any reasonable basis or merit, that cannot be 55 
supported by a good faith argument. Most often frivolous complaints are intended to 56 
merely harass, delay, or embarrass the opposition. 57 
(k)  “Misconduct” means wrongful, improper or unlawful conduct or behavior.  58 
(l)  “Nation” means the Oneida Nation.  59 
(m)  “Official” means any person who is elected or appointed to serve a position for the 60 
Nation, including, but not limited to, a position on a board, committee, commission, or 61 
office of the Nation, including the Oneida Business Committee.  62 
(n)  “Restitution” means compensation to an individual or entity for an injury, damage or 63 
loss. 64 
(o)  “Stipend” means the amount paid by the Oneida Nation to individuals serving on 65 
boards, committees and commissions of the Nation to offset the expenses of being a 66 
member on the board, committee or commission. 67 
(p)  “Substantiate” means to find that the complaint or allegation in the complaint is valid 68 
because there is clear and convincing evidence. 69 
(q)  “Trial Court” means the Trial Court of the Oneida Nation Judiciary. 70 
 71 

120.4. Misconduct 72 
120.4-1.  It shall be the obligation of every official to behave in a manner that promotes the 73 
highest ethical and moral standard. High moral and ethical standards amongst officials of the 74 
Nation is essential to the conduct of government.  75 
120.4-2.  An official may be subject to sanctions and penalties for behaving in a manner which 76 
constitutes misconduct. Misconduct includes:  77 

(a)  a violation of  the Constitution or any of the Nation’s laws, policies, or rules;  78 
(b)  a violation of the bylaws, standard operating procedures or other internal operating 79 
documents that govern the entity upon which the official serves; 80 
(c)  a conviction of a felony, or any crime in any jurisdiction that would be classified as a 81 
felony under federal law or Wisconsin law; and 82 
(d)  any other activity that is incompatible with the high moral and ethical standards that 83 
are expected of the Nation’s officials. 84 

106 of 123



Draft 4 
2018 11 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 3 

 85 
120.5. Filing of a Complaint 86 
120.5-1.  Who May File.  Any individual at least eighteen (18) years of age or older, or entity, 87 
who in good faith, has knowledge or reason to believe that an official has committed misconduct, 88 
may file a written complaint. 89 
120.5-2.  When to File.  A complaint may be filed as long as the alleged misconduct has 90 
occurred, or was discovered to have occurred, within the previous ninety (90) days.  91 
120.5-3.  Contents of the Complaint.  The complaint alleging misconduct by an official shall 92 
include the following information: 93 

(a)  The name(s) of the official alleged to have committed the misconduct; 94 
(b)  The entity or entities upon which the official serves; 95 
(c)  The specific date(s), time(s), and location(s) of the alleged misconduct; 96 
(d)  The specific details of the official’s misconduct; 97 
(e)  The specific provision of law, policy, rule, or bylaw of the Nation allegedly violated 98 
by the official; 99 
(f)  Names of any witnesses of the alleged misconduct, or individuals who may have 100 
knowledge pertinent to the alleged misconduct; 101 
(g)  The contact information for the person filing the complaint, which at minimum shall 102 
include the person’s name, address, and telephone number;  103 
(h)  A notarized sworn statement attesting that the information provided in and with the 104 
complaint is true, accurate, and complete to the best of the complainant’s knowledge;  105 
(i)  Any supporting documentation; and 106 
(j)  Any other information required by the Nation’s Rules of Civil Procedure if the 107 
complaint is alleging misconduct of an elected official. 108 

120.5-4.  Where to File.   109 
(a)  Appointed Official.  Complaints against an appointed official shall be filed with the 110 
Business Committee Support Office. 111 
(b)  Elected Official.  Complaints against an elected official shall be filed with the 112 
Nation’s Trial Court. 113 

120.5-5. Retaliation Prohibited. Retaliation against any individual who makes a complaint or 114 
party or witness to a complaint is prohibited. This protection shall also be afforded to any person 115 
offering testimony or evidence or complying with directives authorized under this law. 116 
Retaliation shall include any form of adverse or punitive action by or caused by, any official.  117 

(a)  If an individual alleges that retaliatory action has been threatened or taken based on 118 
the individual’s complaint, or cooperation with directives authorized under this law, the 119 
individual may file a complaint for the retaliatory action in accordance with section 120.5 120 
of this law. 121 

120.5-6. Any official who is the subject of a complaint has the right to be represented by an 122 
attorney or advocate, at his or her own expense, for any actions or proceedings related to the 123 
complaint. 124 
120.5-7.  Confidentiality.  All complaints alleged against an official of the Nation shall be 125 
handled in a confidential manner. 126 

(a)  All hearings and/or proceedings related to a complaint shall be closed to the general 127 
public. 128 
(b)  All records of hearings and/or proceedings shall not be subject to public review or 129 
inspection. An official’s record of conduct shall only be made available for review to the 130 
Oneida Business Committee and the Trial Court.  131 

107 of 123



Draft 4 
2018 11 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 4 

(c)  Exception.  A decision of the Trial Court or the Oneida Business Committee 132 
regarding a complaint alleged against an official, and any sanctions and/or penalties that 133 
are imposed against an official, shall be public information. 134 

 135 
120.6. Complaints Alleged Against an Appointed Official  136 
120.6-1.  Due to the fact that an appointed official serves at the discretion of the Oneida Business 137 
Committee, all complaints alleged against an appointed official shall be handled by the Oneida 138 
Business Committee.  139 
120.6-2.  Receipt of Complaint.  Upon receiving a complaint, the Business Committee Support 140 
Office shall: 141 

(a)  immediately forward copies of the complaint, including any supporting 142 
documentation, to: 143 

(1)  all members of the Oneida Business Committee for review; and 144 
(2)  the individual who is the subject of the complaint. 145 

(b)  place the complaint on the executive session portion of the agenda of a regular or 146 
special meeting of the Oneida Business Committee for an initial review which shall occur 147 
within thirty (30) business days after the initial receipt of a complaint. 148 

120.6-3.  Mediation.  The complainant or the official who is the subject of the complaint shall 149 
have up to five (5) business days after the initial receipt of the complaint to contact the Business 150 
Committee Support Office and request mediation.   151 

(a)  If both the complainant and the official who is the subject of the complaint agree to 152 
mediation, then the Business Committee Support Office shall schedule a mediation 153 
between the parties. The intent of this mediation meeting is to resolve the complaint prior 154 
to commencing an initial review. 155 
(b)  The Business Committee Support Office shall utilize a trained mediator to facilitate 156 
the mediation meeting. Every mediator shall have at least twenty-five (25) hours of 157 
mediation training or at least three (3) years of experience in dispute resolution. 158 
(c)  The mediation shall occur before the investigatory hearing is scheduled to take place. 159 
(d)  If a resolution is reached during mediation, the Oneida Business Committee shall be 160 
informed of the resolution before the initial review and the complaint shall be formally 161 
dismissed during the initial review. 162 
(e) If the matter is not resolved through mediation, the initial review shall occur as 163 
prescribed by this law. 164 

120.6-4.  Answer to the Complaint.  The individual who is the subject of the complaint shall have 165 
ten (10) business days after receiving his or her copy of the complaint, to submit to the Business 166 
Committee Support Office a written answer setting forth any admission, denial, affirmative 167 
defense, or other relevant information upon which the official intends to rely during proceedings 168 
related to the complaint.  169 

(a)  The Business Committee Support Office shall immediately forward the answer and 170 
any supporting documentation to all members of the Oneida Business Committee upon 171 
receipt from the individual who is the subject of the complaint.  172 

120.6-5.  Conflict of Interest.  An Oneida Business Committee member that has a conflict of 173 
interest in a complaint brought before the Oneida Business Committee, shall immediately recuse 174 
himself or herself and shall not participate in any portion of the complaint process. 175 

(a)  Failure of an Oneida Business Committee member to recuse themselves due to a 176 
conflict of interest shall constitute grounds for sanctions and/or penalties. 177 

108 of 123



Draft 4 
2018 11 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 5 

120.6-6.  Initial Review.  The Oneida Business Committee shall perform an initial review of an 178 
allegation of misconduct on the part of an official. The purpose of the initial review shall be to 179 
determine whether the allegation made within the complaint has merit.  180 

(a)  During the initial review the Oneida Business Committee shall review the complaint 181 
and the written answer; as well as any supporting documentation. 182 
(b)  In order to determine if a complaint has merit, the Oneida Business Committee will 183 
discuss if whether assuming the facts alleged are true, said facts would support a 184 
determination of misconduct. 185 
(c)  The Oneida Business Committee shall determine, by majority vote, whether the 186 
complaint has merit.  187 

(1)  Upon a finding that the complaint has merit, the Oneida Business Committee 188 
shall schedule an investigatory hearing to consider the specific allegations 189 
identified in the complaint. 190 

(A)  The investigatory hearing shall occur within thirty (30) business days 191 
after the initial review has concluded and shall take place during the 192 
executive session portion of the agenda of a regular or special meeting of 193 
the Oneida Business Committee. 194 

(2)  Upon finding that a complaint has no merit, the Oneida Business Committee 195 
shall dismiss the complaint. The Oneida Business Committee shall send notice 196 
that the complaint was dismissed to the complainant and the official who is the 197 
subject of the complaint within five (5) business days. 198 

(A)  If the Oneida Business Committee dismisses the complaint based on a 199 
determination that the complaint was frivolous, false, or made with a 200 
malicious intent, the complainant may be subject to: 201 

(i)  a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500); 202 
(ii)  prohibition from filing another complaint for a period of time 203 
not to exceed one (1) year; and/or 204 
(iii)  a civil suit in the Nation’s Trial Court brought by the official 205 
accused by the frivolous, false or malicious allegation. 206 

120.6-7.  Notice of the Investigatory Hearing.  The Business Committee Support Office shall 207 
provide the complainant, the official who is the subject of the complaint, and any other 208 
individual compelled to attend the hearing with written notice of the date and the time of the 209 
investigatory hearing at least ten (10) business days before the investigatory hearing. 210 
120.6-8.  Investigatory Hearing.  The purpose of the investigatory hearing is for the Oneida 211 
Business Committee to determine if there is enough evidence to substantiate the allegations of 212 
misconduct by clear and convincing evidence. 213 

(a)  When conducting an investigatory hearing, the Oneida Business Committee shall 214 
have the broadest grant of authority to compel any person or organization within the 215 
Nation to: 216 

(1)  appear at the hearing to provide testimony under oath and/or information 217 
relevant to the allegations against the official; and/or 218 

(2)  produce physical evidence that is relevant to the allegations.(b)  The Oneida Business 219 
Committee shall provide an opportunity for the official who is the subject of the 220 
complaint to answer all allegations and to provide witness testimony, documents, and 221 
other evidence on his or her own behalf.  222 

109 of 123



Draft 4 
2018 11 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 6 

(c)  The Oneida Business Committee shall also provide the complainant the opportunity 223 
to answer questions, provide witness testimony or additional information, and/or to 224 
otherwise speak on his or her own behalf. 225 
(d)  The hearing shall be informal and conducted as the interests of justice so require, and 226 
shall be recorded by the Business Committee Support Office. 227 

120.6-9.  Deliberation of the Oneida Business Committee.  At the conclusion of the investigatory 228 
hearing, the Oneida Business Committee shall excuse everyone from executive session for the 229 
deliberation of the Oneida Business Committee. Prior to making a final determination as to 230 
whether to substantiate the complaint, the Oneida Business Committee shall: 231 

(a)  consider all evidence and information provided, and shall have a full and complete 232 
discussion of all aspects of the complaint and answer; and 233 
(b)  have a full and complete discussion of all potential sanctions and penalties that may 234 
be imposed, if appropriate. 235 

120.6-10.  Determination by the Oneida Business Committee.  After the investigatory hearing has 236 
concluded and the Oneida Business Committee has deliberated, the Oneida Business Committee 237 
shall in open session of a regular or special Oneida Business Committee meeting, by majority 238 
vote, declare whether the Oneida Business Committee has determined there is enough evidence 239 
to substantiate the allegations of misconduct by clear and convincing evidence.  240 

(a) If the Oneida Business Committee finds that there is clear and convincing evidence 241 
that the official engaged in misconduct, the Oneida Business Committee shall, by 242 
majority vote, determine and impose appropriate sanctions and/or penalties. 243 
(b) If the Oneida Business Committee does not find that there is clear and convincing 244 
evidence to support the allegations that the official engaged in misconduct, the complaint 245 
shall be dismissed. 246 
(c) Within ten (10) business days after the investigatory hearing, the Oneida Business 247 
Committee shall issue a written decision and provide copies of the decision to:  248 

(1) the complainant,  249 
(2) the official who is the subject of the complaint, and  250 
(3) the Business Committee Support Office, for recordkeeping.  251 

120.6-11. Appeal. The complainant and the official who is the subject of the complaint shall both 252 
have the right to appeal the Oneida Business Committee’s decision to the Court of Appeals 253 
pursuant to the Nation’s Rules of Appellate Procedure. The appeal shall be limited to review of 254 
the record, and the Oneida Business Committee’s decision may only be overturned if the Court 255 
of Appeals determines that:  256 

(a)  The findings or penalties imposed were clearly erroneous, unsupported by the record, 257 
or made on unreasonable grounds or without any proper consideration of circumstances; 258 
or 259 
(b)   Procedural irregularities occurred which prevented a fair and impartial hearing. 260 

 261 
120.7. Complaints Alleged Against an Elected Official  262 
120.7-1.  The Trial Court shall have jurisdiction to hear complaints of alleged misconduct of 263 
elected officials. Complaints of alleged misconduct shall be filed with the Trial Court pursuant to 264 
the Nation’s Rules of Civil Procedure. 265 
120.7-2.  In a civil action against an elected official for misconduct, the complainant has the 266 
burden of proving by clear and convincing evidence that the official engaged in misconduct.  267 

110 of 123



Draft 4 
2018 11 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 7 

120.7-3.  In making a final determination, the Trial Court shall determine if there is enough 268 
evidence to substantiate the allegations of misconduct by the official by clear and convincing 269 
evidence. 270 

(a)  If the Trial Court finds that there is clear and convincing evidence that the official 271 
engaged in misconduct, the Trial Court shall determine and impose any sanctions and/or 272 
penalties deemed appropriate in accordance with this law. 273 
(b) If the Trial Court does not find that there is clear and convincing evidence to support 274 
the allegations that the official engaged in misconduct, the complaint shall be dismissed. 275 

120.7-4.  Appeal.  The complainant and the official who is the subject of the complaint shall both 276 
have the right to appeal the Trial Court’s decision to the Court of Appeals pursuant to the 277 
Nation’s Rules of Appellate Procedure. The appeal shall be limited to review of the record, and 278 
the Trial Court’s decision may only be overturned if the Court of Appeals determines that:  279 

(a)  The findings or penalties imposed were clearly erroneous, unsupported by the record, 280 
or made on unreasonable grounds or without any proper consideration of circumstances; 281 
or 282 
(b)   Procedural irregularities occurred which prevented a fair and impartial hearing. 283 

120.7-5.  The Trial Court shall provide the Business Committee Support Office a copy of the 284 
complaint and the determination of the Trial Court for the official’s record of conduct in office. 285 
 286 
120.8. Sanctions and Penalties 287 
120.8-1.  A sanction or penalty, or any combination of sanctions and/or penalties, may be 288 
imposed upon the Nation’s officials for misconduct in office, in accordance with this law.  289 
120.8-2.  Sanctions and penalties may include: 290 

(a)  Verbal Reprimand.  A verbal reprimand may be imposed on the official.  291 
(1)  The Oneida Business Committee or Trial Court shall submit written notices to 292 
both the official and to the Business Committee Support Office of the specific 293 
date, time and location of the verbal reprimand. The verbal reprimand shall occur 294 
at an Oneida Business Committee meeting and/or a General Tribal Council 295 
meeting. 296 
(2)  To impose the verbal reprimand, the presiding Oneida Business Committee 297 
Chairperson, or another Oneida Business Committee member if the verbal 298 
reprimand is imposed against the presiding Oneida Business Committee 299 
Chairperson, shall read a statement that identifies: 300 

(A) The Oneida Business Committee or Trial Court’s findings regarding 301 
the specific actions or inaction taken by the official that were found to be 302 
misconduct; 303 
(B) The reasons why the official’s actions or inactions amounted to 304 
misconduct;  305 
(C) A statement identifying that the misconduct violates the high standards 306 
of behavior expected of the Nation’s officials and is not acceptable; and 307 
(D) A direction to the official to refrain from engaging in future 308 
misconduct.   309 

(b)  Public Apology.  The official may be ordered to make a public apology. The Oneida 310 
Business Committee or Trial Court shall submit written notices to both the official and to 311 
the Business Committee Support Office of the specific date, time and location of the 312 
public apology. The public apology shall occur at an Oneida Business Committee 313 
meeting and/or a General Tribal Council meeting. The public apology shall: 314 

111 of 123



Draft 4 
2018 11 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 8 

(1) identify the specific misconduct committed by the official; 315 
(2) recognize that the official’s actions or inactions were wrong; 316 
(3) identify the effects of the official’s misconduct; and 317 
(4) include a clear and unambiguous apology from the official. 318 

 (c)  Written Reprimand.  A written reprimand may be imposed on the official by 319 
publication on the Nation’s official media outlets, as determined by the Oneida Business 320 
Committee. The Oneida Business Committee or the Trial Court may publish a written 321 
reprimand which includes the information required for the verbal reprimand as stated in 322 
section 120.8-2(a)(2)(A)-(D). 323 
(d)  Suspension.  An official may be suspended from performing his or her duties as an 324 
official for a period of time not to exceed two (2) meetings, or fifteen (15) business days 325 
if the official serves in a full-time capacity. 326 

(1)  During a suspension, the official shall not: 327 
(A)  attend meetings, trainings or any other event as part of the entity; 328 
(B)  attend conferences or other events on behalf of, or as a representative 329 
of, the entity; 330 
(C)  vote or participate in any activities of the entity;  331 
(D)  perform work on behalf of the entity; or 332 
(E)  be eligible for any compensation, including regular pay, stipends, or 333 
mileage reimbursement. 334 

(2)  When an official is suspended, the Oneida Business Committee or Trial Court 335 
shall submit written notices to both the official and to the Business Committee 336 
Support Office of the specific start and end date of the suspension. 337 
(3)  If a suspension is imposed on multiple officials of the same entity at one time, 338 
the Oneida Business Committee or the Trial Court shall impose the suspensions of 339 
the officials on a staggered basis to avoid an interruption of the official business 340 
and function of the entity. 341 

(e)  Restitution. An official may be ordered to pay restitution, which may include the 342 
repayment of any improperly received benefit, or any other payment which is intended to 343 
make another whole after suffering losses as a result of the official’s misconduct. 344 
(f)  Fines.  An official may be ordered to pay a fine not to exceed two thousand and five 345 
hundred dollars ($2,500). 346 

(1)  Fines shall be paid to the Trial Court. 347 
(2)  Fines shall be paid within ninety (90) days after the order is issued or upheld 348 
on final appeal, whichever is later. Cash shall not be accepted for payment of 349 
fines. If the fine is not paid by this deadline, the Trial Court may seek to collect 350 
the money owed through the Nation’s garnishment and/or per capita attachment 351 
process. 352 
(3)  Money received from fines shall be deposited into the General Fund. 353 
(4)  Community service may be substituted for part or all of any fine at the 354 
minimum wage rate of the Nation for each hour of community service. 355 

(g)  Loss of Stipend.  An official may be ordered to forfeit a stipend for his or her service 356 
on an entity not to exceed two (2) meetings. 357 
(h)  Mandatory Participation in Training.  An official may be ordered to participate in 358 
and complete a training class or program that will assist the official in addressing and 359 
improving his or her behaviors and/or actions. 360 

112 of 123



Draft 4 
2018 11 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 9 

(1)  The mandated training class or program may address a variety of topics including, 361 
but not limited to, anger management, sexual harassment, or other sensitivity training.(i)  362 
Termination of Appointment. An appointed official may have his or her appointment 363 
terminated by the Oneida Business Committee in accordance with the Nation’s laws 364 
and/or policies governing boards, committees, and commissions. 365 
(j)  Removal.  The Trial Court may recommend that the process for removing an elected 366 
official as contained in the Nation’s laws and/or policies governing removal be initiated.  367 

120.8-3.  Factors in Determining an Appropriate Sanction and/or Penalty. When determining 368 
the appropriate sanction or sanctions to impose, the Oneida Business Committee or the Trial 369 
Court may consider all factors it deems relevant, including but not limited to: 370 

(a)  the seriousness or severity of the misconduct;  371 
(b)  whether the conduct was intentional or not;  372 
(c)  the likelihood of repetition;  373 
(d)  the extent of probable damage to the finances or reputation of the Nation, the 374 
complainant, the entity, or to any other person or organization;  375 
(e)  whether the official or his or her family personally profited, financially or otherwise, 376 
from the prohibited conduct;  377 
(f)  the official’s remorse, or  378 
(g)  the official’s willingness and ability to take steps to mitigate the harm caused by the 379 
violation, and  380 
(h)  any prior complaints filed, including any previous sanctions and penalties imposed 381 
upon the official while serving on an entity.  382 

120.8-4.  The Oneida Business Committee and/or the Trial Court may impose a sanction and/or 383 
penalty on a conditional basis, whereas compliance with a specific sanction and/or penalty shall 384 
prevent the imposition of a more stringent or burdensome sanction and/or penalty. 385 
120.8-5.  The imposition of sanctions and/or penalties in accordance with this law does not 386 
exempt an official from individual liability for the underlying misconduct, and does not limit any 387 
penalties that may be imposed in accordance with other applicable laws.  In addition to any 388 
sanctions and penalties that may be imposed in accordance with this law, officials who commit 389 
misconduct in office may be subject to other consequences; including but not limited to: 390 

(a) removal in accordance with the Nation’s laws and/or policies governing removal, if an 391 
elected official;  392 
(b) termination of appointment by the Oneida Business Committee, if an appointed 393 
official; 394 
(c) criminal prosecution, for misconduct that also violates applicable criminal law;  395 
(d) civil liability, in accordance with the applicable law of any jurisdiction; and/or 396 
(e) penalties for specific misconduct as authorized by any other law of the Nation. 397 

120.8-6.  An official who does not comply with a sanction and/or penalty that has been imposed 398 
against him or her by either the Oneida Business Committee or Trial Court may be subject to the 399 
following: 400 

(a)  additional sanctions and/or penalties that result from a complaint of misconduct filed 401 
in accordance with this Law based on the non-compliance; 402 
(b) termination of appointment by the Oneida Business Committee in accordance with the 403 
Nation’s laws and policies governing boards, committees, and commissions, if the 404 
official was appointed to his or her position; and/or 405 
(c)  removal in accordance with the Nation’s laws and policies governing removal, if the 406 
official was elected to his or her position. 407 

113 of 123



Draft 4 
2018 11 07 

 

1. O.C. 120 – Page 10 

 408 
120.9.  Effect of Resignation by an Official 409 
120.9-1.  The resignation of an official after a complaint has been filed against the official shall 410 
not affect the status of the hearing and determination by either the Oneida Business Committee 411 
or Trial Court.  412 
120.9-2.  An official who resigns may still be subject to sanctions and/or penalties at the 413 
discretion of the Oneida Business Committee or Trial Court. 414 
 415 
120.10. Record of Conduct in Office  416 
120.10-1.  The Business Committee Support Office shall maintain a record of conduct in office 417 
for each official.  418 
120.10-2.  The record of conduct in office maintained for each official shall include, at a 419 
minimum:  420 

(a) a copy of each complaint filed against the official; 421 
(b)  recording and/or transcript from any hearings and/or proceedings; 422 
(c) the outcome of the complaint, and 423 
(d) any sanctions or penalties imposed upon an official. 424 

120.10-3.  The record of conduct in office for each official shall be maintained for a period of no 425 
less than seven (7) years. 426 
 427 
End. 428 
 429 
Adopted – GTC-__-__-__-__ 430 
 431 

114 of 123



Page 1 of 6 
 

 
 
 

 
Legislative Operating Committee  

FY 18 Fourth Quarter Report:  July 1‐ September 30, 2018 
 

Executive Summary 
The Legislative Operating Committee (LOC) focused much of the fourth quarter on the Oneida Personnel 
Commission dissolution, and later the rescission of the dissolution. This work included 1) emergency 
amendments to four (4) laws, 2) drafting bylaws for the Personnel Selection Committee, 3) drafting the 
Resolution‐Rescission of the Dissolution of the Oneida Personnel Commission and Related Emergency 
Amendments in accordance with the General Tribal Council’s August 27, 2018 directive, and 4) drafting 
amendments to the Oneida Personnel Commission bylaws. Table 1. is a complete list of what the LOC 
was working on as of September 30, 2018. 
 
The LOC also focused on the amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, 
and Commissions, which were adopted by the Oneida Business Committee on September 26, 2018. 
Lastly, the Legislative Reference Office spent time developing statements of effect for three General 
Tribal Council petitions; Petition: G. Dallas‐ $5k Per Capita, Petition: L. Dallas‐ Medicare Part B Premium 
Payments, and Petition: G. Dallas‐ $5,000 Payment within 90 Days. 
 
This report also includes important information on the amendments that must be made to all of the 
Nation’s non‐corporate boards, committees, and commissions‐ as a result of the adoption of the Boards, 
Committees, and Commissions Law. The deadline for this project was set by the Business Committee to 
be March 26, 2019. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Legislative Item  Status

Election Law Amendments 

Child Support Amendments 

Sanctions and Penalties Law 

Employment Law 

Employee Protection Policy Amendments 

Uniform Commercial Code 

Military Service Employee Protection Amendments 

  Researching, 0‐25% 
  Outreach, meetings, drafting, 25‐50%
  Developing analyses, public meeting, 50‐75%

Public comment review, LOC approval, 75‐100%
Adoption or acceptance, 100% complete

Chart Legend 

Table 1. Current active files list and status of each legislative item as of September 30, 2018 

115 of 123



Legislative Operating Committee FY18 Fourth Quarter Report and Year in Review  October 2018 

 

Page 2 of 6 
 

Amendments to Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, & Commissions

Oneida Personnel, Policies, and Procedures Amendments 

Rules of Civil Procedure 

Domestic Animal Ordinance Amendments 

Oneida Food Service Code 

Drug & Alcohol Free for Elected and Appointed Officials 

Industrial Hemp 

Wellness Court 

Public Peace Law 

Tribal Traffic Court 

Code of Ethics Amendments 

Business Organizations 

Vehicle Driver and Fleet Management Amendments 

Harvest Law 

Tribal Identification Law 

Research Protection Act 

Guardianship Law 

Law Enforcement Conservation Officers Amendments 

Oneida Personnel Commission Bylaws 

Oneida Gaming Commission Bylaws 

Oneida Land Claims Commission Bylaws 

Oneida Nation Commission on Aging Bylaws 

Oneida Nation School Board Bylaws 

Anna John Resident Centered Care Community Board Bylaws 

Oneida Nation Arts Boards Bylaws 

Oneida Police Commission Bylaws 

Oneida Powwow Committee Bylaws 

Pardon & Forgiveness Committee Bylaws 

Southeastern Wisconsin Tribal Service Advisory Board Bylaws 

Oneida Election Board Bylaws 

Oneida Land Commission Bylaws 

Oneida Nation Veterans Affairs Committee Bylaws 

Oneida Trust Enrollment Bylaws 

Harvest Law 

 

116 of 123



Legislative Operating Committee FY18 Fourth Quarter Report and Year in Review  October 2018 

 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 
 

 
Legislative Operating Committee Fourth Quarter Accomplishments   
 Approved the adoption packet for the amendments to Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards 

Committees, and Commissions. The amendments were adopted by the Oneida Business 
Committee on September 26, 2018 by resolution 9‐26‐18‐C. This law is now entitled Boards, 
Committees, and Commissions. 

 The LOC prepared the repeal of the following items in accordance with the Legislative 
Procedures Act; 
 Personnel, Policies, and Procedures Emergency Amendments 
 Employee Protection Emergency Amendments 
 Military Service Employee Protection Emergency Amendments 
 Rules of Civil Procedure Emergency Amendments 
 Personnel Selection Committee bylaws 

 Prepared and forwarded three statements of effect for the Business Committee in regard to 
three General Tribal Council petitions; Petition: L. Dallas‐ Medicare Part B Premium Payment, 
Petition: G. Dallas‐ 5k Per Capita Payment, and Petition: G. Dallas‐ $5,000 Payment in 90 Days. 
 

Legislative Reference Office Fourth Quarter Accomplishments  
The LRO is the support office for the LOC. The LRO drafts law, analyzes law, holds public meetings, 
collects public comment, and involves various departments in work meetings where the LOC discusses 
policy and makes decisions. The LRO also maintains a legislative record of the LOC’s work, including the 
Oneida Register. Aside from legislative work, other activities in the fourth quarter included; 
 
 Hired a Drafting Attorney. The LRO is now fully staffed. 
 Annual performance evaluations completed. 
 Two staff members completed the O’cademy Program. 
 Tribal Sovereignty 101 training provided by Oneida Law Office. 
 Toured the Oneida Reservation to learn about various jurisdiction issues, legislative 

opportunities, etc. 
 Reconfigured the office to make better use of space. 
 Finished FY19 budget planning and closed out FY18. 

 
 

Legislative Operating Committee Meetings 
July 4, 2018  Cancelled due to holiday 
July 18, 2018  Regular LOC meeting 
August 1, 2018  Regular LOC meeting 
August 15, 2018  Regular LOC meeting 
September 5, 2018  Regular LOC meeting 
September 19, 2018  Regular LOC meeting 
Public Meetings and Outreach Events 
August 16, 2018  Military Service Employee Protection Policy Public Meeting 
September 27, 2018  Harvest Law Community Potluck 

Table 2. Meetings held by the Legislative Operating Committee in Fourth Quarter 

117 of 123



Legislative Operating Committee FY18 Fourth Quarter Report and Year in Review  October 2018 

 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 
Featured Project: Amending Bylaws for all the Boards, Committees, and Commissions  
 As a result of the adoption of the Boards, Committees, and Commissions Law in September, 

every non‐corporate board, committee, and commission must update and amend its bylaws. A 
total of 17 sets of bylaws must be presented to the Oneida Business Committee for adoption, by 
March 26, 2019. 
 
Upon request, the LRO is assisting boards, committees, and commissions to amend their bylaws. 
Information meetings were held on October 17 and 24, 2018, for the purpose of presenting the 
required changes to the boards, committees, and commissions. Chart 1. is a flow chart of 
important tasks and deadlines. Upon request, the LRO will support each board, committee, and 
commission while this process is completed. There are several important dates that the boards, 
committees, and commissions have been made aware of: 
 

January 17, 2019  Deadline to submit draft bylaws to the LRO for a final review. 
January 31, 2019  Deadline to request the LRO to complete the required 

legislative analysis that must accompany all draft bylaws. 
February 15, 2019  All draft bylaws and their legislative analysis must be submitted 

to the Legislative Operating Committee. 
February 20, 2019  Last day the LOC will review bylaws before the March 26, 2019 

Business Committee Deadline. 
March 26, 2019  Deadline to present bylaws for adoption to the Business 

Committee.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Boards, committees, and commissions are encouraged to complete their tasks and submit their bylaws 
prior to the deadline dates. Any board, committee, or commission that would like assistance with their 
bylaws from the Legislative Reference Office may contact Kristen Hooker, LRO Drafting Attorney at 
khooker@oneidanation.org. 
 
FY18 Year in Review: Increase Community Participation 
The Legislative Operating Committee focused on several pieces of legislation over this past fiscal year.  
One new law became effective, seven sets of amendments were adopted, eight sets of administrative 
rules were adopted, 15 statements of effect were drafted for GTC petitions, and five legislative repeals 
were completed. 

March 26, 2019 
Deadline to present 
bylaws to OBC for 

adoption

Chart 1. Six Month Timeline for all Boards, Committees, and Commissions to Amend Bylaws

February 20, 2019 
Last time LOC will 
review bylaws 

before going  to OBC

February 15, 2019
Deadline to submit 

bylaws to LOC

January 17, 2019
Deadline to submit 
bylaws to LRO for 

final review

January 31, 2019 
Deadline to request 
a legislative analysis  

from LRO

October 17 & 24, 2018
Bylaws Informational 

Meetings

October 2018‐ 
January 2019

Boards, committees, 
commissions draft 

new bylaws

*Submitting bylaws before deadline 

dates is highly encouraged

118 of 123



Legislative Operating Committee FY18 Fourth Quarter Report and Year in Review  October 2018 

 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 
Throughout the year, the LOC focused on our primary goal‐ to increase the amount of public 
participation in the legislative process. In addition, we focused on improving collaboration with tribal 
departments. The Legislative Reference Office created several new opportunities for the community to 
participate including surveys and community meetings. This effort has been successful in many ways. 
 
During the 2014‐17 term, the average number of people attending public meetings was 4.8. In FY18, we 
were able to increase that number to 6.0 people, which is a 25% increase in public meeting attendance. 
The average number of comments collected at public meetings this past year was approximately 14. 
Table 3. Provides further detail on public participation.  
 
 
Table 3. Measure of Public Participation in Legislation for FY18 

 

Public Meetings‐ Required by LPA  Date  Attended  Comments Received 
Landlord‐Tenant Amendments  October 19, 2017 2 4

Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, 
Committees, and Commissions 

June 22, 2018 13 34

Military Service Employee Protection  August 16, 2018 2 0

Sanctions & Penalties Law  October 4, 2018 7 19

  Average= 6.0 people 
(25% increase) 

Average= 14.25 
comments 

Community Pot Luck Meetings‐ Optional  Date Attended  Comments Received
Sanctions & Penalties  May 3, 2018 16 48

GTC Meetings Law   October 23, 2017 20 62

Harvest Law   September 27, 2018 9 43

  Average= 15 people  Average= 51 comments

 
Other Participation Opportunities‐ Optional Date Participated  Comments Received
GTC Meetings Law Facebook Post  September 11, 2017 12 12

GTC Meeting Law Community Survey  September 11‐
October 8, 2017 

291 93

  Total= 303 people 
completed survey 

Total= 105 comments 
received 

 
FY18 Year in Review: Legislation Completed 
Chart 2. demonstrates what work the LOC completed and in what quarter it was completed. The LOC 
will look at the active files list in the first quarter of FY19 and update its priorities and strategies.  
 
FY19 First Quarter Plans 
For the next quarter, the LOC’s legislative focus will be on: Sanctions and Penalties Law, Election Law 
Amendments, Corporate Code, Child Support Amendments, Domestic Animals Amendments, Food 
Service Code Amendments, Employee Protection Policy Amendments, and an Industrial Hemp law. 
 
 
 

119 of 123



Page 6 of 6 
 

 
 
 
 
 

*Note: The timeline reflects when the LOC was working on 
the GTC Petition‐ not when it was discussed or when the 
General Tribal Council may have taken action. 

October‐December 2017 

New Laws 
None 
 
Amendments 
Landlord Tenant Law 
 
Administrative Rules 
None 
 
General Tribal Council 
Petitions* 
Petition: Dallas‐ 2017 Tri‐Annual 
General Election 
Petition: Graham‐ 2017 General 
Election 
Petition: Debraska‐ Health Care 
Board 
Petition: Delgado‐  Trust Land 
Distribution 
Petition: Dodge‐ Law Form for GTC 
Petition: G. Powless‐ Banishment 
Law Resolution 
Petition: Vandehei‐ E‐poll Process 

January‐March 2018

New Laws 
None 
 
Amendments 
None 
 
Administrative Rules 
Membership Ordinance Rule #1‐ 
Enrollment 
Membership Ordinance Rule #2‐ 
Voidance 
Community Support Rule 
 
General Tribal Council 
Petitions* 
Petition: Metivier‐ Treatment 
Center

April‐June 2018 

New Laws 
Leasing Law (Became Effective) 
 
Amendments 
Personnel, Policies, and 
Procedures Emergency 
Amendments 
Employee Protection Emergency 
Amendments 
Military Service Employee 
Protection Emergency 
Amendments 
Rules of Civil Procedure Emergency 
Amendments 
Real Property Amendments 
 
Administrative Rules 
Domestic Animal Rule #1‐ 
Licensing, Fees, and Penalties 
Emergency Adoption 
Leasing Law Emergency Rule #1‐ 
Residential Leasing 
Leasing Law Rule #2‐ Agricultural 
Leases 
Leasing Law Rule #3‐ Commercial 
Leases 
Legal Resource Center Law Rule 
#1‐ Application for Services 
 
General Tribal Council 
Petitions* 
Petition: G. Dallas‐ $5,000 Payment 
Petition: G. Powless‐ Oneida 
Personnel Commission Dissolution 
Oneida Personnel Selection 
Committee Bylaws 

July‐ September 2018

New Laws 
None  
 
Amendments 
Boards Committees, and 
Commissions  
Repeal Personnel, Policies, and 
Procedures Emergency 
Amendments 
Repeal Employee Protection 
Emergency Amendments 
Repeal Military Service Employee 
Protection Emergency 
Amendments 
Repeal Rules of Civil Procedure 
Emergency Amendments 
Repeal Personnel Selection 
Committee 
 
Administrative Rules 
None 
 
General Tribal Council 
Petitions* 
Petition: L. Dallas‐ Medicare Part B 
Premium Payment 
Petition: G. Dallas‐ $5,000 Payment 
in 90 Days 
Petition: L. and G. Dallas‐ $5,000 
Payment 

Chart 2. Legislative Operating Committee: Summary of Work for FY18  
120 of 123



121 of 123

r'\ 
000000 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365 • Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov ONEIDA 

TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

David P. Jordan, Legislative Operating Committee Ci'rman 

Jennifer Falck, Legislative Reference Office .Director 

Updating the Legislative Operating Committee's Act1 e Files List 

November 7, 2018 DATE: 

BACKGROUND 

On October 17, 2018, the Legislative Operating Committee (LOC) held a work meeting to 

discuss the LOC's current active files list. The LOC reviewed the status of each item on the list, 

discussed priorities, and came to decisions as to which items the Legislative Reference Office 

(LRO) should focus on. 

ACTIVE FILES LIST 

Based on decisions made at the work meeting, the LOC directed the LRO to work on the 

following legislation; 

The Legislative Operating Committee's Active Files List 

1. All Boards, Committee, and Commission's Bylaws 

Amendments (17 sets of bylaws) 

2. Business Corporations Law 

3. Oneida Food Service Code Amendments 

4. Election Law Amendments 

5. Sanctions & Penalties Law 

6. Child Support Amendments 

7. Domestic Animals Amendments 

8. Industrial Hemp Law 

9. Wellness Court Law 

10. Public Peace Law 

11. Code of Ethics and Drug and Alcohol Free 

Workplace for Elected and Appointed Officials 

12. Vehicle Driver and Fleet Management Amendments 

13. Rules of Civil Procedure Amendments 

14. Guardianship Law 

15. Law Enforcement- Conservation Officers 

16. Work Visas 

17. Tribal Traffic Code 

18. Employee Protection Policy 

The LOC discussed removing three items from the Active Files list; Employment Law, Research 

Protection Act, and the Tribal Identification Law. The LOC also chose to combine the Code of 

Ethics Law with the Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace for Appointed and Elected Officials Law 

into one legislative item. Lastly, to reflect decisions made previously, the LOC will remove 

Commerce from the active files list, and rename the Business Organizations law to the Business 

Corporations Law. 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Remove the Employment Law, Research Protection Act, Tribal Identification Law, and 

Commerce law from the Active Files List, and rename the Business Organizations law to the 

Business Corporations Law. 

Page 1 of 1 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



1 11/ 2/ 2018 10:58 AMLOC

SuMo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

November 2018

SuMo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

December 2018

November 2018

Oct 28 29 30 31 Nov 1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

9:00am LOC 

Meeting 

(BC_Conf_Roo

m) - LOC

2:00pm LOC 

Meeting 

(BC_Conf_Roo

m) - Jennifer 

12:15pm PUBLIC 

MEETING: 

Election Law 

Amendments 

(BC_Conf_Roo

m; ) - Clorissa 

N. Santiago

11 12 13 14 15 16 17

9:00am LOC 

Work Session 

(BC_Exec_Conf

_Room) - 

Clorissa N. 

Santiago

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

2:30pm LOC 

Work Session 

- Election Law 

(BC_Exec_Conf

_Room) - 

Clorissa N. 

Santiago

9:00am LOC 

Meeting 

(BC_Conf_Roo

m) - LOC

25 26 27 28 29 30 Dec 1

9:00am LOC 

Work Session 

(BC_Exec_Conf

_Room) - 

Clorissa N. 

Santiago

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY

122 of 123



2 11/ 2/ 2018 10:58 AMLOC

SuMo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

December 2018

SuMo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

January 2019

December 2018

Nov 25 26 27 28 29 30 Dec 1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9:00am LOC 

Meeting 

(BC_Conf_Roo

m) - LOC

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

6:00pm GTC 

(Radisson)

8:30am LOC 

Work Session 

(BC_Exec_Conf

_Room) - 

Clorissa N. 

Santiago

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

9:00am LOC 

Meeting 

(BC_Conf_Roo

m) - LOC

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31 Jan 1, 19 2 3 4 5

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY

123 of 123


	I. Agenda
	II. Minutes
	III.1 Employee Protection Policy CS
	III.1.1 PM Notice
	III.1.2 Analysis
	III.1.3 Draft

	III.2 Sanctions and Penalties Law CS
	III.2.1 PM Comment Review Memo with LOC Consideration
	III.2.2 Draft (Redline to Draft 3)
	III.2.3 Draft (Clean)

	VI.1 FY18 Fourth Quarter LOC Report
	VI.2 AFL Memo
	X. Calendar

